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STATE OF DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

THOMAS J. COOK
SECRETARY OF FINANCE

December 22, 2016

To the Citizens, Governor, and
Members of the Legislature of the
State of Delaware:

It is my pleasure to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of Delaware (the State) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. This report has been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to
state and local governments, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The State continues to follow the recommendations of the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for the form and content of
government financial reports and participates in the GFOA's program for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, as well as the completeness and fairness of
the CAFR's presentation, rests with the Department of Finance. The management of the
Department of Finance has established a comprehensive framework of internal control to provide
a reasonable basis for asserting that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the information
presented is accurate in all material respects and fairly sets forth the State's financial position and
results of operations in accordance with GAAP. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the State's financial activities are included.

The report is presented in these sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of selected State officials, the State’s
organizational chart, and the GFOA Certificate of Achievement. The financial section includes
the independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), basic
financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements, and required supplementary
information. The statistical section includes selected financial, demographic, and economic
information.

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
an MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it. The State’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

CARVEL STATE OFFICE BUILDING, 820 N. FRENCH ST., 8™ FLOOR, WILMINGTON, DE 19801
TELEPHONE: (302)577-8979 — FAX: (302)577-8982



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The State is located on the eastern seaboard of the United States and is bordered by the
Atlantic Ocean, the Delaware Bay and the states of New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Maryland. The
State is 96 miles long and has a land area of 1,955 square miles. In 2015, it is estimated that over
945,000 people reside here. As the first state to ratify the United States Constitution on December
7, 1787, The State of Delaware is known as "The First State." The structure of the State’s
government, which is similar to other states, consists of three branches that operate through a
system of checks and balances. The executive branch is comprised of the Governor, Lt. Governor,
State Treasurer, State Auditor, Attorney General and Insurance Commissioner. The legislative
branch is bicameral and consists of a 21-member Senate and a 41-member House of
Representatives. The judicial branch includes the Supreme Court, Superior Court, Court of
Chancery, and other courts.

The State’s reporting entity reflected in the CAFR, which is described more fully in Note
1 to the basic financial statements, conforms to the requirements of GASB Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus and amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34.
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial
reporting entity and to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that have
arisen since the issuance of Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Consequently, the transmittal letter,
MD&A, and the financial statements focus on the primary government and its activities.
Although information pertaining to the discretely presented component units is provided, their
separately issued financial statements should be read to obtain a complete overview of their
financial position.

The State budgets and controls its financial activities on the cash basis of accounting during
its fiscal year. In compliance with State law, the State records its financial transactions in either of
two major categories - the budgetary general fund or budgetary special funds. References to these
funds include the terms "budgetary" or "budgetary basis" to differentiate them from the GAAP
funds of the same name which encompass different funding categories. GAAP fund definitions for
accounting purposes differ from those of the budgetary basis. General and special funds are fully
explained in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

The budgetary general fund provides for the cost of the State's general operations and is
credited with all tax and other revenue of the State not dedicated to budgetary special funds. All
disbursements from the budgetary general fund must be authorized by appropriations of the
General Assembly.

Budgetary special funds are designated for specific purposes. The appropriate budgetary
special fund is credited with tax or other revenue allocated and is charged with the related
disbursements. Examples of specific uses of budgetary special funds include the Transportation
Trust Fund, which collects some of its revenue through motor fuel taxes and tolls. Federal
payments, unemployment compensation and local school funds are examples of nonappropriated
special funds. Some special funds, such as the Delaware State Housing Authority and the State
Pension Office, contain both appropriated funds for operations and non-appropriated funds for
specific programs, such as public housing and pension benefits.



Federal funds, which are credited to budgetary special funds, are not appropriated, but are
subject to the review and approval of the State Office of Management and Budget and the
Delaware State Clearinghouse Committee for Federal Aid Coordination. The Committee is
comprised of 10 members, including the Secretary of Finance, Director of the Office of
Management and Budget, Director of the Delaware Economic Development Office, the
Controller General, and six legislators.

Budgetary Control and Financial Management Systems

Disbursements are controlled by an encumbrance accounting system, via purchase orders,
designed to provide information on the actual extent of the State's obligations and guard against
over-committing available funds. Appropriations are reduced immediately when purchase orders
are issued for goods and services. The total amount of budgetary general fund cash disbursements,
plus unliquidated encumbrances, cannot exceed the amount appropriated by the General Assembly
for any specific budgetary line items by department. Internal controls prevent State organizations
from spending beyond budgetary limits and statutory requirements described in the Budget and
Accounting Manual (the BAM), which dictates the process for handling cash, assets, the use of
credit cards, payroll procurement, budgeting and approvals over all financial transactions. (See
Notes to Required Supplementary Information for more details).

The majority of the State's financial transactions are processed through the State's statewide
accounting system, which is a comprehensive, enterprise-wide financial system. However,
certain special funds have financial activity external to that system, such as the Delaware
Transportation Authority, the Delaware State Housing Authority and Delaware State University.
This activity is governed in strict adherence to legislative regulations and guidelines established by
their boards. In addition, these entities are audited annually and produce published financial
reports.

Budget Process

Each fall, State organizations submit requests for operating and capital funds for the next
fiscal year to the Office of Management and Budget and public hearings are held to review the
requests. The Governor's proposed operating and capital budgets for the general fund and special
funds, including the Transportation Trust Fund, are then drafted and presented by the Governor to
the General Assembly in January. The General Assembly's Joint Finance and Bond Bill
Committees hold hearings and mark up the Governor's proposed operating and capital budgets. As
amended, the budgets are expected to be enacted on July 1.

Appropriation Limit

The State Constitution limits annual appropriations by majority vote of both houses of the
General Assembly to 98% of estimated budgetary general fund revenue plus the unencumbered
budgetary general fund balance from the previous fiscal year. An exception to this limit may be
made in the event of a declared emergency, with the approval of a three-fifths vote of the
members of each house of the General Assembly. No appropriation may be made which exceeds
100% of estimated budgetary general fund revenue plus the unencumbered general fund balance



from the previous fiscal year.
Tax Limitations

The State Constitution was amended in May 1980 to limit tax and license fee increases or
the imposition of any new taxes or fees to a three-fifths vote of each house of the General
Assembly, rather than by a simple majority vote. An exception exists for tax increases to meet
debt service on outstanding obligations of the State for which insufficient revenue is available
when such debt service is due.

Revenue and Expenditure Forecasting

The Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (DEFAC), an entity created by
executive order in 1977, is comprised of 33 members from the executive and legislative branches
of State government and the private sector, as appointed by the Governor. DEFAC submits
revenue and expenditure forecasts for the Budgetary General Fund and the Transportation Trust
Fund to the Governor and the General Assembly regularly throughout the fiscal year. These
forecasts are meant to ensure compliance with State constitutional limits on spending authority
so future expenditures do not exceed expected revenues. In addition, revenue forecasts near
year-end for the next fiscal year are utilized to calculate the corresponding statutory debt limits.

DEFAC prepares revenue estimates six times each fiscal year in September, December,
March, April, May and June for the current fiscal year and the succeeding two fiscal years. A
revenue forecast for the current fiscal year and the succeeding four fiscal years is generated once
each year, generally in September. In addition, budgetary general fund and transportation trust
fund expenditure forecasts are generated for the current fiscal year in September, December,
March, April, May and June.

Additionally, DEFAC advises the Governor and General Assembly on economic
conditions in the State and advises the Governor and the Secretary of Finance on tax policy.
An independent, in-depth review of the State’s revenue portfolio recommends changes to
certain of the State’s tax policy and an expenditure review committee looks for state-wide cost
cutting measures. DEFAC meetings, as well as meetings of the revenue and expenditure
review committees, are open to the public and provide a forum for members of the public and
private sectors to exchange views on matters of economic and fiscal concern for the State.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Delaware’s recent economic performance has largely mirrored national trends in terms of
employment and income growth. The State’s average unemployment rate for calendar year 2015
fell to 4.8% from 5.7% in calendar year 2014 comparing favorably to the nation and to the
Mid-Atlantic region at 5.3% and 5.4%, respectively. Despite job losses at DuPont and other large
employers, employment levels continue to grow due to strong growth in professional business
services and financial services and are expected to match national growth rates for the remainder



of the decade. Aggregate personal income growth is expect to slightly lag national growth levels
due, in part, to high levels of in-migration among retirees.

Aided by active economic development policies, Delaware’s economy is based in large part
on service-providing enterprises, especially financial activities. Delaware has targeted statutory
and tax policy changes to encourage financial sector development and to retain important
employers. The State’s major financial service employers, Bank of America, N.A., JPMorgan
Chase & Co., Barclays Bank Delaware and Capital One, continue to maintain a major presence in
the State and demonstrate the State’s importance as a financial center. The main driver of
Delaware’s financial sector, the credit card industry, has benefited from stong consumer
fundamentals, a steady U.S. economic recovery, and rising demand for credit card borrowing.

In response to the potential loss of The Chemours Company, Delaware enacted The
Delaware Competes Act, which changes the method employed to apportion taxable income for
multi-state corporations. Chemours, DuPont’s spin-off of its performance chemicals segment,
continues to employ over 1,000 in Delaware.

Likewise, when faced with the news that Dow-Dupont planned to split the merged company
into three separate and independent corporations, Delaware was instantly thrust into a multi-state
competition for headquarters and jobs. Delaware determined that its viability versus other states
depended on the State’s ability to distinguish itself as a natural location for global headquarters and
a center for research and development. The State responded with The Commitment to Innovation
Act, which modernized Delaware’s research and development tax credit and established job
retention tax credits for firms that establish worldwide headquarters in the State. The
Commitment to Innovation Act was among the critical elements in Dow-Dupont’s decicion to
locate the headquarters of both the agricultural company and specialty products spin-offs in
Delaware.

Although less reliant on manufacturing, the State has made important strides to reinvigorate,
modernize, and repurpose its manufacturing base. For example, the site of the former Chrysler
plant was purchased by the University of Delaware to pursue science, technology & advanced
research. The “STAR” campus now houses a health sciences complex dedicated to advanced
healthcare research, education and delivery. Future development will focus on leading research
in health care, cyber security and alternative energy.

To enhance its position in an increasingly competitive gaming market and to increase
employment across the State, Delaware diversified its gaming portfolio to include sports betting.
Fiscal 2017 will mark the eighth season that Delaware has offered parlay betting on pro football
games. Including Keno locations, in fiscal 2017, Delaware will have over 100 retail outlets
available to players. Since i-gaming was introduced in 2013, Delaware and Nevada created the
Multi-State Internet Gaming Agreement allowing poker players to participate in regulated
multi-jurisdictional online poker rooms. Delaware continues to explore additional multistate
compacts for online gaming as well as additional gaming offerings. Net revenues from i-gaming,
including mobile i-gaming, continues to increase.



Through strategic investment, the State continues to pursue high technology industries,
including life sciences research and development, pharmaceuticals, agricultural biotechnology,
human biotechnology, information technology and, more recently, alternative energy and other
green industries. The State has made a significant investment to establish the Delaware
Biotechnology Institute, a partnership involving State government, the State’s higher education
institutions and the private sector. The Institute is designed to expand the State’s scientific base

and create opportunities for the development of new technologies in the emerging life sciences
field.

Delaware’s business-friendly legal system continues to attract new incorporations
Even though initial public offering (“IPO”) activity has not reached pre-recession levels, the State
has continued to register a record number of business formations in the form of limited liability
companies and limited partnerships. As of December 2015, the total number of business entities
registered with the Division of Corporations exceeded 1,181,000.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP has audited the State’s basic financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Based upon that audit, the independent
auditor has issued an unmodified opinion that the State of Delaware’s basic financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. Their report on the basic
financial statements has been included in the financial section of this CAFR.

The State Auditor of Accounts performs periodic financial and compliance audits of the
various State departments, agencies and institutions of higher education and has primary
responsibility for conducting audits under the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Grant
Guidance. Results of these audits may be found in separately issued audit reports and may be
obtained by contacting the Office of Auditor of Accounts, Townsend Building, Suite 1, 401
Federal Street, Dover, Delaware 19901.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of
Delaware for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The Certificate of Achievement is
a prestigious national award that recognizes conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government unit must publish a timely, easily readable, and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report that conforms to program standards. The report must
comply with both generally accepted accounting principles and all applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. The State has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last 21 consecutive years (fiscal years 1995 — 2015). We
believe that this year’s report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Vi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Delaware (the State), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not audit the financial statements of certain agencies and component units of the State of
Delaware, which represent the indicated percent of total assets and deferred outflows of resources,
total net position and fund balance, and total revenues as presented in the table below. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for those funds and component units, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Percentage Audited by

Other Auditors
Assets and

Deferred Outflows Net Position/

of Resources Revenues Fund Balance
Governmental Activities 1% 0% 8%
Business-type Activities 98% 93% 97%
Discretely Presented Component Units 100% 100% 100%
General Fund 2% 0% 4%
Lottery Fund 100% 100% 100%
DelDOT Fund 100% 100% 100%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 95% 51% 96%

A member of



The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement. The financial statements of Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility,
Delaware State University and the Riverfront Development Corporation of Delaware were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Delaware as of June 30, 2016, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the
accompanying table of contents (collectively referred to as RSI) be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of Delaware’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
supplementary information and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
22, 2016, on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the State’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

WM@% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
December 22, 2016



STATE OF DELAWARE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Delaware’s (the State’s) financial
activities as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Readers are encouraged to consider
the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the
letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-vii of this report, and the State’s financial
statements, which follow this section.

These financial statements have been prepared using the financial accounting model adopted by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the State exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $3,292.1
million (net position). Discretely presented component units reported a net position of
$1,182.7 million, an increase of $48.6 million from the previous year as restated,
resulting from the implementation of GASB 72 and other conforming changes.

e As a result of its operations, the primary government’s total net position decreased by
$358.8 million (9.8%) in fiscal year 2016 when compared to the previous year’s ending
net position. Net position of governmental activities decreased by $511.6 million
(341.8%) from the previous year, while net position of the business-type activities
increased $152.8 million (4.4%) from the previous year.

e The State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,627.1
million, a decrease of $347.9 million (17.6%) in comparison with the prior year balance.

e The general fund reported unassigned fund balance of $390.4 million which was 7.7% of
total general fund expenditures.

e The State’s total general obligation debt increased $27.5 million (1.5%) during fiscal year
2016 to $1,902.9 million. Of the State’s outstanding general obligation debt, $517.4
million (27.2%) has been issued on behalf of local school districts, which is supported by
the property tax revenues of those districts. In addition, the State has $1,036.2 million in
outstanding revenue bonds with $49.9 million for energy conservation projects and
$986.3 million for transportation projects.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the State’s basic financial
statements. The State’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains additional required supplementary information and
other supplementary information, in addition to the basic financial statements.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the State’s operations, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position reports the difference between the State’s assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
State is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the State’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event that created the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
As a result, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the State that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the State include
general government, health and children’s services, judicial and public safety, natural resources
and environmental control, labor and education. The business-type activities of the State include
transportation, lottery and unemployment services.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the State (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate entities for which the State is financially accountable
(discretely presented component units). These entities include the Delaware State Housing
Authority, the Diamond State Port Corporation, the Riverfront Development Corporation,
Delaware State University, the Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation and 27
charter schools (28 charter schools have been approved by the State, but one was not operating
during fiscal year 2016). Financial information for these component units is reported separately
from the financial information presented for the primary government. The government-wide
financial statements can be found on pages 20 - 21 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The State, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The State’s funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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- Governmental Funds Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of available resources, as well as on balances of available resources on hand at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-
term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for government funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and
the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The State’s governmental funds include the general, federal, local school district, and capital
projects funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet
and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance (deficit) for these funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 25 of this
report.

The combining schedule for the local school districts that reflects the local school district
fund can be found on pages 149 - 152 of this report.

The State budgets and controls its financial activities on the cash basis of accounting. In
compliance with State law, the State records its financial transactions in either of two major
categories — the General Fund or the Special Fund. References to these funds in this report
include the terms “budgetary” or “budgetary basis” to differentiate them from the GAAP
funds of the same name which encompass different funding categories. The State adopts an
annual appropriated budget for its budgetary general fund and special fund. A budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided for the budgetary general fund and special fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budget. The schedules can be found on page 127 of this
report.

- Proprietary Funds Proprietary Funds charge customers for the services they provide —
whether they are provided to outside customers (enterprise funds) or other State agencies and
other governments (internal service funds). Proprietary Funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Lottery, Unemployment
Insurance Trust Fund and the Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT), all of
which are considered to be major funds of the State.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 - 28 of this report.
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- Fiduciary Funds The State acts as a fiduciary to account for resources held for the benefit
of parties outside the government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
State of Delaware’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds. These funds are used where the State holds assets in trust or as an
agent for others, including the pension trust funds and agency funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29 - 30 of this report.
The combining fiduciary and agency fund statements can be found on pages 144 - 148.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 33 - 123 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) concerning the status of the State’s legally adopted
budget, the maintenance of the State’s infrastructure and additional schedules related to funding
status and progress, annual pension costs and actuarial methods and assumptions for the State’s
pension and OPEB trusts. The RSI can be found on pages 124 - 142 of this report.

Statewide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. The State’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $3,292.1 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the State’s net position of $5,040.2 million reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, vehicles, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets. The State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the State’s investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities. Restricted net position, comprising $1,243.8 million of total
net position, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions, constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation on how they can be used. The remaining portion of the State’s
net position represents the unrestricted deficit net position of $2,991.9 million.
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Condensed Financial Information - Primary Government
As of June 30, 2016

(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Assets:
Non-capital Assets $ 2,890,963 $ 2,902,212 § 748,534 § 489973 § 3,639,497 § 3,392,185
Capital Assets 3,768,563 3,716,412 4,402,702 4321,292 8,171,265 8,037,704
Total Assets 6,659,526 6,618,624 5,151,236 4.811,265 11,810,762 11,429,889
Deferred Outflows of Resources 194,889 191,069 49,649 29,645 244,538 220,714
Liabilities:
Long-term Liabilities
Outstanding 5,897,362 5,183,775 1,278,247 1,078,635 7,175,609 6,262,410
Other Liabilities 1,074,590 913,974 239,538 218,128 1,314,128 1,132,102
Total Liabilities 6,971,952 6,097,749 1,517,785 1,296,763 8,489,737 7,394,512
Deferred Inflows of Resources 244380 562,296 29,078 42911 273,458 605,207
Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 1,534,319 1,764,526 3,505,882 3,445,879 5,040,201 5,210,405
Restricted 937,764 745,852 306,057 212,681 1,243,821 958,533
Unrestricted Deficit (2,834,000) (2,360,730) (157,917) (157,324) (2,991,917) (2,518,054)

Total Net Position ~ $ (361917)  § 149,648 § 3,654,022 § 3,501,236 $ 3,292,105 $ 3,650,884

The capital assets of the governmental activities increased by $52.2 million (1.4%) since
June 30, 2016. The increase is due largely to an increase in construction projects, specifically
continued school construction.

The decrease in governmental activities non-capital assets is due to a decrease in cash and
investments with increased general government expenditures and increases in receivables for
taxes and federal grants.

The increase in governmental activities long-term liabilities outstanding of $713.6 million
(13.8%) is primarily due to an increase in the net pension liability of $300.0 million and an
increase in the other post-employment benefits liability, escheat liability and general obligation
bonds. At June 30, 2016, the long-term obligation for OPEB was $2,263.1 million, an increase
of $204.9 million (10.0%) from fiscal year 2015. The OPEB obligation will increase each year
as the State continues to defer full funding of its annual required contribution. In addition, the
escheat liability increased $215.0 million (122.9%) with more anticipated claims due to the
completion of a more automated claims process and general obligation long term debt increased
by $27.5 million (1.5%) from fiscal year 2015. The State’s debt as a percentage of the State’s
personal income was 7.1% in fiscal year 2016 and 6.8% for fiscal year 2015. The State’s debt
burden reflects its centralized role in financing facilities, such as schools and prisons.

Deferred outflows of resources are $194.9 million, an increase of $3.8 million (2%) and are
largely for the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred
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inflows of resources are $244.4 million, a decrease of $317.9 million (56.5%) and are mostly for
the differences between the projected and actual investment earnings on the pension plan assets.

The following condensed financial information is derived from the government-wide Statement
of Activities and reflects the changes in net position during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Position - Primary Government
For Year End June 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 546,975 $ 534,246 $ 1,321,399 $ 1,245,535 $ 1,868,374 $ 1,779,781
Operating Grants and
Contributions 2,196,373 2,076,241 202,900 234,092 2,399,273 2,310,333
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Personal Income Taxes 1,112,368 1,140,248 - - 1,112,368 1,140,248
Business Taxes 2,294,173 2,291,067 - - 2,294,173 2,291,067
Real Estate Taxes 573,968 552,215 - - 573,968 552,215
Other Taxes 244,526 224,842 - - 244,526 224,842
Investment Income (Loss) 12,584 10,511 6,726 2,213 19,310 12,724
Miscellaneous 16,694 13,654 - - 16,694 13,654
Total Revenues 6,997,661 6,843,024 1,531,025 1,481,840 8,528,686 8,324,864
Expenses:
General Government 906,593 572,708 - - 906,593 572,708
Health and Children's
Services 3,087,138 3,007,367 - - 3,087,138 3,007,367
Judicial and Public Safety 714,932 718,645 - - 714,932 718,645
Natural Resources and
Environmental Control 160,059 172,886 - - 160,059 172,886
Labor 74,766 73,155 - - 74,766 73,155
Education 2,722,666 2,612,590 - - 2,722,666 2,612,590
Interest Expense 91,894 60,557 - - 91,894 60,557
Lottery - - 382,424 358,907 382,424 358,907
Transportation/DelDOT - - 682,364 624,452 682,364 624,452
Unemployment - - 64,629 68,699 64,629 68,699
Total Expenses 7,758,048 7,217,908 1,129,417 1,052,058 8,887,465 8,269,966
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Before Transfers (760,387) (374,884) 401,608 429,782 (358,779) 54,898
Transfers 248,822 249,896 (248,822) (249.,896) - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (511,565) (124,988) 152,786 179,886 (358,779) 54,898
Net Position - Beginning of
Year 149,648 274,636 3,501,236 3,321,350 3,650,884 3,595,986
Net Position - End of Year $ (361,917) $ 149,648 $ 3,654,022 $ 3,501,236 $ 3,292,105 $ 3,650,884

Governmental Activities

Since fiscal year 2015, the net position for governmental activities has decreased by $511.6
million. A comparison of the cost of services by function for the State’s governmental activities
is shown in the following chart, along with the revenues used to cover the net expenses of the
governmental activities. Key elements of the decrease in the State’s net position from
governmental activities are as follows:

Total general revenues of governmental activities increased overall by $21.8 million (0.5%)
relating primarily to decreases in personal income taxes of $27.9 million (2.4%), increases in
business and other taxes of $3.1 million (0.1%), increases in real estate taxes of $21.8 million
(3.9%), and increases in other taxes of $19.7 million (8.8%). The decrease in personal income
tax revenues was attributable to an increase in refunds in the current fiscal year, offsetting the
actual increase in collections and the increase in business taxes was due to increases in franchise,
gross receipts and other taxes as a result of increased business operations and sales offset by
decreases in corporate income taxes due to lower business profits decreasing collections and
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increasing refunds. The increase in real estate tax revenues is the result of increased millage rates
along with increased assessments from new construction due to new developments.

Program revenues increased by $132.8 million (5.1%) from the prior year due to an increase in
operating grants of $120.1 million (5.8%). Health and Children’s Services received additional
funding of $132.9 million (7.9%) due largely to increased Medicaid funds. Charges for services
increased $12.7 million (2.4%) due largely to increases in fines and fees.

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Miscellaneous
2% Personal Income Tax

15.9%

Operating Grants and
Contributions
31.4%

Other Taxes
3.5%

Charges for Services

7.8% Business Taxes

32.8%
Investment Earning Real Estate Taxes

2% 8.2%

Expenses for governmental activities, not including interest on long-term debt, increased
during fiscal year 2016 by $508.8 million (7.1%). The increase in governmental activities is
due to the increased spending of $110.1 million (4.2%) for Education, $79.8 million (2.7%)
for Health and Children’s Services and $333.9 million (58.3%) for General Government.
Expenses decreased for DNREC by $12.8 million (7.4%). Health and Children’s Services
increased as a result of a general increase in the population served including increases in
Medicaid along with rising health care costs. Education increased due to additional costs for
salaries and benefits as the student population continues to increase. General Government
expenses increased as a result of changes in the pension and escheat liabilities resulting in an
additional $100.0 million and $215.0 million, respectively in expenses as well as continued
increases in health care and other related benefits of more than $12.0 million. DNREC
decreased due to lower costs for pollution remediation and contracted costs.

10
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Expenses and Program Revenues- Governmental Activities

(Expressed in Thousands)
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Business-type Activities

The net position for business-type activities increased by $152.8 million (4.4%) in fiscal
year 2016. This increase is comprised of a $102.9 million (3.0%) increase in net position
for DelDOT plus a $49.9 million (83.9%) increase in the Unemployment Insurance Trust
Fund.

The increase of $49.9 million in fiscal year 2016 compared to an increase of $64.7 million
in fiscal year 2015 for the Delaware Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund net position is
due to decreases in the State unemployment taxes. The operating revenues decreased by
$19.1 million (14.6%) with the decrease in taxes collected and operating expenses
decreased by $3.9 million (5.7%) due to decreases in unemployment benefits paid. Both
decreases are a result of continued improvements in the economy with less individuals
unemployed and collecting benefits.

DelDOT’s net position at June 30, 2016 increased by $102.9 million from June 30, 2015.
Change in net position decreased from $115.2 million in fiscal year 2015 to $102.9 million
in fiscal year 2016. DelDOT’s total operating revenues increased by $61.6 million (12.0%)
while operating expenses increased by $55.3 million (9.2%). The change in revenue is
primarily attributable to an increase in toll revenues with increased travel and increased
motor vehicles revenues and motor fuel taxes. The increase in operating expenditures is
primarily a result of increases in professional fees for planning projects and paving and
rehabilitation of roads. Total capital assets (net of depreciation) increased $81.4 million to
$4,402.7 million during fiscal year 2016 primarily due to the completion of road projects
and equipment purchases.

There was no change in the Lottery’s net position. By law, the Lottery’s net position cannot
exceed $1.0 million. The overall lottery revenue increased $33.4 million (5.6%). The most
significant increases were the instant games with an increase of $11.3 million due in part to
a new higher price point ticket and the Powerball tickets with an increase of $9.6 million

11
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based on larger jackpots. In addition video net proceeds increased $3.3 million, table
games increased $2.5 million and the sports lottery and keno increased $2.8 million.

The Lottery transferred $252.9 million in gaming revenues to the State, an increase of $9.9
million (4.1%). The total cost of sales and prizes increased by $23.4 million (6.7%) largely
due to an increase in prizes of $17.5 million based on the increase in instant ticket prizes in
addition to an increase in cost of sales due to higher commissions paid and increased
vendor fees.

Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

Operating and Capital
Grants and Contributions
13.7%

Charges for Services
86.3%

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds

As noted earlier, the State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
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Governmental Funds

The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of available resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State’s
financing requirements. Unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources at the end of the fiscal year.

Fund balance classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
the governmental funds. This is further described in note 1 and note 18 of the basic financial
statements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $1,627.1 million, a decrease of $347.9 million over the prior year fund
balance.

Of this amount, $32.1 million is nonspendable (2.0%), either due to its form or legal constraints,
$937.7 million (57.6%) is restricted for specific programs by external constraints and $183.3
million (11.3%) is committed for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal
action of the Delaware Legislature. An additional $83.6 million (5.1%) has been assigned to
specific purposes by management. The remaining $390.4 million (24.0%) of fund balance is
unassigned.

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the operation and administration of the State. The fund balance
decreased by $329.7 million for the fiscal year.

Total General Fund revenues increased by $24.0 million (0.6%) which was due to several
factors. Personal income taxes decreased by $27.9 million, which was due to increased personal
tax refunds. This decrease was offset by increased business taxes of $3.1 million due to an
increase in franchise, gross receipts and other taxes offset by decreased corporate income taxes.
In addition, other tax revenue, rentals and sales and other revenue increased by $19.7 million,
$8.2 million and $18.0 million, respectively.

Total General Fund expenditures increased by $361.5 million (7.7%). This was primarily due to
increases in General Government of $255.1 million and Education of $90.7 million. The increase
in expenditures for General Government was in large part due to an increase in the expenses for
the escheat related to the increased liability and ongoing additional claims with the
improvements in the claims process. Education increases were the result of additional salaries
and benefits to serve a rising student population.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $390.4
million with total fund balance of $898.9 million.



State of Delaware Management’s Discussion and Analysis, June 30, 2016

Federal Funds

Federal Funds represent pass through grants used for designated purposes. These funds report
federal grant revenues and the related expenditures to support the State’s grant programs. Total
federal fund revenues and expenditures increased by $121.2 and $109.2 million, respectively.
Revenues and expenditures increased for Health and Children’s Service by $132.6 and $110.6
million, respectively due largely to increased services including Medicaid.

Local School District Funds

These funds are used to account for activities relating to the State’s local school districts, which
are funded by locally raised real estate taxes and other revenues. The fund balance decreased by
$15.7 million to $268.8 million due to an increase in expenditures to serve the increasing student
population.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the construction and acquisition of capital assets of
the primary government. Capital outlay expenditures totaled $231.9 million in fiscal year 2016,
an increase of $31.8 million with additional projects underway for both educational institutions
and general government in fiscal year 2016.

Proprietary Funds

The State’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail. The Proprietary Fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Lottery, Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund and the DelDOT
Fund, all of which are considered to be part of the primary government and major funds of the
State.

Total Proprietary Fund net position increased in fiscal year 2016 by $152.8 million as a result of
operations. Pages 11-12 discuss the changes in net position of the business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Budgetary General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the fiscal
year, total fund balance increased by $30.8 million.

Revenues were $10.6 million (0.3%) less than the previous fiscal year. This was due to
decreases in the corporate income tax of $126.2 million (46.8%), offset by increases in personal
income tax of $36.2 million (2.9%), franchise fees of $27.6 million (4.1%), limited partnership
and LLCs of $24.5 million (10.0%), gross receipts of $7.8 million (3.5%) and cigarette taxes of
$9.5 million (9.3%). The $126.2 million decrease in corporate income tax was the result of
overall lower business profits decreasing receipts and increasing refunds, with one single
company refund claim increasing the normal year average refunds of $40 million to over $80
million.



State of Delaware Management’s Discussion and Analysis, June 30, 2016

Expenditures were $81.1 million (2.1%) more than the previous fiscal year. Salaries and wages
increased by $23.2 million (1.7%) and benefit costs increased by $50.7 million (12.6%), Grants-
in-Aid decreased by $13.5 million (3.7%), Medicaid costs increased by $6.6 million (1.0%),
contractual services increased by $1.6 million (0.3%) and supplies and materials decreased by
$1.1 million (1.6%).

The original budget authorizes current fiscal year operating and administrative expenditures.
Included in the final budget are the original budget, prior year encumbrances, multi-year project
budgetary carry-forwards from the prior fiscal years, and all modifications to the original budget.
The most significant components are the original budget and carry-forwards from the prior fiscal
year. The unused appropriations from a prior year will carry forward to the final budget for
authorized capital projects and grants until the funds are spent.

The significant budget expense variances from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015 are $13.7
million, $24.9 million and $62.7 million increases for Judicial, Health and Children’s Services,
and Education, respectively due to multi-year ongoing projects, and a $17.7 million decrease in
General Government as prior year projects were completed.

Funded projects, which are not completed by year-end, may carry over unspent funds into fiscal
year 2016. Unspent funds are reflected in the final budget which may cause variances from
original budget.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities, as of
June 30, 2016, amounted to $8,171.3 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles and equipment,
easements, roads, highways, and bridges. The total increase in capital assets for governmental
activities was $52.2 million (1.4%) and the increase for business-type activities was $81.4
million (1.9%).

Major capital asset changes during the current fiscal year included the following:
e The increase in business-type activities is due to increased spending at DelDOT for the
West Dover Connector, U.S. 301, Wilmington Riverfront/Christina River Bridge, S/R-
1/1-95 Interchange and truck and tractor purchases.

e The increase in governmental activities is due to a number of new projects begun in the
current year, especially for school projects.

As allowed by GASB, the State has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation
expense on selected infrastructure assets. Under this alternative method, referred to as the
modified approach, the State expenses certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not
report depreciation expense. Assets accounted for under the modified approach include 4,452
centerline miles and 842 bridges that the State is responsible to maintain with a total book value
of $3,823.2 million as of June 30, 2016.
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It is the State’s policy to maintain at least 85% of its highways at a fair or better condition level
and 75% of its bridge systems at a fair or better condition level. No more than 10% of bridges
and 15% of roads should be in substandard condition. The Department of Transportation is using
the "modified approach" for determining condition assessments on its roads and bridges. The
modified approach requires that the Department initially set a percentage benchmark for
maintaining the infrastructure in fair or better condition and report at least every three years on
their condition assessment.

Of the Department's 842 bridge structures that were rated in 2016, 71.9% received a good or
better BCR rating, 23.2% were rated fair, and 4.9% received a substandard rating. Of the
8,039,759 square feet of bridge deck that was rated, 70.9% received an OPC condition rating
of good or better, 24.1% received a fair rating, and 5.0% received a substandard deck rating.
The condition of bridges is measured using the “Bridge Condition Rating” (BCR) which is
based on the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Coding Guide, “Recording and Coding
Guide for the Structure Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation’s Bridges.” The BCR uses a
measurement scale that is based on a condition index ranging from 0 to 9. For reporting
purposes, substandard bridges are classified as those with a rating of 4 or less. The good or
better condition bridges were taken as those with ratings of between 6 and 9. A rating of 5 is
considered fair.

The condition of the State’s road pavement is measured using the Overall Pavement Condition
(OPC) system, which is based on the extent and severity of various pavement distresses that are
visually observed. The OPC system uses a measurement scale that is based on a condition index
ranging from 0.0 for poor pavement to 5.0 for pavement in good condition. The State’s policy is
to maintain at least 85% of its highways at a fair or better condition level, which the State
exceeds.

The fiscal year 2016 estimate to maintain and preserve DelDOT’s infrastructure was $242.3
million, but the actual expenditures were $281.6 million, which is $39.3 million over the
estimate. The estimated expenditures represent annual budget or bond bill authorizations and the
actual expenditures represent the current year spending, which includes cumulative
authorizations.

Additional information on the State’s capital assets can be found in Note 1 on pages 46 - 47,
Note 14 on pages 91 - 93 and starting on page 130 in the Required Supplementary Information.

A summary of the State’s primary government’s capital assets, net of depreciation is as follows:
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State of Delaware Capital Assets as of June 30, 2016
Net of Depreciation
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Land $ 482,739 $ 475,937 $ 306,704 $ 298,948 $ 789,443 $ 774,885
Land Improvements 180,638 174,635 - - 180,638 174,635
Buildings 2,643,117 2,695,624 118,554 114,521 2,761,671 2,810,145
Easements 83,294 79,781 - - 83,294 79,781
Equipment, Vehicles and

Computer Software 103,283 91,700 138,571 130,518 241,854 222,218
Infrastructure - - 3,823,201 3,760,135 3,823,201 3,760,135
Construction-In-Progress 275,492 198,735 15,672 17,170 291,164 215,905

$3,768,563  $3.716,412  $4.402,702  $4,321,292  $8,171.265  $8,037,704

Long-Term Debt

The State uses general obligation debt to finance capital projects. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the State had total general obligation bond debt outstanding of $1,902.9 million backed by
the full faith and credit of the State. The State’s debt burden reflects its centralized role in
financing facilities, including school construction projects. As of June 30, 2016, $517.4 million,
or 27.2%, of the State’s outstanding debt was issued on behalf of local school districts. Local
school districts transferred $66.6 million of property tax revenue to the State to cover related
debt service during fiscal year 2016.

The State has no constitutional debt limits. However, in 1991, the State enacted legislation that
limits debt issuance with a three-part test as follows:

o A 5% test restricts new debt authorization to 5% of budgetary general fund revenue as
projected by the Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (DEFAC) in June
for the next fiscal year. Should actual revenue collections increase during the year, no
additional authorizations are made. For fiscal year 2016, debt authorization was limited
to $196.9 million.

o A 15% test restricts debt issuance if the annual payments on all outstanding debt exceed
15% of estimated budgetary general fund and Transportation Trust Fund Revenue for the
next fiscal year. Currently, these annual payments represent approximately 8% of
estimated general fund and Transportation Trust Fund revenues.

¢ Finally, a cash balance test restricts debt issuance if the debt service payment in any year
exceeds the estimated cumulative cash balance for the following fiscal year. For fiscal
year 2016, the projected cash balance exceeded debt service.

Due to the State’s statutory debt limits and its fiscal management, three principal rating agencies,
Moody’s Investor’s Service, Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor’s, reaffirmed their triple-A
ratings on the State’s general obligation bonds during fiscal year 2016. On March 16, 2016, the
State issued $236.1 million of general obligation bonds maturing between March 1, 2017 and
March 1, 2036. The bonds bear coupon rates of between 2% and 5% and yield between 0.49%
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and 3.17%. Proceeds were used to fund various capital projects as authorized by the General
Assembly and the remaining portion will be applied to an advance refunding of general
obligation bonds. On June 30, 2016, the State issued $85.5 million of general obligation bonds
maturing between July 1, 2017 and July 1, 2031. The bonds bear coupon rates of between 2%
and 5% and yield between 0.62% and 2.06%. Proceeds were used for an advance refunding of
general obligation bonds.

In addition, the Sustainable Energy Ultility, Inc. (SEU) had $49.9 million of Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011 outstanding as of June 30, 2016. These bonds were used to support general
government initiatives and have been used to finance construction on energy efficient upgrades
to facilities in the State. As such, that debt is reflected in the primary government statements as
governmental activities. The bonds are secured by appropriations of the state organizations that
are participating in the SEU program, but are not an obligation of the State.

Debt issued by the Delaware Transportation Authority does not constitute a debt of the State or a
pledge of its general taxing power or of its full faith and credit. Rather, the outstanding revenue
bonds are obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge and
assignment of certain tolls and revenues such as motor fuel tax revenues, motor vehicle
document fees and motor vehicle registrations. The Authority issued its U.S. 301 Project
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Sr. 301 Bonds) in an aggregate principal amount of $212.5 million.
Proceeds of the Sr. 301 Bonds will be used to finance the costs of the construction of the new
U.S. 301. The Sr. 301 Bonds are secured by the revenues generated from the new U.S. 301 toll
road as well as by a subordinate lien on the pledged revenues of the Transportation Trust Fund.
The Authority also issued $181.5 million of Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds,
Series 2016 to provide for an advance refunding of previously issued bonds. The Delaware
Transportation Authority has revenue bonds outstanding of $986.3 million to support its ongoing
capital transportation program which includes $79.6 million in Grant Anticipation Vehicle Bonds
(GARVEE:), to finance a portion of the costs of completing the final design and right-of-way
acquisition for a new U.S. 301.

Additional information on the State of Delaware’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 7, 8 and
9 on pages 74 - 88 of this report.

Financial Management

The State’s financial management continues to be recognized by the premier credit rating from
all three principal rating agencies: Aaa from Moody’s Investor’s Service, AAA from Fitch
Ratings and AAA from Standard & Poor’s. The ratings reflect Delaware’s financial management
practices that have become institutionalized within the State:

e Expenditure budgeting of 98% of available budgetary general fund revenue;
e Budgetary general fund revenue forecasts that are frequent, objective and often
conservative;
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e Three-part debt affordability test that limits debt authorization to 5% of budgetary general
fund revenue; debt service to 15% of tax supported revenue; and the cash balance test;

e Consistent satisfaction of the State’s budget reserve requirement — the State’s rainy day
fund has never fallen below its mandated 5% of general fund revenue; and

e Adequate funding of its pension plan.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

DEFAC met on June 20, 2016 to prepare the final revenue and expenditure estimates upon which
the fiscal year 2017 operating and capital budgets would be based. Forecasters suggest moderate
growth with employment growth exceeding the expected national growth. Tax policy and
accounting changes are favorable for fiscal 2017 revenue.

The fiscal year 2017 operating and capital budgets meet budgetary spending limitations imposed
by law. The fiscal year 2017 operating budget is $4,084.1 million, 4.5% more than fiscal year
2016 and was based on the fiscal 2017 revenue resolution passed by the General Assembly in the
amount of $4,048.4 million. The fiscal year 2017 operating budget included $12.7 million in
supplemental appropriations (historically in the form of cash allocated to the capital budget), a
decrease of 46.6% over the fiscal year 2016 budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the State’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to the
Department of Finance, Division of Accounting, 820 Silver Lake Boulevard, Suite 200, Silver
Lake Plaza, Dover, Delaware 19904 or visit our website at http://accounting.delaware.gov.

The State’s component units publish their own separately issued audited financial statements.
These statements may be obtained from their respective administrative offices.



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Receivables, Net
Interfund Balances
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Investments
Other Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Pooled Investments
Deposit on Hold with Trustee
Restricted Investments
Net Pension Asset
Net OPEB Asset
Other Restricted Assets
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
Advances from Federal Government
Net Pension Liability
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted For:
Debt Service
Federal and State Regulations
Bond Covenants
Unemployment Benefits
Other Purposes

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Discretely
Primary Government Presented
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ 28,873 $ 233,108 $ 261,981 $ 65,267
1,333,629 10,582 1,344,211 79,280
694,817 109,730 804,547 356,050
4,217 (4,217) - -
5,309 19,173 24,482 975
- - - 4,453
134,403 22,565 156,968 439,727
6,500 2,492 8,992 1,244
682,467 - 682,467 14,503
116 - 116 -
- 355,101 355,101 39,118
632 - 632 -
- - - 110
- - - 2,923
841,525 4,167,677 5,009,202 347,916
2,927,038 235,025 3,162,063 585,030
3,768,563 4,402,702 8,171,265 932,946
6,659,526 5,151,236 11,810,762 1,936,596
194,889 49,649 244,538 26,658
637,282 107,214 744,496 11,845
56,456 11,777 68,233 23,280
31,397 17,638 49,035 3,264
1,720 - 1,720 13,168
- 9,008 9,008 -
6,643 - 6,643 -
1,003,286 29,996 1,033,282 43,976
341,092 93,901 434,993 47,060
4,894,076 1,248,251 6,142,327 617,049
6,971,952 1,517,785 8,489,737 759,642
244,380 29,078 273,458 20,948
1,534,319 3,505,882 5,040,201 637,730
- 196,602 196,602 -
937,764 - 937,764 401,084
- - - 57,706
- 109,455 109,455 -
- - - 37,345
(2,834,000) (157,917) (2,991,917) 48,799
$ (361,917) $ 3,654,022 $ 3,292,105 $ 1,182,664

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Local School Capital Governmental
General Federal Districts Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,318 $ 246 $ 11,309 $ - $ 28,873
Cash and Pooled Investments 1,543,164 - 281,569 191,363 2,016,096
Deposit on Hold with Trustee 116 - - - 116
Investments 134,261 - 142 - 134,403
Accounts Receivable, Net 63,432 11,084 169 - 74,685
Taxes Receivable, Net 103,600 - 39,448 - 143,048
Intergovernmental
Receivables, Net - 166,406 - - 166,406
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net 28,989 281,689 - - 310,678
Due from Other Funds 36,397 - - - 36,397
Inventories 5,309 - - - 5,309
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,932,586 $ 459,425 $ 332,637 $ 191,363 $ 2,916,011
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 452,550 $ 145,017 $ 26,120 $ 13,595 $ 637,282
Accrued Liabilities 56,456 - - - 56,456
Other Liabilities 1,959 - - - 1,959
Escheat Liability 390,000 - - - 390,000
Due to Other Funds 16,763 15,417 - - 32,180
Advances from Federal Government - 6,643 - - 6,643
Unearned Revenue 1,720 - - - 1,720
Total Liabilities 919,448 167,077 26,120 13,595 1,126,240
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 114,249 10,659 37,745 - 162,653
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 32,115 - - - 32,115
Restricted 209,535 281,689 268,772 177,768 937,764
Committed 183,294 - - - 183,294
Assigned 83,559 - - - 83,559
Unassigned 390,386 - - - 390,386
Total Fund Balances 898,889 281,689 268,772 177,768 1,627,118
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCE $ 1,932,586 $ 459,425 $ 332,637 $ 191,363 $ 2,916,011

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 22



STATE OF DELAWARE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 1,627,118

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Other assets held for sale which are not financial
resources therefore are not reported in the funds 6,500

Net pension asset available to fund future pension obligations 632
Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These assets consist of:

Land 482,739
Land Improvements 180,638
Buildings 2,643,117
Easements 83,294
Equipment, Vehicles and Software 103,283
Construction in Progress 275,492
3,768,563
Deferred outflows of resources related to the pension contribution,
changes in proportion, and investment differences 194,889
Deferred inflows of resources related to:
Revenues that will be collected after year-end, but are not
available to pay for the current period's expenditures 162,653
Pension investment differences and changes in proportion (208,219)
Deferred gains on refunding of bonds (36,161)
(81,727)
Certain liabilities net of related assets are not due and payable in the
current period and are not reported in the fund balance sheet. These
liabilities consist of:
Interest Payable (31,397)
Claims and Judgments (Current and Long-term) (175,838)
Compensated Absences (Current and Long-term) (170,915)
Other Post Employment Benefits (2,263,111)
Pollution Remediation Obligations (Current and Long-term) (32,044)
Notes Payable (25,939)
Net Pension Liability (1,003,286)
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Related Accounts (2,172,145)
Other Long-term Obligations (3,217)
(5,877,892)
Total Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (361,917)

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



Revenues
Personal Taxes
Business Taxes
Other Tax Revenue
Licenses, Fees, Permits and Fines
Rentals and Sales
Grants
Interest and Other Investment Income
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Health and Children's Services
Judicial and Public Safety
Natural Resources and
Environmental Control
Labor
Education
Unrestricted Payments to
Component Unit - Education

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Costs of Issuance of Debt

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Sources (Uses) of
Financial Resources
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Issuance of General
Obligation Bonds

Payment to Refunding Escrow Agent

Premiums on Bond Sales
Total Other Sources
(Uses) of Financial

Resources

Net Change in Fund
Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Local School Capital Governmental

General Federal District Fund Projects Funds
$ 1,112,368 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,112,368
2,293,182 - - - 2,293,182
244,524 - 574,960 - 819,484
374,282 - 670 - 374,952
120,006 - 7,765 - 127,771
51,129 2,139,813 5,492 - 2,196,434
9,608 - 2,948 - 12,556
162,824 - 6,745 - 169,569
4,367,923 2,139,813 598,580 - 7,106,316
858,891 14,343 - - 873,234
1,408,459 1,733,674 - - 3,142,133
639,648 30,992 - - 670,640
129,057 28,127 - - 157,184
35,034 36,998 - - 72,032
1,577,104 231,352 526,673 - 2,335,129
141,354 - 44,646 - 186,000
- - - 231,863 231,863
172,771 - - - 172,771
86,905 - - - 86,905
881 - - - 881
5,050,104 2,075,486 571,319 231,863 7,928,772
(682,181) 64,327 27,261 (231,863) (822,456)
525,277 - 77,861 - 603,138
(25,073) (59,986) (120,775) (148,482) (354,316)
- - - 321,530 321,530
(147,740) - - - (147,740)
- - - 51,957 51,957
352,464 (59,986) (42,914) 225,005 474,569
(329,717) 4,341 (15,653) (6,858) (347,887)
1,228,606 277,348 284,425 184,626 1,975,005
$ 898,889 $§ 281,689 $ 268,772 § 177,768 $ 1,627,118

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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RECONCILIATION OF THE NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS TO CHANGE IN NET POSITION

STATE OF DELAWARE

OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Net Changes in Fund Balances

(Expressed in Thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital Outlays

Depreciation Expense

Loss on Disposal of Assets

Change in other assets held for sale which are not financial
resources therefore are not reported in the funds

Changes in revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources and are not reported as
revenues in the funds.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Components of the debt related adjustments consist of:
Debt Service Principal Repayments
Payment to Refunding Agent for Principal Repayments
New Debt Issued (Face Value)
Premium Received on General Obligation Bonds
Amortization of Premiums on Bonds
Current Year Gain on Refunding of Debt
Amortization of Gain on Refundings on Debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore, the changes in these liabilities are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Accrued Interest Expense

Claims and Judgments

Compensated Absences

Other Post Employment Benefits

Pollution Remediation Obligation

Net Pension Liability

Notes Payable

Other Liabilities

Change in Net Position in the Statement of Activities

190,214
(129,911)

(8,152)

171,360
125,710
(321,530)
(51,957)
28,433
(18,205)
1,984

4,829
(1,490)
(621)
(204,930)
3,141
37,118
1,338
(266)

(347,887)

52,151

(2,000)

11,257

(64,205)

(160,881)

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(511,565)
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ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Taxes Receivable, Net
Intergovernmental Receivables, Net
Interest Receivable
Inventories
Due from Other Funds
Other Assets
Investments:

Unrestricted

Restricted

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted

Other Assets

Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, Non-depreciable
Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Escrow Deposits
Interest Payable
Due to Other Funds
Pollution Remediation Obligation
Claims and Judgements
Compensated Absences
Revenue Bonds

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefits
Pollution Remediation Obligation
Claims and Judgements
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
Revenue Bonds

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Unemployment Benefits

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

STATE OF DELAWARE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total

$ 102,651 $ 4,347 126,110 $ 233,108
- 1,574 9,008 10,582
13,966 6,178 25,397 45,541
34,278 - - 34,278
- - 29,074 29,074

R - 837 837

- - 19,173 19,173

- 4,763 12,000 16,763

- - 176 176

- - 21,025 21,025

- 30 244,934 244,964
150,895 16,892 487,734 655,521
R - 1,540 1,540

- 20 110,117 110,137

- 2,316 - 2316

- - 4,167,677 4,167,677

- - 235,025 235,025

- - 4,402,702 4,402,702

- 2,336 4,514,359 4,516,695
150,895 19,228 5,002,093 5,172,216
- 242 49,407 49,649
26,440 4,704 76,070 107,214
- 4,924 6,853 11,777

- - 9,008 9,008

- - 17,638 17,638
15,000 1,502 4,478 20,980
- - 883 883

R - 4,155 4,155

- - 2,102 2,102

- - 86,761 86,761
41,440 11,130 207,948 260,518
- 3,758 236,247 240,005

R - 2,942 2,942

- - 6,897 6,897

- 2,335 - 2,335

- 911 29,085 29,996

R - 9,468 9,468

- - 986,604 986,604

- 7,004 1,271,243 1,278,247
41,440 18,134 1,479,191 1,538,765
- 336 28,742 29,078

- - 3,505,882 3,505,882

- - 196,602 196,602
109,455 - - 109,455
- 1,000 (158,917) (157,917)

$ 109,455 $ 1,000 3,543,567 $ 3,654,022

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total
Operating Revenues:
Unemployment Taxes-State Funded $ 112,053  $ - - 112,053
Gaming Revenue - 635,289 - 635,289
Pledged Revenues:
Turnpike Revenue - - 132,517 132,517
Motor Vehicle and Related Revenue - - 324,652 324,652
Turnpike Revenue - - 59,814 59,814
Passenger Fares - - 18,286 18,286
Miscellaneous - - 37,197 37,197
Total Operating Revenues 112,053 635,289 572,466 1,319,808
Operating Expenses:
Unemployment Benefits - State Funded 63,611 - - 63,611
Unemployment Benefits - Federal Funded 1,018 - - 1,018
Cost of Sales - 244,186 - 244,186
Prizes - 126,504 - 126,504
Transportation - - 628,624 628,624
Depreciation - - 27,608 27,608
General and Administrative - 10,734 - 10,734
Total Operating Expenses 64,629 381,424 656,232 1,102,285
Operating Income (Loss) 47,424 253,865 (83,766) 217,523
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 1,690 - 5,036 6,726
Interest Expense - - (26,132) (26,132)
Grants 830 - 202,070 202,900
Other Revenue - - 1,591 1,591
Contributions to Thoroughbred Program - (1,000) - (1,000)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) 2,520 (1,000) 182,565 184,085
Income Before Transfers 49,944 252,865 98,799 401,608
Transfers In - - 14,168 14,168
Transfers Out - (252,865) (10,125) (262,990)
Increase in Net Position 49,944 - 102,842 152,786
Net Position - Beginning 59,511 1,000 3,440,725 3,501,236
Net Position - Ending $ 109,455 $ 1,000 3,543,567 3,654,022

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from Employers $ 107,952 $ - N - $ 107,952
Receipts from Customers and Users - 642,406 566,122 1,208,528
Other Operating Receipts - - 2,540 2,540
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services - (46,348) (405,195) (451,543)
Payments to Employees for Services - (5,843) (180,623) (186,466)
Payments for Insurance Claims (61,293) - (6,649) (67,942)
Payments for Prizes - (128,383) - (128,383)
Payment for Commissions - (205,101) - (205,101)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 46,659 256,731 (23,805) 279,585

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Receipts from Federal Government 830 - 7,672 8,502

Receipts from Other Grants - - 2,483 2,483
Payment on Other Grants - (1,000) (5,375) (6,375)
Interest Paid on Advances (25) - - (25)
Transfers In 25 - 14,168 14,193
Transfers Out - (252,973) (10,125) (263,098)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 830 (253,973) 8,823 (244,320)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital Grants - - 195,433 195,433
Purchases of Capital Assets - - (104,076) (104,076)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt - - (72,580) (72,580)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt - - (45,300) (45,300)
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt - - 450,953 450,953
Debt Refunding Paid to Escrow Agent - - (217,322) (217,322)
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities - - 207,108 207,108
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Investment Revenues 1,690 - 5,198 6,888
Collection on Bad Debt - - 960 960
Escrow Deposits Received - - 3) 3)
Purchase of Investments - - (3,397,324) (3,397,324)
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments - 30 3,260,405 3,260,435
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 1,690 30 (130,764) (129,044)
Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments 49,179 2,788 61,362 113,329
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments- Beginning of Year 53,472 3,133 73,756 130,361
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments - End of Year $ 102,651 $ 5,921 $ 135,118 $ 243,690

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 47,424 $ 253,865 $ (83,766) $ 217,523
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense - - 27,608 27,608
Effect of Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (4,101) 7,117 (4,872) (1,856)
Inventories - - (1,521) (1,521)
Prepaid Items - - 35 35
Net Pension Adjustment - - (1,436) (1,436)
Due to/from General Fund - - (3,792) (3,792)
Accounts and Other Payables (2,570) (2,372) 19,947 15,005
Accrued Liabilities 5,906 - 1,221 7,127
Accrued Expenses - (1,879) - (1,879)
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses - - 979 979
Post-Employment Benefits - - 21,792 21,792
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities S 46,659 $ 256,731 S (23,805) $ 279,585

Schedule of Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In N (25) $ - S - N (25)
Transfers Out - 108 - 108

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment
Pension Trust OPEB Trust Trust Agency
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 240,086 $ 5,326 $ 1,636 $ 28,609
Cash and Pooled Investments 460 18,826 - 81,137
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 14,179 1 68 -
Investment Sales Pending 29,335 - 168 -
Employer Contributions 13,198 10,567 - -
Member Contributions 4,162 47 - -
Other Receivables - - - 28,400
Investments, at Fair Value:
Domestic Fixed Income 772,212 117,489 10,068 -
Domestic Equities 1,913,957 113,795 16,416 -
Pooled Equity and Fixed Income 3,268,875 - 18,582 -
Alternative Investments 1,959,309 - 11,196 -
Short Term Investments - - - 1,795
Foreign Fixed Income 152,937 - 874 -
Foreign Equities 466,643 58,850 5,500 -
Total Assets 8,835,353 324,901 64,508 $ 139,941
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - - - 3 -
Investment Purchase Payable 7,345 - 42 -
Benefits/Claims Payable 1,310 14,910 - -
Accrued Investment Expense 4,542 16 26 -
Accrued Administrative Expenses 296 - - -
Funds Held in Escrow - - - 139,941
Total Liabilities 13,493 14,926 68 $ 139,941
Net Position:
Net Position Restricted for Pensions 8,821,860 - -
Net Position Held in Trust for OPEB Benefits - 309,975 -
Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Participants - - 64,440
Total Net Position $ 8,821,860 $ 309,975 $ 64,440

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment
Pension Trust OPEB Trust Trust
Additions:
Contributions:
Employer Contributions $ 279,436 S 217,658 -
Transfer of Contributions from Post-Retirement Increase Fund 39,808 - -
Transfer of Assets from Outside the System 3,156 154 785
Member Contributions 70,331 9,575 -
Other 4 - -
Total Contributions 392,735 227387 785
Investments:
Investment Earnings 132,946 6,411 1,061
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (260,811) (1,873) (1,548)
Total Investment Earnings (Loss) (127,865) 4,538 (487)
Less Investment Manager/Advisor/Custody Fees (22,196) (100) (130)
Less Investment Administrative Expenses (682) - -
Net Investment Earnings (Loss) (150,743) 4,438 (617)
Securities Lending Income 867 - 3
Securities Lending Expense (130) - -
Total Net Securities Lending Income 737 - 3
Total Additions 242,729 231,825 171
Deductions:
Transfer of Assets from Post-Retirement Increase Fund 39,808 - -
Transfer of Assets from Outside the System 8,794 - 1,117
Pension/Claim Payments 609,151 234,230 -
Refunds of Contributions to Members 5,398 - -
Burial Benefit Payments 5,990 - -
Administrative Expenses 6,330 31 1
Total Deductions 675,471 234,261 1,118
Change in Net Position (432,742) (2,436) (947)
Net Position - Beginning 9,254,602 312,411 65,387
Net Position - Ending $ 8,821,860 $ 309,975 64,440
See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Accounts and Other Receivables, Net
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Investments
Other Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Investments
Net OPEB Asset
Other Restricted Assets
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets - Depreciable, Net

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue
Net Pension Liability
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Federal and State Regulations
Bond Covenants
Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

STATE OF DELAWARE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Delaware
Agricultural
Delaware Diamond State Riverfront Delaware Lands
State Housing Port Development State Delaware Preservation
Authority Corporation Corporation University Charter Schools Foundation Total

S 49,510 S 10,155 $ 570 S 3,488 $ 1,544 $ - $ 65,267
20,364 - 5 8,036 47,023 3,852 79,280
59,559 2,404 1,170 11,644 3,034 168 77,979
269,799 - 1,946 - - 6,326 278,071

- 975 - - - - 975

3,743 304 53 - 353 - 4,453
425,618 - - 13,072 1,037 - 439,727

- - 367 8 869 - 1,244

840 3,082 - 4,162 6,419 - 14,503

- 17,672 - 21,446 - - 39,118

110 - - - - - 110

- - - 2,923 - - 2,923

4,204 51,362 18,211 7,520 33,032 233,587 347916

10,431 136,427 89,751 229,789 118,631 1 585,030
14,635 187,789 107,962 237,309 151,663 233,588 932,946
844,178 222,381 112,073 302,088 211,942 243,934 1,936,596

270 2,552 60 11,133 12,627 16 26,658

959 167 727 5231 4,753 8 11,845

5 3,075 480 2911 16,791 18 23,280

- 137 - 1,264 1,863 - 3,264

11,468 35 72 1,563 30 - 13,168

308 5,351 1 16,953 21,332 31 43,976

7,625 1,879 3911 4214 29,431 - 47,060
342,209 19,678 12,577 124,461 118,124 - 617,049
362,574 30,322 17,768 156,597 192,324 57 759,642

488 579 43 12,547 7,279 12 20,948

14,635 166,366 91,475 121,946 9,720 233,588 637,730
369,951 20,754 - 86 - 10,293 401,084
57,706 - - - - - 57,706
4,714 - - 22,321 10,310 - 37,345
34,380 6,912 2,847 (276) 4,936 - 48,799

$ 481,386 S 194,032 $ 94,322 S 144,077 $ 24,966 $ 243,881 $ 1,182,664
See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 31
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State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Delaware (the State) have been prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

(a) Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the State’s primary government and include
all funds, offices of elected officials, departments and organizations, bureaus, boards,
commissions, and authorities that comprise the State’s legal entity. Also included in the
State’s primary government are the State’s 16 local school districts and 3 vo-tech schools
(collectively referred to as the local school districts). The local school districts have
separately elected boards, but they have not been specifically granted power by legislation to
be legally separate. Based on the powers and authority granted in Title 14 of the State of
Delaware code, the primary government holds sufficient power and responsibility that the
local school districts have been accounted for as not being legally separate and as a result
have been reported in the primary government. The financial activity of the local school
districts is reported in the General Fund, Local School District Fund (for real estate taxes
levied by the Schools), Federal Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund.

The Delaware Technical and Community College (DTCC) was established by 14 Del. C. 91
as a state organization to operate or make available public institutions of learning for persons
who have graduated from high school or who are unable to attend public high schools and
offer a 2-year college parallel program or associate degree program. The Governor with the
consent of the Senate appoints all seven members of the Board of Trustees. DTCC is
considered part of the primary government and its activity is shown in the Education function
in the General Fund, Federal Fund and Capital Projects Fund of the primary government.

The DelDOT enterprise fund is also included in the reporting entity of the primary
government. DelDOT has the overall responsibility for coordinating and developing
transportation policies for the state along with the maintenance and operation of roadways
and bridges that fall under its jurisdiction. To assist DelDOT in their mission, the State and
DelDOT created the Delaware Transportation Authority (the Authority), which includes the
activities of the Transportation Trust Fund (the Trust Fund) and the Delaware Transit
Corporation (DTC). The Authority is a body politic and corporate whose actions are
overseen by the Secretary of Transportation, the Director of the Office of Management and
Budget, and the Administrator of the Trust Fund. The Authority’s principal role is to provide
financing to DelDOT and as a result is a blended component unit of DelDOT.

Fiduciary funds, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the State’s
operations. The State’s reporting entity also comprises its component units, entities for which
the State is considered either financially accountable or the nature and the significance of
their relationship with the State are such that exclusion would cause the State’s financial
statements to be misleading. Blended component units are reported within the primary
government. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the
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State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

government-wide financial statements (see note below for description) to emphasize that
such are legally separate from the State.

The decision to include and how to report a component unit in the State’s reporting entity is
based on several criteria, including legal standing, debt responsibility, fiscal dependency, and
financial accountability. The State is financially accountable for legally separate
organizations if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board and (1) it is able to
impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State. The State
may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the State and
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to or impose specific
financial burdens on the State, regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected
governing board, a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly
appointed board.

Blended Component Units

The Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (DPERS) is a public employee
retirement system, which covers substantially all State employees. The DPERS is a legally
separate entity. DPERS’ Board is comprised of five members appointed by the Governor
and confirmed by the State Senate, plus two ex-officio members. It provides services and
benefits almost exclusively to the primary government, and it is considered a blended
fiduciary fund component unit and is shown in the financial statements as part of the primary
government as a pension trust fund. The financial report of DPERS for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016 may be obtained by writing to the State Board of Pension Trustees and Office
of Pensions, McArdle Building, Suite 1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware
19904-2402.

The Delaware Other Post Employment Benefit Fund Trust (OPEB Trust) is a trust, which
provides retirement medical coverage to pensioners and their eligible dependents in the
State’s Employees’, Judiciary, New State Police, and Closed State Police Pension Plans. The
OPEB Trust is a legally separate entity and by legislative code the Board of DPERS serves as
the Board of the OPEB Trust. It provides services and benefits almost exclusively to the
primary government. The OPEB Trust is considered a blended fiduciary funds component
unit and is shown in the financial statements as part of the primary government as the OPEB
Trust Fund.

The Delaware Economic Development Authority (DEDA) was established by 29 Del. C. 50,
Subchapter IV as a legally separate entity to assist the State in the financing of citizens and
activities of exempt persons in order to contribute to the prosperity, health, and general
welfare of the citizens of the State by acting as the financing vehicle. DEDA is considered
to be a blended component unit due to the board being the same as the primary government.
It is funded almost exclusively by State appropriations and is under the direction of the
Governor appointed director who guides the operations of the State employees. It is reported
as part of the General Government in the General Fund of the primary government.
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State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

The Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. (SEU) is a legally separate 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organization, which was established to reduce energy waste and foster a sustainable energy
future for the State. The Governor appoints seven of the eleven members. It provides
benefits almost exclusively to the primary government by developing and coordinating
programs for the purpose of promoting sustainable use of energy by State departments and
organizations. The SEU is considered a blended component unit and is shown as part of the
Natural Resources and Environmental Control function in the General Fund of the primary
government.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The following component units are entities that are legally separate from the State, but are
financially accountable to the State for reporting purposes or whose relationship with the
State is such that exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements to be misleading.
The discretely presented component units’ column of the basic financial statements includes
the financial data of these entities. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30,
2016 fiscal year-end.

Complete financial statements for each of the discretely presented component units may be
obtained from their respective administrative offices.

Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

The Delaware State Housing Authority is a public corporation whose Director is appointed
by the Governor with the consent of the State Senate and serves at the Governor’s pleasure.
The DSHA is governed by the Council on Housing whose eleven members are appointed by
the Governor. The DSHA administers the role of providing affordable housing as a key
aspect of State policy. The State provides both General Fund appropriations and capital
funding to assist DSHA in its mission. Certain transactions of the DSHA require the
approval of the primary government. The DSHA is authorized, among other things, to (1)
make mortgage, construction and other loans to not-for-profit and limited for-profit housing
sponsors; (2) make loans to mortgage lenders, requiring the proceeds thereof to be used for
making newly qualified residential mortgage loans; (3) purchase qualified mortgage loans
from mortgage lenders; and (4) apply for and receive assistance and subsidies under
programs from the federal government and others.

Diamond State Port Corporation (DSPC)

The Diamond State Port Corporation was organized as a body corporate and politic
constituting a public instrumentality of the State. The DSPC is empowered to operate,
improve and maintain the Port of Wilmington and related facilities. The Governor appoints
eight of the fifteen members of the board of directors, with the advice and consent of the
Senate. Certain transactions of the DSPC require the approval of the primary government.
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Riverfront Development Corporation (RDC)

The Riverfront Development Corporation was formed to plan, develop and manage programs
and projects intended to foster economic development along the Brandywine and Christina
Rivers. The Governor appoints seven of the eighteen board members; however, seven of the
remaining eleven directors consist of the Governor and six State officials. Authorization by
the State’s Budget Director and Controller General is required before funds of the RDC may
be expended, which indicates imposition of will.

Delaware State University (DSU)

Delaware State University is a public institution of higher education. Funding is primarily
through State appropriations. State appropriations, without restrictions as to use by DSU are
reported in general revenue. Additional funding is derived from tuition, federal grants,
private donations and grants. The Board of Trustees is comprised of fifteen members, eight
appointed by the Governor of Delaware and seven elected by the Trustees. The President of
DSU and the Governor of the State of Delaware serve as ex-officio members of the Board.
Delaware State University financial data includes its component unit, the Delaware State
University Foundation, Inc. The State annually appropriates funding for DSU, which totaled
more than $35.2 million in fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, which is twenty seven percent
of DSU’s total revenues.

Delaware Charter Schools

The State’s 27 Charter Schools are public schools funded primarily through State
appropriations. Additional funding is derived from federal grants passed through from the
primary government, private donations and funds received from local school districts on a tax
portion per child basis. State funding for the Charter Schools totaled $150.8 million for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 which represents over eighty-six percent of the Charter
Schools’ total revenues. Each Charter School is a separate legal entity managed by its own
separate board of directors and operates independently under a charter granted by the State
Department of Education with the approval of the State Board of Education. Charters are
granted for an initial period of three years and renewable every five years thereafter. Charter
Schools issue their own debt but are dependent on the State for their primary funding.
Financial information for Delaware Charter Schools is presented in the aggregate as they are
individually immaterial to the State’s basic financial statements but each represents a
discretely presented component unit.

Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation (DALPF)

The Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation was established to provide
comprehensive agricultural lands preservation programs to serve the long-term needs of the
agriculture community and the citizens of Delaware. State appropriations fund DALPF for
their specific programs. DALPF is comprised of twelve trustees and the Governor of the
State of Delaware appoints ten of them. DALPF shall continue until its existence is
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terminated by law, whereby all of its rights, properties and liabilities shall pass to and be
assumed by the State.

Related Organizations

Organizations in which the State appoints the voting majority of the board but the State is not
financially accountable for the organizations are considered related organizations.

The Delaware Solid Waste Authority (DSWA) is a legally separate entity and the primary
government appoints all seven members of its governing board. The primary government’s
accountability for DSWA does not extend beyond making the appointments. The DSWA is
responsible for implementing solid waste disposal, recycling, and resource recovery systems,
facilities and services for the State of Delaware. The financial activities of DSWA are not
included in the State’s financial statements.

The Delaware Health Facilities Authority (DHFA) was established by 16 Del. C.92 for the
benefit of the people of the State, the increase of their commerce, welfare and prosperity and
the improvement of their health and living conditions and provides a measure of assistance
and an alternative method to enable facilities to provide structures needed to accomplish this
purpose. All of the seven members of the board are appointed by the Governor. The primary
government’s accountability for DHFA does not extend beyond making the appointments.
The financial activities of DHFA are not included in the State’s financial statements.

Complete financial statements for each of the related organizations may be obtained from
their respective administrative offices.

Jointly Governed Organization

The Delaware River and Bay Authority (DRBA), a body politic, was created with the
intention of advancing the economic growth and development of those areas in the State of
Delaware and the State of New Jersey, which border the Delaware River and Delaware Bay.
DRBA is governed by twelve commissioners: six appointed by the State of Delaware and six
appointed by the State of New Jersey. DRBA is autonomous from a day-to-day operations
perspective and neither State is obligated for the DRBA’s debt. DRBA is not included in the
basic financial statements as the State of Delaware has no ongoing financial interest or
financial responsibility. Complete financial statements for the DRBA may be obtained from
its administrative office.

Other Organization

The Governor appoints eight members of the governing board of the University of Delaware
(the University). The remaining twenty members are elected separately. Since the primary
government’s accountability does not extend beyond State grants to the University and there
is a lack of fiscal dependency, the financial activities of the University are not included in the
State’s basic financial statements.
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Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
primary government is separately presented from certain legally separate component units for
which the State is financially accountable.

The statement of net position measures not just current assets and liabilities, but also long-
term assets and liabilities such as capital assets (including infrastructure assets) and general
long-term debt. The difference between the State’s assets, deferred outflows of resources and
its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is its net position. Net position is displayed in
three components — net investment in capital assets (capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and related debt); restricted; and unrestricted. Net position is restricted when
constraints are placed that are either externally imposed or are imposed by constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, generally it is the State’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items properly excluded among program revenues are reported as
general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are
reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements.

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Agency funds reported as part of the fiduciary fund
financial statements are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations and,
therefore, do not have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied and
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other taxes are recognized when the transaction occurs. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the State’s
enterprise operations and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Intrafund non-exchange transactions between the primary government and component units
are reported as operating or capital grants as appropriate for restricted amounts. Unrestricted
amounts are reported as general revenue.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the State considers all revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to other long term liabilities including
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Taxes, grants, fees, sales, rents, and interest income associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period to the extent earned and available. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the State. Revenue
related to expenditure driven grants is recognized when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other requirements for recognition have been met.

Governmental Funds
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources obtained and used for those services traditionally provided by a state
government, which are not required to be accounted for in other funds. These services
include, among others, education, and health and social services.

Federal Fund — The Federal Fund accounts for all activities relating to the State’s federal
grant programs.

Local School District Fund — The Local School District Fund is used to account for
aggregate financial activity of the State’s local school districts that is funded by locally-
raised real estate taxes, interest, and minor miscellaneous revenue. All other financial activity
that is funded from sources, such as federal grant programs, major and minor capital project
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programs, and subsidized government programs are accounted for in the General Fund,
Federal Fund, and Capital Projects Fund.

Capital Projects Fund — Transactions related to resources obtained and used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds), are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Such
resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation bond issues, federal
grants, and transfers from the General Fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for those activities which are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises. The costs of providing services to the public
on a continuing basis are financed by or recovered primarily through user charges.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the unemployment fund are charges to employers for taxes
against wages. The principal operating revenues of the lottery fund and DelDOT fund are
charges to customers for sales and services.

The Lottery fund recognizes revenue from online games on the day of the drawing. Revenue
from the sale of instant tickets is recognized when the book has been activated and 85% of
the related prizes of an activated book are paid, 90 days from the date of activation, or when
the next pack of the same game is activated. Revenue from the video lottery and table games
is recognized, net of prizes paid, at the time the public plays the game. Revenue from the
sports lottery is also recognized at the time the public plays the game.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. For the unemployment fund,
expenses are payments of benefits to recipients. All expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating expenses.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:
DelDOT Fund — The DelDOT Fund accounts for the activities relating to the operation of the
State’s Department of Transportation, including the Delaware Transportation Authority,

which is comprised of the Transportation Trust Fund and Delaware Transit Corporation.

Unemployment Fund — The Unemployment Fund accounts for the activities relating to the
State’s Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund.

Lottery Fund — The Lottery Fund accounts for the activities relating to the State’s Lottery
program.
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Fiduciary Funds

The fiduciary funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity or as an agency
for other individuals or organizations. The fiduciary fund statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The State reports the following fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds — The Delaware Public Employees' Retirement System (DPERS) is a
public employee retirement system, which covers substantially all State employees. It
provides services and benefits almost exclusively to the primary government and it is
considered a fiduciary fund and is shown in the financial statements as part of the primary
government as a pension trust fund. Pension trust funds account for transactions, assets,
liabilities and net position available for plan benefits (Note 17). For pension trust funds,
employee contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the employee
services are performed. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

OPEB Trust Fund — The OPEB Trust Fund is a trust administered by DPERS. In addition to
providing pension benefits, the State is statutorily required to provide health insurance
coverage and survivor benefits for retired employees and their survivors. Substantially all of
the State’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement
age while working for the State. Health care benefits are provided through plans whose
premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The cost of providing post-
retirement benefits is shared between the State and the retired employee.

Investment Trust Funds — Investment Trust Funds are used to account for external investment
pools where a government commingles the monies of more than one legally separate entity
and invests, on the participants’ behalf, in an investment portfolio; one or more of the
participants is not part of the sponsor’s reporting entity. The Investment Trust Fund accounts
for the transactions, assets, liabilities and net position for the DPERS’s external investment
pool and for the OPEB Fund Investment Trust Fund.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of the
results of operations. They account for the receipt of various taxes, deposits, deductions, and
certain property collected by the State, acting in the capacity of an agent, and for the
distribution to other governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair
Value Measurement and Application. GASB Statement No. 72 improves financial reporting
by clarifying the definition of fair value for financial reporting purposes, establishing general
principles for measuring fair value, providing additional fair value application guidance, and
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enhancing disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement established general
principles for measuring fair value and standards of accounting and financial reporting for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The adoption of this statement resulted in the
$2.0 million write down of an asset held for sale to its appraised value and increased
financial statement disclosures through the addition of the fair value hierarchy.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 73,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the
Scope of GASB Statement No. 68 and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68. GASB Statement No. 73 improves the usefulness of information about pensions
included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local governments for
making decisions and assessing accountability. This Statement established requirements for
defined benefit pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of
providing those pensions. The requirements of this Statement extend the approach to
accounting and financial reporting established in Statement 68 to all pensions, with
modifications as necessary to reflect that for accounting and financial reporting purposes, any
assets accumulated for pensions that are provided through pension plans that are not
administered through trusts that meet the criteria specified in Statement 68 should not be
considered pension plan assets. The adoption of this statement required the State to disclose
additional information in the notes to the schedules included in the Required Supplementary
Information for investment policy changes for the pension plans.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 76, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.
This Statement redefined the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare
financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and
the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduced the GAAP hierarchy to
two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and
nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other
event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. Since the State has historically
utilized the established accounting principles followed by the technical standards and other
literature in preparation of its financial statements, the adoption of this statement had no
impact on the financial statements.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 79, Certain
External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. GASB Statement No. 79 addresses the
accounting and financial reporting implication for certain external investment pools and their
participants that result from changes in the regulatory provisions referenced by previous
accounting and financial reporting standards. It established accounting and financial
reporting standards for qualifying external investment pools that elect to measure their
investments at amortized cost and governments that participate in qualifying external
investment pools that measure their investments at amortized cost. The adoption of this
statement had no impact on the financial statements of the State.
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Impact of Future Accounting Pronouncements

In June of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74 Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is
to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other than pensions
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial
reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing
accountability. This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits
(pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.
This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent
Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The
State is currently evaluating the future impact of this statement.

In June of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting for state and local governments for
postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). It improves information provided by
state and local government employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by
other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as
amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting
requirements for OPEB plans. The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and
financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local government
employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2017. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this
statement.

In August of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures. The
objective of this Statement is to provide financial statement users with essential information
about the nature and magnitude of the reduction in tax revenues through tax abatement
programs in order to better assess whether current-year revenues were sufficient to pay for
current-year services, compliance with finance-related legal or contractual requirements,
where a government’s financial resources come from and how it uses them, and financial
position and economic condition and how they have changed over time. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2015. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.
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In December of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 78 Pensions Provided through
Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement
is to address an issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for defined benefit pensions provided to employees of state or local
governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan that is not a state or local governmental pension plan, is used to provide defined benefit
pensions both to employees of state or local government employers and to employees of
employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and has no predominant state
or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state and local
governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). The requirements
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2015. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In January of 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80 Blending Requirements for Certain
Component Units. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units.
This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement of component
units of all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a
component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government
is the sole corporate member. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of
this Statement.

In March of 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
establishing recognition and measurement requirements for irrevocable split-interest
agreements. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for
irrevocable split-interest agreements created through trusts or other legally enforceable
agreements with characteristics equivalent to irrevocable split-interest agreements where the
resources are for the unconditional benefit of the government and other beneficiaries. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15,2016. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In March of 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82 Pension Issues. The objective of this
Statement is to improve consistency in the application of pension accounting and financial
reporting requirements by addressing certain issues that have been raised with respect to
Statements No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statements 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This Statement addresses issues
regarding the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary
information, the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance
in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and the classification of
payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements.
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The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June
15,2016. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

(c) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
Cash Equivalents, Cash and Pooled Investments, and Investments

Cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, short-term money market securities, and other
deposits held by financial institutions, generally with original maturities of three months or
less at the time of purchase.

Cash and Pooled Investments consist of cash equivalents, commercial paper, certificates of
deposit, short-term (12 to 18 months) and long-term investments, which comprise corporate,
municipal and U.S. government obligations, held and managed by the State Treasurer.

Investment securities are stated at quoted market prices, except that investment securities
with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are stated at cost or
amortized cost.

All of the investment assets of the Pension and Investment Trust Funds, with the exception of
the Closed State Police Pension Plan (which is a pay-as-you-go plan) and the Delaware
Volunteer Firemen’s Fund (which is a length of service award plan), are pooled and invested
in a common Master Trust. Investments are presented at fair value or net asset value. Fair
values for fixed income and equity securities are determined by quoted market prices based
on national exchanges when available. Pooled investments are funds wherein the System
owns units or shares of commingled equity, fixed income, and cash funds. Pooled
investments are redeemable with the underlying funds at net asset values under the terms of
the partnership agreements and/or subscription agreements. Alternative investments are
ownership interests in investment limited partnerships or private LLCs, some of which may
be illiquid.

The valuation method for pooled and alternative investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value is such that the DPERS establishes fair value by using the net asset
value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent), such as member units or an ownership interest in
partners’ capital to which a proportionate share of net assets is attributed. These values are
calculated by the management of each investment fund as of DPERS’ measurement date,
generally in a manner consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
measurement principles for investment companies. The NAV received from each investment
fund are reviewed by DPERS management and its investment advisor; both management and
the custodian receive periodic and audited annual financial reports from the management of
each investment fund.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the
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current portion of interfund loans). All trade and property tax receivables, including those
for the component units, are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles and refunds.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when
purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the State’s policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. In the government-
wide financial statements, restricted net assets represent balances that are subject to external
restrictions or were created by enabling legislation.

The State has the following restricted assets:

e The Delaware Transportation Authority restricts revenue bond proceeds that are
accounted for in the Transportation Trust Fund.

e The Unemployment Fund restricts the entire net position for unemployment benefits.

e The governmental activities have funds that are required to be restricted as disclosed
in Note 18.

The discretely presented component units have the following restricted assets:

e Diamond State Port Corporation has restricted investments for capital project outlays.

e Delaware State University has restricted assets for capital projects, grants, and college
endowment funds.

e Delaware State Housing Authority has restricted assets used for the specific purpose
of housing development fund activities per enabling legislation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (which are
normally immovable and of value only to the State, such as roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary funds and discretely
presented component units.

Capital assets are defined by the State as assets with estimated useful lives in excess of one
year at the date of acquisition. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or
constructed, or estimated historical cost if the original cost is not determinable. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
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All land and buildings are capitalized, regardless of cost. Equipment and vehicles are
capitalized when the cost of individual items exceeds $25,000. Building and land
improvements are capitalized when the cost of the project exceeds $100,000. Infrastructure
and software are capitalized when the costs of individual items or projects exceed $1.0
million. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized, but rather expensed as incurred.

The State possesses certain capital assets that have not been capitalized and depreciated,
because the assets cannot be reasonably valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful
lives. These assets include works of art and historical treasures, such as statues, monuments,
historical documents, paintings, forts, miscellaneous State capitol-related artifacts and
furnishings. These assets are held for public exhibition, education or research in the
furtherance of public service rather than for financial gain; they are protected, kept
unencumbered, cared for and preserved; and they are subject to an organizational policy that
requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to acquire other items for
collections.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, plant, equipment, and software of the primary government and component units is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Primary Discretely Presented
Government Component Unit

Asset Years Years
Buildings and Building Improvements 10 - 40 15-175
Land Improvements 20 15-45
Furniture and Equipment 3-12 3-40
Vehicles 7 3-6

Software 5 5-10

The State has elected to use the modified approach to account for certain infrastructure
assets. Under this process, the State does not record depreciation expense nor are amounts
capitalized in connection with improvements to these assets, unless the improvements expand
the capacity or efficiency of an asset. Utilization of this approach requires the State to: 1)
commit to maintaining and preserving affected assets at or above a condition level
established by the State, 2) maintain an inventory of the assets and perform periodic
condition assessments to ensure that the condition level is being maintained, and 3) make
annual estimates of the amounts that must be expended to maintain and preserve assets at the
predetermined condition levels. Roads and bridges maintained by the Department of
Transportation are accounted for using the modified approach.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources are defined as consumption of net assets by the government

that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are defined as
acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.
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Deferred outflows increase net position, similar to assets and deferred inflows decrease net
position, similar to liabilities.

Advances from Federal Government

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the State has recorded an advance of $6.6 million for the
Delaware Economic Development Office (DEDO) federal State Small Business Credit
Initiative program.  This program supports lending to small businesses and small
manufacturers and will be expended as qualified applicants are approved for the program.
The advance amount is recorded in the Federal Fund.

Compensated Absences

It is the State’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. In the governmental fund financial statements, liabilities for compensated
absences are accrued when they are considered “due and payable” and recorded in the fund
only for separations or transfers that occur before year-end. In the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, the State has accrued a liability for compensated
absences, recognizing the obligation to make future payments.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System
(DPERS) and additions to/deductions from DPERS’ fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by DPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net
position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

Fund Equity

In governmental fund types, fund equity is called “fund balance.” Fund balances are reported
as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned as described in Note 18.
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The State Constitution provides that certain excess unencumbered budgetary general funds at
the end of a fiscal year must be placed in a reserve account (the Budgetary Reserve Account).
This account, designed to mitigate the operational impact of any future unanticipated deficits
may not exceed 5% of the estimated general fund revenue for the ensuing fiscal year. Total
funding of the budgetary reserve account was $214.7 million at June 30, 2016.

When resources meeting more than one of the classifications (excluding nonspendable) are
commingled in an account, assuming that expenditure meets the constraints of the
classification, the assumed order of spending is restricted first, committed second, assigned
third and finally unassigned.

In proprietary funds, fund equity is called net position. Net position is comprised of three
components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted as defined on page
38.

(d) Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental receivables when entitlement occurs. All other federal reimbursement type
grants are recorded as accounts receivable when the related expenditures or expenses are
recognized. Related revenue is recorded subject to availability in the governmental funds.

(e) Litigation Revenue

®

In 1997, several states began litigation against defendant tobacco product manufacturers to
recover certain amounts the states expended to provide health care to the users of tobacco
products. In 1998, a settlement was reached which provided that the states cease litigation
against the manufacturers. As part of the Master Settlement Agreement, certain
manufacturers agreed to remit periodic payments to the states until 2025. The State’s share of
the estimated $200 billion settlement amounted to $774.5 million. Amounts to be remitted
are calculated based on a variety of specific settlement provisions. Future tobacco product
sales are one key factor used in determining periodic payment amounts. A receivable of
$14.0 million has been recorded pursuant to the settlement. The Master Settlement agreement
receipts of $27.2 million are recorded in the general fund as part of other revenue and as
miscellaneous general revenue on the government-wide statement of activities. Expenditures
of monies received under the Master Settlement Agreement are authorized by legislation and
are dedicated to health care and related programs.

Management Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements. Estimates also
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affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Restatements

Net position of the Discretely Presented Components Units was restated from the fiscal year
2015 ending balance of $1,132.1 million to $1,134.1 million at the beginning of fiscal year 2016,
an increase of $2.0 million. Net position increased by $5.9 million due to the Delaware
Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation understatement of loans receivable of $2.8 million
and the implementation of GASB 72 for recording land easements at fair value in the amount of
$3.1 million. This increase was offset by a decrease of $3.9 million largely as a result of one of
the Charter Schools removing its component unit foundation from its reporting balances.

NOTE 2 CASH, INVESTMENTS AND RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash Management Policy and Investment Guidelines

The State Treasurer maintains the majority of the deposits and investments of the primary
government and uses professional money managers to invest the State's deposits according to
guidelines set in the Statement of Objectives and Guidelines for the Investment of State of
Delaware Funds (the Policy) by the State’s Cash Management Policy Board (the Board). The
Board, created by State law, establishes policies for, and the terms, conditions, and other matters
relating to, the investment of all money belonging to the State except money in DPERS and the
OPEB Trust and money held under the State deferred compensation program. By law, all
deposits and investments belonging to the State are under the control of the State Treasurer in
various pooled investment funds (State Investment Pool), except for those that, by specific
authority, are under the control of other agencies or component units, as determined by the
Board. The deposit and investment policies of those entities may differ from those of the State
Treasurer. Typically, these agencies follow the deposit and investment policies of the State
Treasurer in an effort to minimize deposit and investment risks.

As mandated by State statutes, the State’s funds shall be invested pursuant to the prudent person
standard as defined in the Policy. The prudent person standard allows the Board to establish
investment policies based on investment criteria that it defines, and it allows the Board to
delegate investment authority to investment professionals. This standard of care not only permits
but also encourages diversifying investments across various asset classes.

The objectives and guidelines, as outlined in the Policy, apply to all cash and special purpose
funds for which the State is financially accountable. These funds are categorized as outlined
below:

e (Cash Accounts - Cash accounts divide the State's available cash into three parts:

e Collection and Disbursement Accounts - The State maintains an amount of cash
in its general collection and disbursement accounts sufficient to meet its
outstanding obligations.
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Cash and Liquidity Accounts - The majority of the State's cash balance available
for investment is maintained in the cash and liquidity accounts. These accounts
are managed and invested by investment managers, selected by the Board through
competitive bid, in order to maximize the return to the State while, at the same
time, providing for safety of principal and sufficient liquidity for the State to meet
its cash needs. The State manages its short-term investments to ensure sufficient
liquidity and prevent their premature sale for the purpose of covering
expenditures. Short-term investments should mature at face value in sufficient
amounts to meet any needs.

Reserve Cash (Intermediate) Account - To the extent cash is not expected to be
needed on short notice, the Board directs the funding of a third part. This account
is managed and invested by an investment manager or managers, selected by the
Board after a competitive bid, in order to maximize the return on said money to
the State while providing for the safety of principal. The State manages its
intermediate investments to ensure such investments are made under
circumstances and in amounts in which the State would not be forced to liquidate
them at a loss.

e Special Purpose Accounts - There are two primary types of special purpose accounts:

Endowment Accounts — Endowment accounts consist of funds set-aside for
specified purposes.

Authority Accounts - The State's Authorities (state agencies, local school districts
and component units) maintain a variety of fund types, including various
operating funds, bond funds and debt service reserve funds.

The Policy specifies the types of investments these managers can make; the maximum
percentage of assets that may be invested in particular instruments; the minimum credit quality
of these investments; and the maximum length of time the assets can be invested. The Policy
provides, among other things, the percentage limits of the entire portfolio, ranging from 5% to
20% that may be invested in obligations of any one issuer, other than the U.S. Government
which has no restrictions. The following investments are permissible for all funds under the
review of the Board, subject to percentage limitations of the account:

U.S. Government securities

Government agency securities

Certificates of deposit, time deposits, and bankers acceptances
Corporate debt instruments

Repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements

Money market funds

Canadian treasury bills

Canadian agency securities
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities
Municipal obligations
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Additional permissible investments for special-purpose accounts only:

e (QGuaranteed investment contracts
e Asset-backed securities and trust certificates

The primary government’s accounts are categorized as “authority accounts”. At June 30, 2016,
investments of the primary government were primarily in commercial paper, corporate
obligations, government agency bonds and notes, and municipal obligations. All of these meet
the objectives defined by the Policy. The State’s Cash Management Policy Board Statement of
Objectives and Guidelines for the Investment of State of Delaware Funds is available by request
through the Office of the State Treasurer.

Risks

The following deposits and investments disclosure of the primary government excludes the
OPEB Trust and DPERS, which are described on pages 58 - 63.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside

party.

All State deposits are required by law to be collateralized by direct obligations of, or obligations,
which are guaranteed by, the United States of America, or other suitable obligations as
determined by the Board, unless the Board shall find such collateralization not in the best interest
of the State. The Board has determined that certificates of deposit and time deposits must be
collateralized, unless the bank issuing the certificate has assets of not less than $5 billion and is
rated not lower than "II" by Fitch, Inc. “Peer Group Rating”. The Board has also determined that
State demand deposits need not be collateralized, provided that any bank that holds these funds
has had for the last two years a return on average assets of 0.5% or greater and an average
equity-capital ratio of at least 1:20. If the bank does not meet the above criteria, collateral must
consist of one or more of the following:

U.S. Government securities;

U.S. Government agency securities;

Federal Home Loan Board letters of credit;

State of Delaware securities; or

Securities of a political subdivision of a State with a Moody's Investors Service rating
of "A" or better.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the primary government’s deposits was $491.2 million
and the bank balance was $545.0 million. Of the $545.0 million bank balance, $126.4 million
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was fully insured; $102.6 million represents unemployment insurance taxes collected from
Delaware employers that are held in escrow by the U.S. Treasury; and the remaining $316.0
million was subject to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured and uncollateralized.
Included in the primary government’s deposits are agency funds. The carrying amount of the
agency fund’s deposits was $28.6 million and the bank balance was $30.5 million. The $30.5
million bank balance was subject to custodial credit risk because the deposits were not covered
by depository insurance or the deposits were uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institutions, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name.

Of the primary government’s bank balance of $545.0 million, $254.6 million is part of the
Treasurer’s cash pool and the remaining balance represents outside bank accounts of the primary
government.

State law permits the Treasurer to deposit in a financial institution in the State in which the
Treasurer has custody if the deposit is interest bearing; the financial institution provides
collateral that has a market value that exceeds the amount by which a deposit exceeds the deposit
insurance, and a custodian holds the collateral.

Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party may not be recovered. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if the
securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either
the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s
name.

At June 30, 2016, the primary government’s investments were $2,421.1 million. Of the primary
government’s investments, $390.1 million was fully insured and collateralized. Included in the
primary government’s investments of $2,421.1 million are agency funds. The amount of the
agency funds’ investments was $82.9 million.

The following table provides information on $2,031.0 million of the primary government’s

investments that are exposed to custodial credit risk; $81.1 million of this amount represents the
agency funds’ investments:

Fair Value (Expressed

Investment Type in Thousands)
Certificates of Deposit $ 147,306
Commerical Paper 103,385
Corporate Obligations 574,737
U.S. Government Obligations 817,744
Municipal Obligations 14,251
Money Market 54,171
Mutual Funds 59,698
Equity Securities 99,345
Other Pooled 9,132
Other Obligations 151,203
$ 2,030,972
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Also, the terms of a debt investment may cause its fair value to be highly sensitive to
interest rate changes. The State manages interest rates using the segmented time distribution and
effective duration methods. The State approves and contracts with different investment managers
of fixed income securities in order to manage the exposure to interest rate risk with each different
manager focusing on different goals of yield periods or duration of maturities of their particular
portion of the investment pool. The Policy provides either maturity or duration limitations for the
various investment pools. The interest rate risk inherent in the portfolio is monitored by
measuring the weighted average maturity and/or duration.

Effective duration measures the expected change in value of a fixed income security for a given
change in interest rate. This method takes into account the likely timing and amounts of variable
cash flows for bonds with call options and prepayment provisions.

The following table presents the fair value and effective duration of the primary government and
agency fund investments by investment type at June 30, 2016:

Total
Outside Investments Effective

Treasurer's Treasurer's  (Expressedin  Duration (In
Investment Type Pool Pool Thousands) Years)
Corporate Obligations $ 566,498 $ 8,239 § 574,737 1.61
Municipal Obligations 14,251 - 14,251 224
U.S. Government Obligations 817,744 287,443 1,105,187 1.56
Other Obligations 151,203 - 151,203 1.59
Other Pooled - 9,132 9,132 N/A
Equity Securities - 99,345 99,345 N/A
Mutual Funds 59,305 393 59,698 N/A
Money Market 48,411 5,760 54,171 N/A
Commercial Paper 103,385 102,144 205,529 0.01
Certificates of Deposit 146,414 1,407 147,821 0.60

$ 1907211 § 513863 § 2,421,074

Although the Policy does not limit total portfolio maturities, it provides maximum maturity
restrictions for each of the investment account types as described below:

e Cash Account Investment - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of
purchase for the cash account is one year.

e Liquidity Accounts - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of
purchase shall be two years for the Liquidity Accounts; notwithstanding the
foregoing, the term for corporate debt instruments and both mortgage backed and
asset backed securities that are subject to periodic reset of coupon or interest rate may
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have an average life not to exceed three years.

Reserve Cash (Intermediate) Account - The maximum maturity for any investment at
the time of purchase shall be ten years. The maximum average maturity of the
portfolio shall be seven years.

Endowment Accounts - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of
purchase is ten years. The maximum average maturity of the portfolio is seven years.
The Board shall consider tailoring maturity restrictions to meet specific purposes for
endowment accounts to be established in the future.

Authority Operating, Bond and Debt Service Reserve Fund Accounts - The
maximum maturity for any investment at the time of purchase is ten years, except
when prudent to match a specific investment instrument with a known specific future
liability, in which case the maturity limitation shall match the maturity of the

corresponding liability.

As of June 30, 2016, the primary government and agency funds had the following debt

investments and maturities:

Investment Maturity
(Expressed in Thousands)
Inves tment Maturities
Fair Value Less Than 1 1to5 6to10 More than 10
Corporate Obligations $ 574737 $ 227676 $ 329,798 $ 17,263 §$ -
Municipal Obligations 14,251 117 14,067 67 -
U.S. Government Obligations
U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes 686,257 221,384 440,266 24,607 -
U.S. Agency Bonds, Notes 418,930 170,976 191,199 47,504 9,251
Other Obligations
Private Placements 151,203 53,384 97,329 490 -
Pooled Investments 9,132 9,132 - - -
Total Debt Inves tments $ 1,854,510 $ 682,669 $ 1,072,659 $ 89,931 § 9,251
Credit Risk

Credit risk of investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not

fulfill its obligations.

The Policy requires that the State’s investments in asset-backed securities be rated AAA by a
major rating agency. Corporate debt instruments must be rated by Standard and Poor’s Ratings
Services (S & P) and/or Moody’s Investor Service (Moody’s) and/or Fitch Ratings (Fitch) as

follows:
Investment S&P Moody's Fitch
Commercial Paper A-1 P-2 F2
Senior Long-Term Debt A A A
Corporate Bonds A- A3 A-

Additionally, the State has multiple non-rated/pooled accounts which represent immaterial
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amounts when treated individually. The Board permits the types of investments which are held in
these accounts.

The following table presents the State’s investments which were rated by S & P as of June 30,
2016 the ratings are presented using S & P’s rating scale:

Credit Risk - Quality Ratings
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Type TOTAL AAA AA A A-1 NR
Corporate Obligations $ 574,737 $ 60,620 $ 183,759 $ 295276 $ - % 35,082
Municipal Obligations 14,251 - 14,251 - - -
U.S. Government Obligations

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes 686,257 - 686,257 - - -

U.S. Agency Bonds, Notes 418,930 10,872 395,580 11,037 - 1,441
Other Obligations

Private Placements 151,203 12,239 73,069 65,895 - -

Pooled Investments 9,132 - - - - 9,132
Money Market 54,171 - - - - 54,171
Equity Securities 99,345 - - - - 99,345
Mutual Funds 59,698 - - - - 59,698
Certificate of Deposit 147,821 - 60,360 86,569 - 892
Commercial Paper 205,529 - - - 165,657 39,872
Total Investments $ 2,421,074 $ 83,731 $ 1,413,276 $ 458,777 $ 165,657 $ 299,633

NR = Non-Rated Pooled accounts

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the State’s
investments in a single issuer (5% or more of total investments). When investments are
concentrated in one issuer, this concentration represents heightened risk of potential loss. No
specific percentage identifies when concentration risk is present. The investments in obligations
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, mutual funds, and other pooled investments are
exempt from disclosure.

The Policy provides the following percentage of account limitations, valued at market.
Investments due to mature in one business day may be excluded from the computation of said
limitations.

A. U.S. Government - no restrictions.
B. Government Agency - 50% total, 20% in any one agency.

C. Certificates of Deposits, Time Deposits and Bankers Acceptances - 50% total, 5% in any
one issuer

a. Domestic - no additional restrictions.
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b. Non-Domestic - 25%.

c. Delaware Domiciled - Not more than the lesser of $10 million or 25% of an
issuer’s total equity capital may be invested in any one issuer. (Investments due to
mature in one business day may be excluded from the computation of this
percentage.)

D. Corporate Debt - 50% total, 25% in any one industry, 5% in any one issuer, 5% of any
issuer's total outstanding securities.
a. Domestic - no additional restrictions.
b. Non-Domestic - 25%, 5% in any one issuer.

E. Repurchase Agreements - 50% total.

F. Reverse Repurchase Agreements - 25% total.

G. Money Market Funds - 25% total, 10% in any one fund.

H. Canadian Treasuries - 25% total, 10% in any one agency.

I. Canadian Agency Securities - 25% total, 10% in any one agency.

J. Mortgage-backed and asset backed securities - 10% total (when combined with asset
backed securities and trust certificates).

K. Municipal Obligations - 5% in any one issuer.

L. Guaranteed Investment Contracts - Permitted where it is prudent to match a specific
investment instrument with a known specific future liability, subject to the credit quality
guidelines for commercial paper and corporate bonds and debentures and with adequate
exit provisions in the event of the future downgrade of the issuer.

M. Asset Backed Securities and Trust Certificates - 10% total (when combined with
mortgage-backed and asset backed securities).

At June 30, 2016, as required by the State’s laws and policies, there were no obligations that
represented 5% or more of the primary government’s investments, except for U.S. government
securities, pooled and mutual funds.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in the foreign exchange rate will adversely impact
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the fair value of an investment or deposit.

The Policy only permits investments denominated in U.S. dollars; therefore, the State’s
investments are not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Commitments

At June 30, 2016, the State did not enter into any commitment agreements with any investment
managers for future funding of various asset classes.

OPEB Trust Fund (OPEB Trust)
Investment Policy

The State Board of Pension Trustees is responsible for the management and investment of the
funds in the OPEB Trust. The Board authorized its Investment Committee to select the
investment managers of the OPEB Trust following the established investment guidelines for the
Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (System) until a separate investment policy is
adopted for the OPEB Trust. The System follows the prudent person standard, which requires
fiduciaries to discharge their duties solely in the interests of participants and their beneficiaries
with such care, skill, prudence, and diligence as a person acting in like circumstances would
exercise in the conduct of an enterprise with similar character and with similar aims. The OPEB
Trust investment objectives and policies currently include indexed exposure to approximate the
System’s policy benchmark. The Investment Committee regularly reviews the OPEB investment
performance, and considers investment vehicles which strike a balance between risk and return
while being mindful of the government’s time horizon for the OPEB investments. Of the OPEB
trust’s investment balance of $290.1 million, all is invested in three mutual funds and are not in
individual investments registered in the Trust’s name. For the fixed income type of mutual fund,
the investments in maturities is in government agencies and hold a maturity of six to ten years at
a fair market value of $117.5 million with a AA credit rating. The foreign equities type of mutual
fund represents $58.8 million of balance of the trust. These are denominated in U.S. Dollars and
are invested in no individual country, but an international region. The other $113.8 million is in
an index fund. The OPEB Trust also has $18.8 million held in cash and pooled investments with
the State Treasurer’s Office and $5.3 million in cash held in accounts outside of the State
Treasurer’s Office.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. At
June 30, 2016, the $5.3 million held outside of the State Treasurer’s Office is subject to custodial
credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollaterized.

Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (DPERS or System)
Investment Policy

There are no State statutes limiting allowable investments for the System. The investment
decisions are dictated by the prudent person rule and the internal investment guidelines

58



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

established by the Board as outlined below:

e Allocate a minimum of 20% of assets to fixed income investments such as bonds, cash
equivalents and certain real estate investments

e Maintain a diversified portfolio, to minimize the risk of overexposure in any one market
segment or investment style

e Monitor the performance of all investment managers using specific benchmarks

e Control exposure to illiquid asset classes

e Review, re-examine, and reconfirm the operation of results of the investment process
regularly

e Identify new long-term opportunities for risk reduction and improved investment returns

e Review actuarial assumptions to ensure consistency with capital market expectations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, management of the System has operated in accordance
with these policies, in all material respects.

Securities Lending

The System entered into a security lending agreement with its custodian bank, which acts as a
security lending agent for the System. The objective of securities lending is to earn income
through a conservatively operated and well-controlled program. The custodian is authorized to
lend securities within the borrower limits and guidelines established by the System. The System
lends fixed income, domestic equity, and international equity securities to approved
broker/dealers. Collateral for securities loaned equals 102 percent of fair market value for
domestic securities and 105 percent for international securities.

The only types of collateral received from borrowers are obligations issued by the U.S.
Government. All rights of ownership to securities pledged as collateral remain with the
borrower except in the event of default. The System has the authority to sell collateral securities
only upon a borrower default. As of June 30, 2016, there were no violations of legal or
contractual provisions. The System has not experienced any losses resulting from the default of a
borrower or lending agent during the year ended June 30, 2016.

At year-end, the System has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the
System owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the System. The contract
with the System’s custodian requires it to indemnify the System if the borrowers fail to return the
securities or fail to pay the System for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the
securities are on loan. The System manages its market risk by recording investments at fair value
daily and maintaining the value of the collateral held by the System in excess of the value of the
securities loaned. As of June 30, 2016, the fair value of securities on loan was $87.7 million. The
associated collateral was $89.0 million.

All open security loans can be terminated on demand by either the System or borrower. The
collateral is valued at fair value obtained from independent pricing services.
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Investments

The following is a listing of fixed income investments and cash equivalents and related maturity
schedule which shows the System’s exposure to interest rate risk as of June 30, 2016. It is the
System’s policy to classify corporate convertible bonds as equity securities because those
securities generally convert to preferred equity interests upon maturity. The System holds $776.6
million in domestic fixed income and $153.8 million in foreign fixed income instruments. Also
included is $40.1 million of corporate convertible bonds, $148.2 million in pooled cash
equivalents and $1,804.3 million in pooled fixed income investments.

Delaware Public Employees' Retirement System (DPERS or System)
Investment Maturities (in Years)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Less

Investment Type/Sector Value than 1 1-6 6-10 10 +
Asset Backed Securities $ 27316| $ -3 8,403 $ 607 $ 18,306
Bank Loans 16,333 - 15,447 886 -
Cash Equivalents 148,210 148,210 - - -
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 8,124 - - - 8,124
Corporate Bonds 468,463 3,252 177,060 150,613 137,538
Corporate Convertible Bonds 40,097 810 17,080 - 22,207
Government Agencies 14,366 - 14,366 -
Government Bonds 383,051 33,078 178,317 80,250 91,406
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 12,783 98 8,396 - 4,289
Pooled Investments 1,804,332 - 604,385 1,199,947 -

Total $ 2923075 § 185448 $1,023,454 $§ 1,432,303 $§ 281,870

Interest Rate Risk

The State has delegated investment policy for the System to the Board and its Committees. The
Investment Committee sets its own guidelines in conjunction with the Board to manage and
review the System’s exposure to fluctuating interest rates. Interest rate risk is a consideration
when establishing and reviewing investment manager guidelines and asset allocation. Both topics
are included in the Statement of Investment Policies and Objectives which is published on the
System’s website.

Credit Risk

The System’s general investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule to all risks incurred
by the fund. Investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion
and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculative
investments. The System has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices
related to credit risk. As of June 30, 2016, the System’s fixed income investments and cash
equivalents had the following credit risk characteristics (expressed in thousands):
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Moody’s Ratings Percent of Market
or Comparable Total Net Position Value
AAA to A 23.8% $2,115,073
BBB to B 8.6% 757,403
CCC to C 0.2% 17,478
Less than C 0.1% 7,329
Not Rated 0.3% 25,792
Total 33.0% $ 2,923,075
Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside
party. At June 30, 2016, the $241.9 million carrying amount of the System’s cash and cash
equivalents was comprised of $148.2 million of short-term investments and $93.7 million in
deposits. Of the $93.7 million in deposits, $93.2 million was subject to custodial credit risk
because it was uninsured and uncollaterized. The remaining $0.5 million was held as pooled
deposits by the State Treasurer’s Office.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party may not be recovered. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if the
securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either
the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s
name. The System’s investments are not exposed to custodial credit risk as they are held by the
System’s custodian in the name of the System or its nominee.

Investment Concentration Risk

As of June 30, 2016, the System held no concentration of investments (except pooled
investments) in an individual issuer in excess of 5% of the fair value of the System’s net
position.

Management Fees

The System paid $27.7 million in management fees to the alternative investment funds and
partnerships for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. These fees are netted against investment
income.

Foreign Investments

Foreign investments include equity securities, bonds, cash, and cash equivalents. The following
is a listing of the System’s foreign assets as of June 30, 2016. The listing includes $8.4 million

61



State of Delaware

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

of investments of domestic issuers which have been classified as domestic, but are denominated

in a foreign currency.

Investment Types

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Value in Fixed Cash and Cash
Currency U.S. Dollars Equities Income Equivale nts
Australian Dollar $ 16475 $ 7216 $ 9259 $ -
Brazilian Real 6,348 3,234 3,114 -
British Pound Sterling 71,765 68,821 2,918 26
Canadian Dollar 43,611 23913 19,445 253
Danish Krone 9,907 9,907 - -
Euro 67,843 67,790 - 53
Hong Kong Dollar 44,949 44,949 - -
Indonesian Rupiah 25,484 25,337 - 147
Japanese Yen 19,580 19,518 - 62
Malaysian Ringgit 1,353 1,335 - 18
Mexican Peso 24,091 9,168 14,923 -
New Zealand Dollar 17,455 - 17,455 -
Nigerian Naira 867 867 - -
Norwegian Krone 10,080 657 9,420 3
Philippine Peso 16,394 16,394 - -
South African Rand 1,528 1,528 - -
South Korean Won 3,991 3,991 - -
Swedish Krona 21,349 19,766 1,583 -
Swiss Franc 25,034 24,200 834 -
Thai Baht 4,016 4,016 - -
Turkish Lira 4,823 4,823 - -
Total Foreign Currencies 436,943 357,430 78,951 562
Foreign Issued Investments
Denominated in U.S. Dollars 195,180 114,084 81,096 -
Pooled International Investments
Denominated in U.S. Dollars 766,793 766,793 - -
Total $ 1,398916 $ 1,238,307 $ 160,047 $ 562

Derivatives

Derivatives are instruments (securities or contracts) whose value is dependent on such things as
stock or bond prices, interest rate levels, or currency exchange rates. The Board adopted a formal
written policy on the use of derivatives which is reviewed periodically and this policy, as
amended, was incorporated in the formalized investment policy adopted by the Board. Some
selected managers are permitted to use derivatives. In every case, the types of derivatives used
and limits on their use are stated in the manager’s contract and are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Derivatives serve a variety of useful purposes for the System, including the reduction of
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foreign exchange risk, the minimization of transaction costs and as a means of implementing
value added strategies to enhance returns. If the use of derivatives in a portfolio strategy results
in some leverage, that leverage is never permitted to expose the Fund to a loss greater than the
amount committed to that strategy.

The following lists principal categories of derivatives and their uses during the year:

Category Purpose
Foreign exchange forward contracts Hedge currency risk of investments denominated

in foreign currencies; enhance return

Exchange traded futures contracts Reduce transaction costs; hedge equity market
risk; control fixed income; counterbalance
portfolio duration; enhance return

Exchange traded options contracts Enhance return; reduce transaction costs
Total return equity swaps Hedge equity market risk exposure

Generally, derivatives are subject both to market risk and counterparty risk. The derivatives
utilized by the System typically have no greater risk than their physical counterparts, and in
many cases are offset by exposures elsewhere in the portfolio (for example, a short S&P 500
futures contract partially hedging a long position in S&P 500 securities). Counterparty risk, the
risk that the “other party” to a contract will default, is managed by utilization of exchange traded
futures and options where practical (in which case the futures exchange is the counterparty and
guarantees performance) and by careful screening of counterparties where use of exchange
traded products is impractical or uneconomical.

Derivative securities are priced and accounted for at their fair value. For exchange traded
securities such as futures and options, closing prices from the securities exchanges are used.
Foreign exchange contracts are valued at the price at which the transaction could be settled by
offset in the forward markets.

The Investment Committee monitors the System’s derivative holdings on a regular basis to
ensure that the derivatives used by managers of the System will not have a material adverse
impact on its financial condition. Total derivative instruments at June 30, 2016 were not
material to the system.

Risk and Uncertainty
The System invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk inherent in investment

securities, it is possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and that such change could affect the amounts reported.
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Discretely Presented Component Units
Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)
As of June 30, 2016, the carrying value and bank balances of DSHA’s deposits were $50.4

million and $51.2 million, respectively, all of which are insured by the FDIC.

Investment Policies

DSHA has an investment policy that encompasses all moneys related to the issuance of bonds, as
well as all funds otherwise held by DSHA. DSHA seeks first and foremost to ensure safety of
principal, and secondly, to attain the highest possible return available given the risk constraints.

DSHA is allowed to invest in certain qualified investments as defined by amended Subchapter I,
Section 4013, Chapter 40, Title 31, of the Delaware Code and DSHA’s formal investment policy.

Investments

Investments are presented at fair value. Fair values are determined by quoted market prices based
on national exchange prices for all investments, except for the State of Delaware Investment
Pool. The State pool is valued based on the pool’s share price. The table below lists the DSHA’s
investments and the related maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Less
Type Fair Value than 1 1-5 5-10 10 - 20 20-30

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 19377 $ 5,637 $ 13,560 $ 180 § -3

US Treasury Strips 224 - - 224 -

U.S. Treasury Bonds 28 - - - 28

U.S. Agencies 26,920 7,801 19,119 - -

Commercial Paper 2,566 2,566 - - -

Corporate Notes 24,347 6,838 17,509 - -

Investment Agreements 50 - - - - 50
Money Market Savings Accounts 4353 4,353 - - -

Bank Money Market Accounts 41,163 41,163 - - -

State of Delaware Investment Pool 20,364 20,364 - - -

Total Investments 139,392 88,722 50,188 404 28 50
Securitized Mortgage Loans 306,590 - - - - 306,590

Total Investments &
Securitized Mortgage Loans $ 445982 $ 88,722 §$ 50,188 $ 404 $ 28 $ 306,640
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Credit Risk

DSHA'’s general investment policy is to make investments with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. As of June 30,
2016, DSHA'’s investments were rated as follows:

Ratings (S & P)
(Expressed in Thousands)

U.S. Government

Fair Value AAA AA+ AA AA- Al+ Al A+ Guaranteed

Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 19,377 § -8 -8 -3 -8 -8 -8 -8 19,377

U.S. Treasury Strips 224 - - - - - - - 224

U.S. Treasury Bonds 28 - - 28

U.S. Agencies 26,920 - 26,920 - - - - -

Corporate Notes 24347 1,755 1,692 3,625 14,622 - - 2,653

Commercial Paper 2,566 - - - - 1,501 1,065 -

Securitized Mortgage Loans 306,590 - - - - - - - 306,590
Total $ 380,052 § 1,755 § 28,612 § 3,625 § 14622 § 1,501 § 1,065 § 2,653 § 326,219

NOTE 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The State categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
* Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: Inputs — other than quoted prices — included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability — either directly or indirectly
* Level 3: Unobservable inputs — market data are not available and are developed using
the best information available about the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing an asset or liability

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
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The State has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016:

Investments by Fair Value

(expressedin thousands)
Fair Value Measurement
6/30/2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fixed Income Securities:
U.S. Government Obligations
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 686,257 $ - $ 686257 $ -
U.S. Agency Notes 418,930 - 418,930 -
Municipal Obligations 14,251 - 14,251 -
Corporate Obligations 574,737 - 574,737 -
Commercial Paper 205,529 - 205,529 -
Other Pooled & Obligations 160,335 - 159,611 724
Equity Securities:
Equity Securities 99,345 99,345 - -
Mutual Funds 59,698 59,698 - -
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 2,219,082 §$§ 159043 $ 2,059,315 $ 724
Investments not subject to measurement 201,992
Total Investments $ 2,421,074

Equity securities and mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Fixed income securities classified in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable. Fixed income securities classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are the
State’s proportional investments held in an investment pool.

The State also has a nonrecurring fair value measurement as of June 30, 2016, for a building that
was initially purchased for renovation as a school facility. The project is no longer feasible and
the building will no longer be used by the State and is listed for sale. The building’s fair value is
$6.5 million based on an appraisal of the property (Level 3 inputs).

OPEB Trust Fund (OPEB Trust)

OPEB investments are measured at fair value and the total investments of $290.1 million are
Level 1 investments as they are in mutual funds that are publicly traded in an active market.

Delaware Public Employee’s Retirement System (DPERS)

DPERS has both investments measured at fair value and investments that are measured using
the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient to fair value
which is not classified in the fair value hierarchy. DPERS has the following recurring fair
value measurements as of June 30, 2016:
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Inves tments by Fair Value
(expressedin thousands)

Fair Value Measurement

6/30/2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed Income Securities:

Government Bonds $ 383,051 $ - 3 383,051 $ -

Government Agencies 14,366 - 14,366 -

Municipal Obligations 12,783 - 12,783 -

Corporate Bonds 508,560 - 503,199 5,361

Asset-Backed Securities 27,316 - 27,316 -

Bank Loans 16,333 - 16,333 -

Commerical Mortgage-Backed 8,124 - 8,124 -
Equity securities:

Common & Preferred Stock 2,346,628 2,341,951 4,677 -

Equity Funds 7,480 6,890 590 -
Pooled Inves tments :

Equity Funds 26,051 26,051 - -

Fixed Income Funds 604,385 604,385 - -
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 3,955,077 $2,979277 $ 970,439 $ 5,361
Total Investments Measured at NAV 4,627,526
Total Investments $ 8,582,603

The valuation method for pooled and alternative investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value is such that DPERS establishes fair value by using the NAV per share (or
its equivalent), such as member units or ownership interest in partners’ capital to which a
proportionate share of net assets is attributed. These values are calculated by the management of
each investment fund as of DPERS’ measurement date, generally in a manner consistent with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s measurement principles for investment companies. The
NAYV received from each investment fund are reviewed by DPERS’ staff and its investment
advisor; and both DPERS’ management and the custodian receive periodic and audited annual
financial reports from the management of each investment fund.

The DPERS has the following recurring NAV measurements as of June 30, 2016, including
unfunded commitments and redemption terms as follows:
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Investments Measured at NAV
(expressed in thousands)

Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Fair Value Commitments (1) Frequency Notice Period
Pooled Investments :
Equity Funds $ 1,457,074 - Daily, Monthly 1to 12 days
Fixed Income Funds 1,199,947 - Daily 1 day
Total Pooled Investments (2) $ 2,657,021
Alternative Investments:
Funds Primarily Invested in Public Securities
Credit/Distressed Debt Focused Strategy (3) $ 175162 $ 30,000 Annual 60 to 90 days
Equity Focused Strategy (4) 245,549 - Quarterly, Annual 45 to 90 days
Funds Primarily Invested in Private Securities (5)
Buyout 152,427 144,111
International 275,586 70,830
Private Debt 78,855 21,956
Private Equity 735,476 305,561
Real Assets 307,450 111,294
Total Alternatives $ 1,970,505
Total Investments Measured at NAV 4,627,526

(1) Unfunded Commitments. DPERS has commitments to invest additional amounts, to be
drawn down as called upon at any time during the term of each relationship. The lengths of
these terms are discussed below. Generally, these commitments are self-funding; in that the
capital calls are met using cash flows generated by distributions received from alternative
investment funds as the underlying investments of the funds are liquidated.

(2) Pooled Investments. This type includes three index tracking funds, two global value equity
funds, and one short-term investment fund. The index funds maintain a portfolio constructed to
match or track the components of the following market indices: S&P 500, Russell 1000 Value,
and the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate. The global value equity funds invest in both U.S. and
non-U.S. equities, seeking quality companies that are attractively valued and have growth
potential. The short-term investment fund is a stable-value (money market-like) investment
vehicle for cash reserves, which DPERS classifies as Cash Equivalents. It is managed by DPERS’
Custodian to offer a competitive rate of return through a portfolio of obligations of the U.S.
Government, its agencies or instrumentalities, and related money market instruments. Principal
preservation and liquidity management are the prime objectives.

(3) Credit/Distressed Debt Focused Strategy. This type includes three funds that engage in
multiple investment strategies across the credit spectrum, with the objective of achieving
superior risk-adjusted returns through opportunistic investment. The composite portfolio for this
type includes investments in distressed corporate securities, convertible hedging, residential and
consumer debt, real estate debt, merger arbitrage, and real estate. In limited circumstances, these
funds have the ability to impose a suspension or postponement of redemptions (a “gate”), or in
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the case of a withdrawal greater than 90% they may hold up to 10% of the redemption amount (a
“holdback™) until the completion of the funds’ annual audit. There have been no gates imposed
during the reporting period. These funds may also segregate a portion of the portfolio, commonly
illiquid securities with no active market, from other investments of the portfolio (a “side pocket™).
Investments in a side pocket are redeemable only upon liquidation of the underlying assets in the
side pocket. Investments representing approximately 9% of the value of the investments in this
type are held in side pockets. Investments representing approximately 21% of the value of the
investments in this type cannot be redeemed because the investments include restrictions (a
“lock-up”) that do not allow for initial redemption in the first 24-36 months after acquisition,
with a rolling two-year lock-up thereafter. The remaining restriction period for these
investments ranged from 15 to 36 months at June 30, 2016.

(4) Equity Focused Strategy. This type includes five funds that engage in a fundamental equity
investing strategy. The composite portfolio for this type invests both long and short primarily in
global common stocks, but also in debt, credit, private equity, derivative and other financial
instruments. In limited circumstances, these funds have the ability to impose a gate, or in the
case of a withdrawal greater than 90% they may hold back up to 10% of the redemption amount
until the completion of the funds’ annual audit. There have been no gates imposed during the
reporting period. These funds may also segregate a portion of the portfolio in a side pocket.
Investments in a side pocket are redeemable only upon liquidation of the underlying assets in the
side pocket. Investments representing approximately 3% of the value of the investments in this
type are held in side pockets. Investments representing approximately 18% of the value of the
investments in this type cannot be redeemed because the investments include an initial lock-up
that does not allow for redemption in the first five years after acquisition. The remaining
restriction period for these investments is approximately 51 months at June 30, 2016.

(5) Funds Primarily Invested in Private Securities. These investments can never be redeemed
with the funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in these types is that distributions are
received through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. It is expected that the
underlying assets of the funds will be liquidated over the next 1 to 12 years. The strategy of each
type is as follows:

Buyout. This type includes three funds that make equity investments in mature, private
companies.

International. This type includes 11 funds that invest in private equity and buyout
strategies operating principally outside of the U.S.

Private Debt. This type includes six funds that invest in debt or equity securities of
financially stressed (distressed) companies, as well as convertible bonds and subordinated debt in
private companies.

Private Equity. This type includes 47 funds that invest in the equity securities of growing
private companies, primarily in the technology and healthcare sectors.

Real Assets. This type includes six funds that invest in commercial real estate and private
energy companies including commercial real estate, exploration and production, midstream,
power and services businesses.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit
Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

At June 30, 2016, the Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA), a component unit of the
State of Delaware has $446.0 million of investments with $400.5 million classified in Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy and the remaining $45.5 million not measured at fair value since
they are money market accounts and are not subject to measurement.

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES

All trade, loan and tax account receivables are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In the governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be available
within 60 days of year-end are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.

Taxes receivable represent the amount of personal, business, and other taxes determined to be
measurable at June 30, 2016. Uncollectibility for taxes receivable primarily results from
identified assessment problems, inability to locate taxpayers, and accounts of decedents.

The State levies taxes on real property through its school districts. Each of the three counties of
the State establishes the assessed values of real estate and bills and collects its own property
taxes. Local school property taxes are levied by local school districts based on the assessed value
of real estate, as determined by county taxation formulas. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are
payable on or before September 30. Taxes paid after the payable date are assessed a 6% penalty
for nonpayment and 1% interest per month thereafter. Taxes are billed and collected by the
counties with funds remitted to the local school district to be used for the local share of school
operating costs and debt service on general obligation bonds issued for capital improvements.
Receivables as of year-end for the State’s individual funds, including the applicable allowances
for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:
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Receivables - Primary Government
Governmental Activities/Governmental Funds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Local School Total
General Fund Federal Fund District Funds Receivables
Receivables:
Taxes 208,186 $ - 3 39,640 247,826
Accounts 339,978 100,730 169 440,877
Loans and Notes 34,741 281,956 - 316,697
Intergovernmental - 166,406 - 166,406
Total Receivables 582,905 549,092 39,809 1,171,806
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (386,884) (89,913) (192) (476,989)
Total Receivables, Net 196,021 $ 459,179 $ 39,617 694,817
Amounts not Scheduled
for Collection During
the Subsequent Year 51,806 $ 265,704 $ 27,446 344,956
Receivables - Primary Government
Business-Type Activities/Proprietary Funds
(Expressed in Thousands)
Total
Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Receivables
Receivables:
Taxes $ 66,578 $ - $ - 66,578
Accounts 17,266 6,970 25,397 49,633
Interest - - 837 837
Intergovernmental - - 29,074 29,074
Intergovernmental - -
Total Receivables 83,844 6,970 55,308 146,122
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (35,600) (792) - (36,392)
Total Receivables, Net $ 48,244 $ 6,178 $ 55,308 109,730
Amounts not Scheduled
for Collection During
the Subsequent Year $ - 8 - $ - -
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Discretely Presented Component Units
Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

Total receivables as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

(Expressed in Thousands)

Receivables:
Mortgage Loans $ 273,299
Accrued Interest 60,924
Other Receivables 881
Grants Receivable 325
Total Receivables 335,429
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (6,071)

Total Receivables, Net $ 329,358

Amounts not Scheduled
for Collection During

the Subsequent Year $ 323,156

Mortgage loans receivable which total $273.3 million consist of single family and multi-family
loans and are collateralized by first, second or third mortgages on the properties and in limited
instances are guaranteed by corporate sponsors. Interest rates on the loans vary from 4.5% to
9.75% and loan maturities are between one and forty years depending on the type of mortgage
loan issued.

NOTE 5 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

(a) Due To/From to Other Funds

Receivables reported as “due from other funds” and the related payables reported as “due to
other funds” represent amounts owed to State organizations by other organizations within the

State primary government. Amounts receivable from or payable to other levels of

government are reported as intergovernmental receivables or payables and are expected to be
repaid within one year from the date of these financial statements. The composition of due

from/due to balances at June 30, 2016 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Due To
General DelDOT Lottery Total

Due From

General $ - $ 12,000 $ 4,763 $ 16,763

Federal 15,417 - - 15,417

Ul 15,000 - - 15,000

Lottery 1,502 - - 1,502

DelDOT 4,478 - - 4,478
Total $ 36,397 $ 12,000 $ 4,763 $ 53,160
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The amounts due from the Federal Fund are recorded for borrowings to eliminate negative
balances in the State Investment Pool. The amount for the Federal Fund is created by
expenditures relating to reimbursement type federal grant revenues. These costs result in a
negative balance in the State Investment Pool.

The amount due from DelDOT represents payments made by the General Fund on behalf of
DelDOT and the due to DelDOT represents Transportation Trust Fund deposits to the
General Fund due to DelDOT.

The amount due from the Lottery Fund represents overpayments of profits required by law to
be transferred to the General Fund. The amount due to the Lottery Fund represents future
liabilities that require the State General Fund to pay as a result of the Lottery’s transfer of
profits as required by law.

The amount due from the Unemployment Fund represents a short-term loan from the General
Fund.

(b)Transfers In From/Out to Other Funds

Transfers in and transfers out from/to other funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balance and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net
position, proprietary funds represent transfers between funds. Transfers are used to 1) move
revenues from the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fund that statute requires to
expend them, 2) use restricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, 3) move
profits from the Lottery Fund, as required by State law, and 4) move bond proceeds from
Capital Projects to the General Fund or Local School District Fund to cover expenses paid by
the General Fund.

A schedule of transfers in and transfers out for the year ended June 30, 2016 is presented
below (expressed in thousands):

Transfers In

Local
School
General District Fund DelDOT Total
Transfers Out
General $ - 3 10,905 $ 14,168 $ 25,073
Federal 59,986 - - 59,986
Local School District Fund 120,775 - - 120,775
Capital Projects 81,526 66,956 - 148,482
Lottery 252,865 - - 252,865
DelDOT 10,125 - - 10,125
Total $ 525277 $ 77,861 $ 14,168 $ 617,306

73



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

NOTE 6 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources are defined as consumption of net assets by the government
that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are defined as
acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.
Deferred outflows increase net position, similar to assets and deferred inflows decrease net
position, similar to liabilities.

The components of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reported

in the government wide financial statements as of June 30, 2016 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Governmental Business-type Primary

Activities Activities Government
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on Refundings of Debt $ - $ 36,409 $ 36,409
Pensions -See Note 17 194,889 13,240 208,129
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 194,889 $ 49,649 $ 244,538
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Service Concession Arrangement $ - $ 18,312  $ 18,312
Pensions -See Note 17 208,219 10,766 218,985
Gain on Refundings of Debt 36,161 36,161
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 244380 $ 29,078 $ 273,458

Deferred inflows of resources on the governmental funds balance sheet as of June 30, 2016
are unavailable revenues as follows (expressed in thousands):

Total
Federal Local School Governmental
General Fund Fund District Fund Funds

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Accounts Receivable $ 48,009 $§ 10,659 $ 169 $ 58,837
Taxes Receivable 66,240 - 37,576 103,816
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 114249 § 10,659 $ 37,745 § 162,653

NOTE 7 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

General obligation bonds have been authorized and issued primarily to provide funds for
acquisition and construction of capital facilities for State administrative operations, public and
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higher education, public and mental health, corrections and conservation purposes and for
maintenance and construction of highway facilities.

The State Constitution provides that the State may issue general obligation bonds for specific
purposes in amounts approved by the General Assembly. The enabling acts pursuant to which
the bonds are issued provide that all bonds issued shall be direct obligations of the State; that is,
the bonds are secured by the pledge of the full faith and credit of the State. General obligation
bonds are redeemed over a period not to exceed 20 years, generally from available resources in
the general fund. Accordingly, the State has generally issued 20-year serial bonds with equal
amounts of principal maturing each year. Bonds outstanding have call provisions providing for
early redemption at the option of the State, generally beginning 8 or 10 years following the date
of issue in the inverse order of maturity, in whole or in part, at redemption prices not to exceed
100% of par value.

On March 16, 2016, the State issued $236.1 million of general obligation bonds maturing
between March 1, 2017 and March 1, 2036. Of the $236.1 million issued, $180.4 million was
issued as Series 2016A representing new money, the proceeds of which were used to fund
various capital projects as authorized by the General Assembly; $20.2 million was issued as
Series 2016B also representing new money, the proceeds of which were used to fund capital
projects at the Port of Wilmington and were issued as bonds subject to Alternative Minimum
Tax; and, $35.5 million was issued as Series C representing refunding bonds the proceeds of
which were used to advance refund existing bonds for a net present value savings of $3.0
million, or 8.2% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear coupons between 2.125% and 5.0%
and yield between 0.49% and 3.17%.

The refunding Series 2016C resulted in an economic gain of $2.6 million and a debt service cash
savings over the next ten years of $2.9 million. The gain on refunding is recorded with the
Deferred Inflows of Resources on the Statement of Net Position.

On June 30, 2016, the State issued $85.5 million of general obligation bonds maturing between
July 1, 2017 and July 1, 2031. Series 2016D bonds were issued as refunding bonds the proceeds
of which were used to refund existing bonds for a net present value savings of $7.3 million, or
8.2% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear coupons between 2.0% and 5.0% and yield
between .62% and 2.06%.

The refunding Series 2016D resulted in an economic gain of $8.5 million and a debt service cash
savings over the next 15 years of $7.8 million. The gain on refunding is recorded with the
Deferred Inflows of Resources on the Statement of Net Position.

Bonds issued and outstanding totaled $1,902.9 million at June 30, 2016. Of this amount, $517.4
million is supported by property taxes collected by the local school districts. During fiscal year
2016, the local school district funds transferred $66.6 million of property tax revenue to the State
to meet the required debt service on their share of the debt.
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The State is authorized to issue an additional $175.6 million of general obligation bonds at
June 30, 2016. Interest rates and maturities of the outstanding general obligation bonds are
detailed as follows:

General Obligation Bonds - Governmental Activities

(Expressed in Thousands)

Maturity Balance
Interest Date Outstanding at
Sale # Description Rates (Fiscal Year) June 30, 2016
229 GO 2016D 2.00% - 5.00% 2032 85,470
227 GO 2016C 4.00% - 5.00% 2027 35,455
226 GO 2016B 5.00% 2019 20,220
225 GO 2016A 2.13% - 5.00% 2036 180,385
222 GO 2014B 2.00% - 5.00% 2035 295,025
221 GO 2014A 3.00% - 5.00% 2034 165,000
220 GO 2013B 2.00% - 5.00% 2033 174,025
219 GO 2013A 2.00% - 5.00% 2027 111,330
215 GO 2011A 2.00% - 5.00% 2032 100,428
214 GO 2010D 4.55% 2030 59,580
213 GO 2010C 3.10%-4.60% 2031 115,775
211 GO 2010B 2.00% - 5.00% 2025 81,585
209 GO 2010A 1.50% - 5.00% 2025 58,400
208 GO 2009D 3.70% - 5.30% 2030 169,950
206 GO 2009C 3.00% - 5.00% 2028 185,725
205 GO 2009B 4.75% - 5.00% 2026 13,935
203 GO 2009A 4.75% - 5.00% 2029 4,165
199 GO 2006C 0.25% 2023 1,433
195 GO 2005C 5% 2023 43,120
192 QZAB 2004B 0% 2021 224
190 QZAB 2003D 0% 2019 908
186 QZAB 2002B 0% 2017 760
Total, Gross 1,902,898
Plus: Unamortized Bond Premium 215,650
Total General Obligation Bonds 2,118,548
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The following table sets forth the future debt service requirements on outstanding general
obligation bonds at June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 172,135 $ 79,283 $§ 251,418
2018 165,535 73,339 238,874
2019 148,168 66,078 214,246
2020 130,875 59,698 190,573
2021 128,774 53,611 182,385
2022-2026 585,421 181,220 766,641
2027-2031 414,049 71,371 485,420
2032-2036 157,941 11,247 169,188
Total $ 1,902,898 $ 595,847 $ 2,498,745

Changes in general obligation bonded debt during the year ended June 30, 2016 are summarized
in Note 12.

In prior years, the State has defeased certain general obligation bonds by creating separate
irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued or cash appropriated and the proceeds have
been used to purchase U.S. government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The
investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased
debt. Accordingly, the debt has been considered defeased and has been removed as a liability
from the government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2016, a total of $233.2 million of
defeased bonds were outstanding.

NOTE 8 REVENUE BONDS

Revenue Bonds

The State Constitution empowers certain State agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are
not supported by the full faith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from
acquired or constructed assets or some other stream of revenues to retire the debt and pay related
interest.

Primary Government

In August, 2011, pursuant to the Delaware Energy Act, 29 Del. C. §8059, the Sustainable Energy
Utility, Inc. (SEU), a Delaware nonprofit corporation created by and for the benefit of the State,

issued $67.4 million of its Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. Energy Efficiency Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011 (the SEU Bonds). Of the total amount, $56.2 million of the SEU Bonds were issued
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to finance energy conservation measures for multiple State agencies and the remaining amount
of $11.2 million was issued on behalf of Delaware State University. Under separate Installment
Payment Agreements, each agency and Delaware State University is obligated to make
installment payments to the SEU in accordance with the Energy Performance Contracting Act,
29 Del. C. §6971. Further, each agency and Delaware State University separately entered into
Guaranteed Energy Savings Agreements with various energy services companies, which
guaranteed that the savings achieved will be sufficient to cover the financing costs associated
with the SEU bonds upon completion of the energy conservation measures. In the event that
savings are not realized, the energy services companies will be held responsible for the
deficiency.

The SEU Bonds are limited obligations of the SEU, secured by the trust estate and payable only
from amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for payment under the Installment
Payment Agreements. No funds appropriated to any agency for any purpose are available to pay
the Installment Payments of any other agency or Delaware State University.

The final maturity of the SEU bonds is September 15, 2034 with future debt service

requirements as follows as of June 30, 2016:

Sustainable Energy Utility Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 2915 % 2,324 § 5239
2018 3,055 2,179 5,234
2019 1,855 2,067 3,922
2020 1,920 1,982 3,902
2021 2,040 1,887 3,927
2022-2026 11,660 7,848 19,508
2027-2031 14,475 4,775 19,250
2032-2035 11,960 1,112 13,072

Total $ 49,880 § 24,174  $74,054

Plus Unamortized
Bond Premium 3,716

Total including
premiums $ 53,596

DelDOT Fund
Delaware Transportation Authority (Authority)
The Authority is subject to oversight by DelDOT and is included in the DelDOT fund. The

Authority assists in the implementation of the State’s plans and policies regarding the
coordination and development of a comprehensive, balanced transportation system for the State.
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It has the power to develop a unified system of air, water, vehicular and specialized
transportation in the State. The Authority includes the Transportation Trust Fund and the
Delaware Transit Corporation. The Secretary of the Department of Transportation, with consent
of the Governor, appoints the Authority’s Director.

To assist the Authority in financing a unified transportation system, the State created a
Transportation Trust Fund (the Trust Fund) within the Authority which receives all receipts of
the Authority. The primary sources of funding of the Trust Fund are motor fuel taxes and motor
vehicles fees imposed and collected by the State and deposited in the Trust Fund, and revenue
from the Delaware Turnpike, which the Authority owns and operates. The Authority also has the
power to issue bonds, with legislative authorization, to finance improvements to the State's
transportation system. Debt issued by the Authority does not constitute a debt of the State or a
pledge of its general taxing power or of its full faith and credit. Rather, the outstanding revenue
bonds are obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge and
assignment of certain tolls and revenues such as motor fuel tax revenue, motor vehicle document
fees, and motor vehicle registrations. The Authority may apply Trust Fund revenue in excess of
debt service requirements for transportation projects, subject to legislative authorization, and
may pledge any or all of this revenue to secure financing for these projects.

On December 16, 2015, the Authority issued $212.5 million of US 301 Project Revenue Bonds,
2015 Series, maturing between June 1, 2021 and June 1, 2055. The bonds bear coupon rates
between 3.25% and 5.0%. The bonds were issued to provide funding for the US 301 Project.

On January 1, 2016, the Authority issued $181.5 million of Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series, maturing between July 1, 2019 and July 1, 2029. The bonds bear
coupon rates between 2.0% and 5.0%. The bonds were issued as an advance refunding and
resulted in an economic gain of $24.2 million and reduction of $28.9 million in future debt
service payments.

The Authority has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and is therefore not reported as a
liability. At June 30, 2016, the amount of defeased debt outstanding amounted to $248.2 million.

The Authority has a total of $262.4 million in authorized but unissued revenue bonds at June 30,

2016. Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2016 amounted to $986.3 million and are presented as
follows:
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Delaware Transportation Authority Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maturity Balance
Interest Date Outstanding At
Description Rates (Fiscal Year)  June 30, 2016
Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds - Series
2006 3.5%-5.0% 2026 $ 6,160
2007 4.0% - 5.0% 2021 50,030
2008 4.0% - 5.0% 2028 19,680
2008 4.0% - 5.0% 2029 20,395
2009 5.00% 2029 19,335
2010 5.00% 2019 28,820
2010 3.95% - 5.80% 2030 72,120
2012 3.0% - 5.0% 2024 201,595
2014 2.25% - 5.0% 2024 94,565
2015 3.25% - 5.0% 2055 212,535
2016 3.0% - 5.0% 2029 181,475
Transportation System
Grant Anticipation Bonds
2010 Series 3.25% - 5.0% 2025 79,585
Total, Gross 986,295
Less: Current Portion of Debt
Outstanding 70,595

Long-term Portion of Debt
Outstanding $ 915,700

Future debt service requirements for the Authority’s outstanding bonds are shown in the table
below:
Delaware Transportation Authority Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 70,595  $ 44,581 $ 115,176
2018 69,880 41,849 111,729
2019 73,945 38,290 112,235
2020 73,930 34,666 108,596
2021 75,525 31,157 106,682
2022-2026 312,660 105,388 418,048
2027-2031 111,345 57,558 168,903
2032-2036 11,885 46,950 58,835
2037-2041 18,140 44,172 62,312
2042-2046 35,385 38,593 73,978
2047-2051 60,310 27,700 88,010
2052-2055 72,695 9,355 82,050

Total $ 986,295 § 520,259 $ 1,506,554
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The transportation system revenue bonds have fixed interest rates and are limited obligations of
the Authority secured only by the pledged revenues of the trust funds. Summary financial
information at June 30, 2016 for the trust funds, which is the segment of DelDOT that supports
the revenue bonds.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets:
Current Assets $ 381,892
Capital Assets 1,441,475
Other Assets 111,657
Total Assets 1,935,024
Deferred Outflows of Resources 36,410
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 1,971.434
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities $ 154,272
Noncurrent Liabilities 986,604
Total Liabilities 1,140,876
Deferred Inflows of Resources 18,312
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 533,623
Unrestricted 196,418
Restricted 82,205
Total Net Position 812,246

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net
Position $ 1,971,434
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Condensed Statement of Revenues
Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues (Pledged Against Bonds) $ 457,169
Other Operating Revenues 68,405
Depreciation Expense (189)
Other Operating Expenses (230,861)
Operating Income $ 294,524
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income $ 5,036
Bad Debt Recovery 960
Fedeal Grant Revenue 45
Interest Expense (26,133)
Service Concession Arrangement 631
Transfer to Other Agencies (10,125)
Transfer from General Fund 14,168
Transfer to DTC (85,421)
Transfer to DelDOT (117,806)
Change in Net Position 75,879
Beginning Net Position-as restated 736,367
Ending Net Position $ 812,246

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net Cash Provided by (Used In):

Operating Activities $ 315,449
Noncapital Financing Activities (210,216)
Capital and Related Financing Activities 85,313
Investing Activities (130,777)
Net Increase 59,769
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 32,363
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 92,132

The State has pledged turnpike, motor fuel tax, and motor vehicle fee revenues to the Trust
Fund in order to provide additional means to finance the maintenance and development of the
State's highway transportation system, as well as security for the repayment of the
outstanding revenue bonds of the Authority. Proceeds from the revenue bonds were used to
finance infrastructure maintenance, preservation, and construction-related projects. The revenue
bonds are payable solely from these pledged revenue streams and are not backed by the faith
and credit of the State or any such political subdivision. Annual principal and interest
payments on the revenue bonds are expected to require less than 35% of pledged revenues.
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The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the revenue bonds as of June 30, 2016
was $1,506.6 million. Principal and interest paid on the revenue bonds for the year ended June
30, 2016 was $117.0 million. Total pledged revenues for the year ended June 30, 2016 were
$462.2 million.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Debt issued by the following component units is not secured by the full faith, credit and taxing
power of the State.

Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

DSHA is authorized to issue bonds and notes, with the approval of the State, in order to exercise
its powers. These bonds and notes are secured solely by the revenues, loans, and other pledged
assets under the related Bond Indenture of DSHA.

The revenue bonds outstanding have been issued to provide financing for mortgage loans. The
bonds are secured by the mortgage loans made or purchased under the applicable resolutions, the
revenues, prepayments and foreclosures proceeds received related to the mortgage loans, and
certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the applicable bond resolutions. All bonds are
callable subject to certain restrictions. Interest rates on bonds outstanding range from 1.26% to
6.65% with maturities of such bonds up through January 1, 2049.

On December 31, 2015, the Authority called all remaining bonds of the Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds 2006 Series B issue and sold all remaining mortgage backed securities
associated with the bond issue.

On December 31, 2015, the Authority called all remaining bonds of the Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds 2006 Series C issue, all remaining mortgages associated with the bond issue will
be moved to another bond issue and mortgage repayments will be used to refund those bonds.

On June 30, 2016, the Authority called all remaining bonds of the Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds 2006 Series D issue and sold all remaining mortgage backed securities

associated with the bond issue.

Outstanding bonds at June 30, 2016 amounted to $305.3 million. Future debt service
requirements for DSHA’s bonds are shown on the following table:
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Delaware State Housing Authority Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 7,610 $ 11,032 $ 18,642
2018 6,925 10,769 17,694
2019 7,030 10,481 17,511
2020 7,285 10,173 17,458
2021 7,667 9,866 17,533

2022-2026 44,562 43,897 88,459

2027-2031 42,383 34,035 76,418

2032-2036 40,367 26,157 66,524

2037-2041 43,108 18,040 61,148

2042-2046 89,495 5,211 94,706

2047-2051 8,903 347 9,250
Total $ 305,335 $ 180,008 $ 485,343

Delaware State University (DSU)
Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Delaware State University

Revenue Bonds Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenue Bonds $ 2,140
Revenue Refunding Bonds 47,820
Energy Efficiency Revenue Bonds 11,377
Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2012 28,354
Revenue Refunding Bonds 2014 32,117

Total Revenue Bonds Outstanding as of June 30,2016  $ 121,808

On May 6, 1999, DSU issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $15.9 million (par
value) through the DEDA. The bonds are due on October 1, 2017 and are secured by un-
appropriated gross revenues of DSU.

On March 1, 2012, DSU issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $32.1 million (par
value) through the DEDA which were in part used to refund certain maturities of Series 1999
bonds. The issuance of Series 2012 bonds and refunding resulted in a $2.7 million reduction in
Series 1999 bond obligations. As of June 30, 2016, $2.1 million remained outstanding on the
1999 Revenue Bonds.

On December 20, 2007, DSU issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $47.6 million

(par value) through the DEDA. The bonds are interest only through October 1, 2018; due on
October 1, 2036; and are secured by un-appropriated gross revenues of DSU. DSU has pledged
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all operating and non-operating revenues, except State appropriations and restricted gifts, grants
and bequests, for each academic year during which any of the bonds remain outstanding. As of
June 30, 2016, $47.8 million remained outstanding on the 2007 revenue bonds.

DSU entered into a Guaranteed Energy Savings Agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc. in the
amount of $11.2 million. In connection with this agreement and to fund energy efficiency
projects, energy efficiency revenue bonds were issued through the State of Delaware Sustainable
Energy Utility, Inc. on August 1, 2011. The bonds are due September 15, 2032 and are limited
obligations of DSU, payable only from amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for
payment of the Installment Payments pursuant to the Energy Performance Contracting Act. The
2011 bonds are equally and ratably secured by the trust estate, and failure of the State to
appropriate each year sufficient available funds will cause insufficient funds to be deposited into
the bond fund to pay all principal and interest on the bonds when due. Johnson Controls, Inc.
guaranteed that the savings achieved will be sufficient to cover the financing cost associated with
the bond, upon completion of the energy upgrades to various buildings and systems throughout
DSU. In the event that the savings are not realized, Johnson Controls, Inc. will be responsible for
the amount of that deficiency. As of June 30, 2016, $11.4 million remained outstanding on the
2011 energy efficiency bonds.

On March 1, 2012, DSU issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $32.1 million (par
value) through the DEDA. The bonds are due October 1, 2036 and are secured by a pledge of
certain un-appropriated revenues of DSU. The proceeds of the 2012 bonds were used to finance:
(1) the refunding of certain maturities of The Delaware Economic Development Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds (Delaware State University Project) Series 1999; (2) the purchase of
the University Village, a four building, 628 bed student housing facility and dining hall located
on the campus of the University, the construction of which was financed by the Kent County,
Delaware Variable Rate Demand Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Delaware State University
Student Housing Foundation Project) Series 2004B; (3) the funding of any required reserve
funds relating to the 2012 Bonds; and (4) the costs of issuance and any credit enhancement of the
2012 Bonds. As of June 30, 2016, $28.4 million remained outstanding on the 2012 revenue
bonds.

On December 11, 2014, DSU issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $29.2 million
through the DEDA. The bonds are due October 1, 2039 and are secured by un-appropriated gross
revenue of the University. The 2014 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the
Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and outstanding under the
Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness outstanding as provided in the Indenture and in the
Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2014 bonds with other available funds, were used to
purchase the University Courtyard, a 416 bed student housing facility located on campus from
the Delaware State University Housing Foundation; construct, equip and furnish an optical
science center for applied research; and acquire and complete capital improvements of the
former Sheraton Hotel and Convention Center, now known as the Living and Learning
Commons, a 264 bed student housing facility and space used for Delaware State University
Early College High School. As of June 30, 2016, $32.1 remained outstanding on the 2014
revenue bonds.
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Remaining maturities and interest due relating to DSU’s revenue bonds at June 30, 2016 are as
follows:

Delaware State University Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 2915 $ 5240  § 8,155
2018 3,070 5,101 8,171
2019 3,365 4,986 8,351
2020 3,565 4,849 8,414
2021 3,705 4,695 8,400
2022 - 2026 21,280 20,820 42,100
2027 - 2031 26,385 15,607 41,992
2032 - 2036 29,180 8,879 38,059
2037 - 2041 18,455 2,968 21,423
2042 - 2046 3,825 395 4,220
Total 115,745  § 73,540 $§ 189,285
Plus Unamortized Bond
Premiums and Discount 6,063

Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 121,808

NOTE 9 LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE
Banc of America Master Lease/Purchase

In May 2011, the State entered into a Master Lease/Purchase Agreement with Banc of America
Public Capital Corporation (BOA) for a two year period (with two one-year extensions that
ended May 2015) on behalf of all its State Agencies to acquire equipment including all
installation costs with a maximum aggregate amount of principal components for this equipment
not to exceed $50.0 million. Each individual equipment lease established the duration of the
lease agreement with the interest rate determined using a percentage of a like term U.S. Treasury
as quoted by the Federal Reserve and these agreements continue through the repayment of
amounts due.

On April 15, 2013, the State executed an agreement under the BOA Master Agreement in the
amount of $18.5 million for the purchase and installation of equipment for the Red Clay
Consolidated School District. Beginning October 15, 2014, principal and interest payments are
due each April 15 and October 15. From April 15, 2013 until October 15, 2014, all interest due
accrued as additional principal. The interest rate for the term of the agreement is 2.91%, and the
loan matures April 15, 2035.
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The future maturities of principal and interest payments on the agreement are as follows:

Red Clay Consolidated School District Agreement
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 406 $ 546§ 952
2018 454 534 988
2019 503 520 1,023
2020 556 505 1,061
2021 611 488 1,099
2022-2026 3,995 2,134 6,129
2027-2031 5,893 1,434 7,327
2032-2035 6,439 437 6,876

Total $ 18,857 $ 6,598 § 25455

On April 15, 2013, the State executed an agreement under the BOA Master Agreement in the
amount of $10.6 million for the purchase of helicopters for the Delaware State Police.
Beginning April 15, 2013, principal and interest payments are due each April 15 and October 15.
The interest rate for the term of the agreement is 2.03% and the loan matures October 15, 2022.

The future maturities of principal and interest payments on the agreement are as follows:

Delaware State Police Agreement
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 1,030 $ 138 § 1,168
2018 1,051 117 1,168
2019 1,073 96 1,169
2020 1,094 74 1,168
2021 1,116 52 1,168

2022-2023 1,718 35 1,753
Total § 7,082 $ 512 § 7,594

On October 2, 2015, the State entered into a new agreement with BOA for a two-year period
through June 30, 2017. The agreement provides for annual automatic renewals of each
individual lease until cancelled by the lessee with interest rates determined using a percentage of

87



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

like term U.S. Treasury as quoted in the Federal Reserve. The State did not access funds through
this agreement during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 10 LEASE COMMITMENTS

The State has entered into various property and equipment operating leases (terms in excess of
one year) with aggregate future rentals approximating $182.5 million, of which $157.7 million
relates to property leases and $24.8 million relates to equipment leases. Operating leases contain
various renewal options. Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals and contingent rents are
considered immaterial to the future minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expenditures of the related fund when paid. Lease
payments for fiscal year 2016 were approximately $34.4 million, of which $26.6 million was for
office space and $7.8 million, was for equipment. The equipment leases held by the State
consists mainly of computers, data processing equipment and fleet vehicles.

Significant annual equipment rentals include $4.9 million for fleet vehicles and data processing
equipment for the Office of Management and Budget, and $1.7 million for data processing
equipment for the Department of Education. Significant annual real estate rentals include $6.5
million for leases for Health and Social Services facilities, $2.0 million for the Department of
Services for Children, Youth and Their Families, $3.3 million for office space for the
Department of Correction, and $3.3 million for the Department of Labor.

Future minimum lease commitments for operating leases as of June 30, 2016 are shown in the
following table:
Lease Commitments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Operating
Ending Leases
2017 $ 33,616
2018 29,597
2019 25,955
2020 21,876
2021 16,219
2022-2026 35,328
2027-2031 12,383
2032-2036 7,539
Total $ 182,513
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NOTE 11 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Compensated absences payable are reported in the government-wide financial statements and in
the proprietary fund financial statements. They represent benefits accrued to State employees for
vacation earned as of year-end and sick leave estimated to be paid out at retirement for services
rendered as of June 30, 2016. Employees earn from 1.25 to 1.75 days of vacation leave per
month depending on years of service. Employees or their estates are paid for unused vacation
upon termination of employment with a maximum credit of 52 days unless prior approval to
carryover days in excess of the maximum. Employees earn 1.25 days of sick leave per month.
The State’s obligation for sick leave credit is a maximum of 45 workdays. $170.9 million has
been accrued for the Governmental Activities and $11.6 million in the Business-type Activities
for the total compensated absences liability. The current portion of the long-term obligation for
compensated absences is $15.4 million in the Governmental Activities and $2.1 million in the
Business-type Activities. Approximately $145.7 million (85.2%) of the long-term obligation for
compensated absences will be liquidated by the General Fund. Of the remainder, approximately
$8.2 million (4.8%) and $17.0 million (10.0%) will be paid with Federal Funds and Local School
District Funds, respectively.

The State has recorded $390.0 million relating to the accrual of the obligation for escheated
(abandoned) property of which $78.0 million was recorded as the current portion.

The State has incurred obligations relating to scholarship and physician loan repayment
programs, resulting in an additional long-term obligation of $4.7 million, of which $1.5 million
was recorded as the current portion and is included in the governmental funds as other liabilities.

NOTE 12 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following table provides a summary of changes in long-term obligations of the primary
government for the year ended June 30, 2016:
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Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Primary Government

(Expressed in Thousands)
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

$ 2,058,181.0 $

490,770.9

$ (285,840.9) $§ 2,263,111.0 $ -

Compensated Absences (Note 11) 170,293.6 16,637.7 (16,016.1) 170,915.2 15,436.3
Claims and Judgments (Notes 15 and 21) 174,348.7 38,095.8 (36,106.5) 176,338.0 40,228.7
Escheat Payable (Note 11) 175,000.0 292,992.3 (77,992.3) 390,000.0 78,000.0
Notes Payable (Note 9) 27,2717.9 - (1,338.6) 25,939.3 1,436.5
Pollution Remediation Obligations (Note 21) 35,185.9 304.1 (3,445.9) 32,044.1 11,171.7
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds (Note 7) 1,875,393.2 321,530.0 (294,025.0)  1,902,898.2 172,135.0
Bond Issue Premium, Net of

Accumulated Amortization 195,842.1 51,957.3 (28,432.8) 219,366.6 18,309.9
Revenue Bonds (Note 8) 52,925.2 - (3,045.1) 49,880.1 2,915.0
Physician and Scholarship

Programs (Note 11) 3,697.6 2,436.7 (1,458.6) 4,675.7 1,458.6
Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities $ 4,768,145.2 $ 1,214,724.8 $ (747,701.8) $ 5,235,168.2 $341,091.7
Business-type Activities:

Other Postemployment Benefits (Note 16) $ 217,812.0 $ 354656 $ (13,272.7) $ 240,0049 $ -
Compensated Absences (Note 11) 11,914.9 1,745.5 (2,090.3) 11,570.1 2,101.6
Pollution Remediation Obligations (Note 21) 1,993.0 3,773.0 (1,941.5) 3,824.5 883.0
Liabilities Payable from

Restricted Assets (Note 19) 2,564.7 - (229.7) 2,335.0 -
Claims and Judgements (Note 15 and 21) 11,654.0 6,046.7 (6,648.7) 11,052.0 4,155.0
Bonds Payable:

Revenue Bonds (Note 8) 861,400.0 394,010.0 (269,115.0) 986,295.0 70,595.0
Bond Issue Premium, Net of

Accumulated Amortization 45,478.5 56,941.9 (15,349.8) 87,070.6 16,166.2
Business-type Activities Long-term Liabilities $ 1,152,817.1 $ 497,982.7 $ (308,647.7) $ 1,342,152.1 § 93,900.8

NOTE 13 NO COMMITMENT DEBT (NOT INCLUDED
STATEMENTS)

IN FINANCIAL

The State, by action of the General Assembly, created various authorities for the express purpose
of providing private entities with an available low cost source of capital financing for
construction of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds of the authorities
represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The
majority of the bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond,
ownership of acquired property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. The State has
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no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements. These bonds are issued through the Delaware Economic Development
Authority. The principal amount of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2016 for this entity amounted
to $751.7 million.

NOTE 14 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)
Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 475937 $ 6,804 $ 2 3 482,739
Easements 79,781 3,513 - 83,294
Construction-In-Progress 198,735 141,395 (64,638) 275,492
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated 754,453 151,712 (64,640) 841,525
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Vehicles 90,107 7,868 (3,461) 94,514
Buildings 4,027,631 45,673 (21,108) 4,052,196
Equipment 113,301 4,055 (8,010) 109,346
Land Improvements 273,030 19,100 (507) 291,623
Computer Software 107,006 26,444 - 133,450
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 4,611,075 103,140 (33,086) 4,681,129
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Vehicles (66,006) (5,866) 3,380 (68,492)
Buildings (1,332,007) (90,577) 13,505 (1,409,079)
Equipment (78,004) (6,122) 7,766 (76,360)
Land Improvements (98,395) (12,875) 285 (110,985)
Computer Software (74,704) (14,471) - (89,175)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,649,116) (129,911) 24,936 (1,754,091)
Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated, Net 2,961,959 (26,771) (8,150) 2,927,038
Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 3,716,412  § 124941  $ (72,790) $ 3,768,563
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Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities Beginning Ending
DelDOT Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land $ 298,948 § 7,756 S -5 306,704

Infrastructure 3,760,135 63,0606 - 3,823,201

Welcome and Service Center 22,100 - - 22,100

Construction In Progress 17,170 7,946 (9,444) 15,672
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated 4,098,353 78,768 (9,444) 4,167,677
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Buildings & Improvements 137,531 8,203 (143) 145,591

Furniture & Equipment 294,328 32,048 (17,741) 308,635
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 431,859 40,251 (17,884) 454,226
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Buildings & Improvements (45,109) (4,163) 135 (49,137)

Furniture & Equipment (163,811) (23,445) 17,192 (170,064)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (208,920) (27,608) 17,327 (219,201)
Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated, Net 222,939 12,643 (557) 235,025
Business-type Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 4,321,292  $ 91,411 § (10,001) $ 4,402,702

Depreciation expense was charged to the following primary government functions as

follows:
Depreciation Expense
(Expressed in Thousands)
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Health and Children's Services
Judicial and Public Safety
Natural Resources and Environmental Control
Labor
Education

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
DelDOT

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities

$ 21,332

13,517
17,844
4,740
69
72,409

$ 129,911

$ 27,608

$ 27,608
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In fiscal year 2010, construction was completed on the Welcome and Service Center pursuant to
an agreement with HMS Host Tollroads, Inc. (HMS), under which HMS financed, designed, and
built the Center and continues to maintain and operate the Center for 35 years. Under the
agreement, HMS is responsible for maintaining the Center to current conditions and insuring the
Center over the course of the 35 years of operations. DelDOT is entitled to a percentage of all
sales from fuel and non-fuel items sold. At the end of the agreement, operation of the Center
will be transferred to DelDOT in its enhanced condition. DelDOT reports the Center as a capital
asset with a carrying value of $22.1 million and a related deferred inflow of resources of $18.3
million as of June 30, 2016. The deferred inflow of resources is amortized over the 35 year life
of the agreement.

NOTE 15 RISK MANAGEMENT

The State is exposed to various risks of losses related to workers’ compensation, employee
health-care and accident, automobile accident, police professional malpractice and property and
casualty claims. It is the policy of the State not to purchase commercial insurance to cover these
risks. Instead, State management believes it is more economical to manage its risk internally and
thus, covers all claim settlements and judgments out of its general fund. The State continues to
carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including general liability and the
remainder of the property and casualty liability. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from prior years. In the past three years of insured coverage, settled claims
have not exceeded commercial coverage.

Claim liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process does not result in an exact
amount. Claim liabilities are reevaluated annually to take into consideration recently settled
claims, the frequency of claims and other economic and social factors.

The management of the State estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the
State at June 30, 2016, for workers’ compensation, automobile accident and health-care claim
liabilities is $231.0 million. The claim liabilities relating to health-care totaling $56.5 million
have been recorded as accrued liabilities in governmental activities. The liability for workers’
compensation and automobile accident liabilities totaling $174.6 million has been recorded in
governmental activities as claims and judgments. The current portion of these claims totals $39.7
million. Other claim liabilities relating to police professional malpractice and property and
casualty were not recorded at June 30, 2016 as the total of these liabilities were not material to
the financial statements.
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Changes in the balances of claim liabilities during fiscal years 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Current Year

Beginning Claims and Ending
Fiscal Balance Changes in  Actual Claim Balance
Year July 1 Estimates Payments June 30
2015 $ 219,994 § 769,753 § (763,669) $ 226,078
2016 226,078 798,088 (793,122) 231,044

DelDOT — Delaware Transit Corporation

DTC maintains coverage for workers’ compensation benefits. DTC manages the coverage
through the purchase of commercial insurance. The payment of workers’ compensation claims
is processed through a third-party administrator. DTC is not responsible for any costs other than
the premium paid, thus no loss contingency reserves were established.

DTC also maintains auto insurance coverage through both the retention of risk and the purchase

of commercial insurance. Auto loss reserves that are based upon actuarial reviews were
established by DTC.

DTC has recorded $9.7 million of claim liabilities as Insurance Loss Reserve. Of this amount,
$2.8 million has been recorded as current.

Changes in the balances of total claim liabilities during the fiscal years 2016 and 2015 were as
follows:

Current Year

Beginning Claims and Ending
Fiscal Balance Changes in  Actual Claim Balance
Year July 1 Estimates Payments June 30
2015 $ 12,011 S 5,181 $ (5,538) $ 11,654
2016 11,654 4,720 (6,649) 9,725
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NOTE 16 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

On July 1, 2007, the Delaware OPEB Fund Trust (OPEB Trust) was established pursuant to
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and separate from the DPERS. The OPEB Trust is
administered by the DPERS Board of Directors. Policy for and management of the OPEB
benefits provided to retirees are the responsibility of the State. No stand-alone financial report is
issued for the OPEB Trust.

The OPEB Trust is a single-employer defined benefit plan. The OPEB Trust provides retirement
medical coverage to pensioners and their eligible dependents in the State Employees’, Judiciary,
New State Police, and Closed State Police pension plans. The State of Delaware has elected to
assume the OPEB liability on behalf of employees who participate in the State’s pension plan but
are employed at outside agencies including Delaware State University, University of Delaware,
Delaware State Housing Authority, Delaware Charter Schools and Delaware Solid Waste
Authority. Due to this assumption, the State is a single employer defined benefit plan.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2015:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 20,970
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving the Benefits 3,205
Active Eligible Plan Members 36,748

Total 60,923

The June 30, 2015 participant data was utilized to determine the OPEB lability for fiscal year-
ended June 30, 2016.

Substantially all State employees become eligible for post-retirement benefits if they reach
retirement age while working for the State. The costs of providing these benefits are shared
between the State and the retired employee. The plan provisions are as follows:

Eligibility:

State Employees:

Early Retirement:
Age 55 with 15 years of service or any age with 25 years of service

Normal Retirement (hired before 1/1/2012):
Age 62 with 5 years of service or age 60 with 15 years of service or any age
with 30 years of service

Normal Retirement (hired on or after 1/1/2012):
Age 65 with 10 years of service or age 60 with 20 years of service or any age
with 30 years of service

95



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

Judges:
Normal Retirement (before July 1, 1980):
Age 65 with 12 years of service or any age with 24 years of service or
involuntarily retired after 22 years of service as a judge
Normal Retirement (after June 30, 1980):
Age 62 with 12 years of service or any age with 24 years of service or
involuntarily retired after 22 years of service as a judge

Closed State Police:
Normal Retirement:
Age 55 or 20 years of service

Open State Police:
Normal Retirement:
Age 55 with 10 years of service or any age with 20 years of service or 10

years of service when age plus service equals 75

Benefits:

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the State provided health insurance options through
several providers.

Spouse and Survivor Coverage:

Both are available under any of the plan options with similar retiree contributions.

Employee Contributions:

If hired prior to July 1, 1991, no contributions are required. If hired on or after July 1, 1991
(except disability pension), contributions depend on years of service.

Retiree Contributions (hired on or after July 1, 1991):

Years of Service Percent of Premium Paid by State

Less than 10 0%
10-14 50%
15-19 75%

20 or more 100%

Funding Policy

The State of Delaware funds the OPEB for current retirees on a pay-as-you-go basis along with
funding for future benefits at a rate that is approved in the annual budget, but not actuarially
determined, typically from the General Fund. Additional funding has also been provided on an
ad hoc basis. By State Statute Chapter 52, Title 29 of the Delaware Code, contribution
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requirements of plan members and the government are established and may be amended by the
State Legislature. Funds are recorded in the OPEB Trust for the payment of retiree healthcare
claims, administrative and investment expenses. Administrative costs are financed through
investment earnings. State appropriations, other employer contributions, and retiree contributions
for healthcare are recorded in the OPEB Trust. The funds available are invested under the
management of the DPERS Board of Pension Trustees, which acts as the Board of Trustees for
the OPEB Trust and is responsible for the financial management of the OPEB Trust.

Contributions

The contribution rates for the employer and retiree are established annually by the budgeting
process of the State. Those rates include an employer contribution based on projected pay-as-
you-go financing requirements as a percent of covered payroll, with an additional amount to
prefund benefits, which is not actuarially determined. For fiscal year 2016, the State contribution
totaled $217.8 million.

Retiree contribution rates are affected by the retiree date of hire, with eligible retirees hired after
June 30, 1991 paying a proportionately higher rate if their years of service total less than 20.
Retiree contributions for health coverage totaled $9.6 million.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The State’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of
the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GAAP. The ARC represents
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of thirty years. Amounts “required”
but not actually set aside to pay for these benefits are accumulated as part of the net OPEB
obligations. The following table shows the components of the State’s annual OPEB for fiscal
year 2016 and the preceding fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the
State’s net OPEB obligation (dollar amounts in millions):

Governmental Business-Type
Total Activities Activities *

Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2015 $ 22760 $ 2,058.2 $ 217.8
Annual Required Contribution 439.4 403.2 36.2
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 96.4 87.5 8.9
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (89.0) (79.4) 9.6)
Subtotal 2,722.8 2,469.5 2533
Employer Contributions (219.7) (206.4) (13.3)
Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2016 $ 25031 $ 2,263.1 $ 240.0

* This column includes DTC's OPEB activity on its obligation of $112.3 million at June 30, 2016.
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The State’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014 are as follows (dollar amounts
in millions):

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of Net
Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
June 30 Cost Contributed Obligation
2106 $ 425.6 51% $ 2,390.8
2015 404.4 56% 2,174.5
2014 406.7 50% 1,988.5

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2016, the plan was 4.2% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$7,460.0 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $310.0 million, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7,150.0 million for the primary government. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,114.0 million and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 338%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, will present
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the OPEB plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used.
Investments are valued at market fair value. The actuarial assumptions included a 3.75%
investment rate of return, which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns
on plan assets and on the State’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and a medical inflation rate of 4.0%. The UAAL is being amortized as
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a level percentage of projected payroll on a level percent open basis over 30 years using a 3.25%
rate of salary increase.

Delaware Transit Corporation (DTC)
Plan Description

In June 2010, the Delaware Transit Corporation OPEB Fund Trust (DTC OPEB Trust) was
established pursuant to Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. The DTC OPEB Trust is
administered by DTC. Policy for and management of the DTC OPEB Trust provided to retirees
are the responsibility of DTC. No stand-alone financial report is issued for the DTC OPEB
Trust.

The DTC OPEB Trust is a single-employer, defined benefit plan. The DTC OPEB Trust
provides retirement medical insurance coverage to employees who retire and their eligible
dependents. DTC has elected to assume the DTC OPEB Trust liability on behalf of all of its
employees.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2015 (valuation date):

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 230
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving the Benefits 67
Active Eligible Plan Members 851

Total 1,148

Substantially all DTC employees become eligible for post-retirement benefits if they reach
retirement age while working for DTC. The plan provisions are as follows:

Eligibility:

Contract employees:

Age 65 with five years of service or after attaining 25 years of service
Noncontract employees:

Age 55 with 10 years of service or age 62 with five years of service
Benefits:

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, DTC provided health insurance options through
several providers.

Spouse and Survivor Coverage:
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Surviving spouses of participants are allowed access to the plan and receive the same subsidy as
retirees.

Funding Policy

DTC funds the DTC OPEB Trust on a pay-as-you-go basis with additional funding provided in
the DTC OPEB Trust on an ad-hoc basis. Funds are recorded in the OPEB Trust for the
payment of retiree healthcare claims and administrative and investment expenses.
Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. Employer contributions and
retiree contributions for healthcare are recorded in the DTC OPEB Trust. The funds available
are invested under DTC’s management, which acts as the Trustee for the DTC OPEB Trust and
is responsible for the financial management of the DTC OPEB Trust. The cash basis costs
associated with these benefits was $1.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

Contributions

DTC subsidizes the medical premium. The subsidized percentage is 90% of published rates for
retirees less than age 65 and 100% for retirees age 65 or greater. DTC subsidizes 100% of the
dental and vision coverage for noncontract employees. Contract employees are allowed access to
dental and vision coverage, but must pay the full premium. Life insurance is provided to retirees.
Retirees under age 70 receive $6,000 in coverage. Once the participant reaches age 70, the
coverage drops to $5,000. DTC must pay $0.265 per month per $1,000 of coverage for each
employee.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation

DTC’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based upon the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GAAP. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. Amounts
“required” but not actually contributed to pay for these benefits are accumulated as part of the
net OPEB obligations. The following table shows the components of DTC’s annual OPEB cost
for fiscal year 2016 and the preceding year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
DTC’s net OPEB obligation (expressed in thousands):

Net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2015 $ 101,509
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 13,865
Interest on Net OPEB obligations 3,988
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (5,206)
Net OPEB obligation before Contributions 114,156
Contributions Made (1,824)
Net OPEB obligations at June 30, 2016 $ 112,332
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DTC’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
2016 $ 12,647 14.4% $ 112,332
2015 11,950 11.7% 101,509
2014 16,748 7.7% 90,958

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation, the plan was 2.1% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability was $113.9 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $2.3 million, resulting
in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $111.6 million. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $44.6 million and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 250.1%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARCs of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the OPEB plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used with linear
proration to assumed benefit commencement. The actuarial assumptions included 4.0%
investment rate of return, 3.0% payroll growth rate, a 2.4% inflation rate, and a healthcare cost
trend rate based on the Society of Actuaries Long Term Trend Model adjusted for the projected
impact of the Cadillac tax rate for pre-age 65 retirees with rate fluctuations between 4.7% and
5.9% over the next 30 years.

The unfunded liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payrolls over a 30- year closed
amortization period.
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NOTE 17 PENSIONS
General Information about the Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The State Board of Pension Trustees (Board) administers the following plans/funds (the Plans) of
DPERS as described below:

State Employees’ Pension Plan

Special Fund

New State Police Pension Plan

Judiciary Pension Plans (Closed and Revised)

County & Municipal Police and Firefighters’ Pension Plans
County & Municipal Other Employees’ Pension Plan
Delaware Volunteer Firemen’s Fund

Diamond State Port Corporation Pension Plan

Closed State Police Pension Plan.

With the exception of the Diamond State Port Corporation Pension Plan, the State’s General
Assembly is responsible for setting benefits and contributions and amending plan provisions;
administrative rules and regulations are adopted and maintained by the Board. The Board of
Directors for the Diamond State Port Corporation is responsible for setting benefits and
contributions and amending the Diamond State Port Corporation Pension Plan’s provisions.

The Plans of DPERS are considered part of the State’s financial reporting entity and are included
in the accompanying financial statements as pension trust funds in the fiduciary funds. All of the
investment assets of the plans and funds, with the exception of the Delaware Volunteer
Firemen’s Fund, are pooled and invested in a common DPERS Master Trust (Master Trust).
Each of the plans or funds share in the Master Trust based on funds contributed and earnings or
losses allocated. Individual investments in the Master Trust are not specifically identified to the
various plans or funds.

Additionally, the following non-DPERS retirements funds/plans, described below, have been
established under the custody of the Board for investment purposes only:

e County & Municipal Police and Firefighters’ COLA Fund;
e Post-Retirement Increase Fund;
e Delaware Local Government Retirement Investment Pool.

The Delaware Local Government Retirement Investment Pool (DELRIP) is presented separately
as investment trust funds in the fiduciary funds statement of net position and statement of
changes in net position. The remaining non-DPERS retirement funds/plans are included in the
pension trust fund.

A description of the individual plans including eligibility provisions, types of benefits and
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contribution requirements are set forth in general terms below and on the following pages.
Detailed information regarding these plans is available in the Delaware Code and in the Rules
and Regulations of the Board.

The Delaware Transit Corporation (DTC) administers two single-employer pension plans which
cover the noncollectively bargained employees and the collective bargained employees, the DTC
Plan and Contributory Plan, respectively. The descriptions and requirements of both plans are
included on the following pages. Both plans issue a publicly available financial report.

State Employees’ Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The State Employees’ Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan that
covers virtually all full-time or regular part-time employees of the State, including employees of
other affiliated entities.

There are two tiers within this plan:
1) Employees hired prior to January 1, 2012 (Pre-2012)
2) Employees hired on or after January 1, 2012 (Post-2011)

Service Benefits: Final average monthly compensation (excludes overtime for Post 2011
employees) multiplied by 2.0% and multiplied by years of credited service
prior to January 1, 1997, plus final average monthly compensation
multiplied by 1.85% and multiplied by years of credited service after
December 31, 1996, subject to minimum limitations. For this plan, final
average monthly compensation is the monthly average of the highest three
periods of twelve consecutive months of compensation.

Vesting: Pre-2012 date of hire: 5 years of credited service.
Post-2011 date of hire: 10 years of credited service.

Retirement: Pre 2012 date of hire: age 62 with 5 years of credited service; age 60 with
15 years of credited service; or after 30 years of credited service at any
age.

Post-2011 date of hire: age 65 with at least 10 years of credited service;
age 60 with 20 years of credited service; 30 years of credited service at
any age.

Disability Benefits: Pre-2012 date of hire: same as service benefits. Employee must have 5
years of credited service. In lieu of disability pension benefits, over 90%
of the members of this plan opted into a disability insurance program
offered by the State effective January 1, 2006.

Post-2011 date of hire — in the disability insurance program.

Survivor Benefits:  If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives 50% of
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pension (or 67.7% with 2% reduction of benefit, 75% with 3% reduction
of benefit, or 100% with 6% reduction of benefit); if employee is active
with at least 5 years of credited service, eligible survivor receives 75% of
the benefit the employee would have received at age 62.

Contributions: Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees based on the
actuarially determined rate. Employer contributions were 9.6% of
earnings for fiscal year 2016.
Pre-2012 date of hire Member - 3% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Post-2011 date of hire Member - 5% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Correctional Officers — additional 2% of earnings in excess of $6,000.

Burial Benefit: $7,000 per member.
Special Fund

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The Special Fund is a single employer defined benefit plan that provides certain benefits granted
to individuals through legislation passed by the General Assembly.

Service Benefits: Defined by special legislation.
Vesting: Defined by special legislation.
Retirement: Defined by special legislation.

Disability Benefits: Defined by special legislation.

Survivor Benefits: ~ Same as State Employees' Plan.

Contributions: Employer contributions are actuarially determined and fully funded in
advance by the General Assembly.

Burial Benefit: $7,000 per member.
New State Police Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The New State Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan that covers all State
police officers appointed on or after July 1, 1980.

Service Benefits: 2.5% of final average monthly compensation multiplied by years of
credited service up to 20 years, plus 3.5% of final average monthly

104



State of Delaware

Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:
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compensation multiplied by years of service in excess of 20 years. For this
plan, final average monthly compensation is the monthly average of the
highest three consecutive years of compensation.

10 years of credited service at age 62.

Age 62 with 10 years of credited service; age plus credited service (but not
less than 10 years) equals 75; has 10 years of service and is retired due to
age; or 20 years of credited service.

Duty — Total Disability - 75% of final average monthly compensation plus
10% for each dependent not to exceed 25% for all dependents.

Partial Disability - calculated the same as service benefits, subject to
minimum 50% of final average monthly compensation.

Non-Duty — same as service benefits, total disability subject to a minimum
50% of final average monthly compensation plus 5% for each dependent
not to exceed 20% for all dependents. Partial disability to a minimum of
30% of final average monthly compensation.

If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives 50% of
pension; if employee is active, eligible survivor receives 75% of
compensation.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees based on the
actuarially determined rate. Employer contributions were 18.6% of
earnings for fiscal year 2016.

Member - 7% of compensation.

$7,000 per member.

Judiciary Pension Plans (Closed and Revised)

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The Closed Judiciary Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan that covers
members of State Judiciary appointed before July 1, 1980.

The Revised Judiciary Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan that covers
members of State Judiciary appointed on or after July 1, 1980 or members appointed before
July 1, 1980 who accept the provisions of this Plan.

Assets of one plan can be used to satisfy the liabilities of the other plan.

Service Benefits:

Revised - 1/24th of final average monthly compensation multiplied by
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Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:
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years of service up to 12 years, plus 1/48th of final average monthly
compensation, multiplied by years of service from 13 to 24 years, subject
to maximum limitations. = For this plan, final average monthly
compensation is the monthly average of the highest three consecutive
years of compensation.

12 years of credited service.

Revised - Age 62 with 12 years of credited service, or any age with 24
years of credited service.

Same as service benefits.

Closed - If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives
2/3 of pension; if employee is active with 12 years of credited service, the
eligible survivor receives 2/3 of pension the employee would have been
eligible to receive.

Revised - If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives
50% of pension (or 2/3 with 2% reduction of benefit); if employee is
active with at least 5 years of credited service, eligible survivor receives
2/3 of the benefit the employee would have received at age 62.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees based on the
actuarially determined rate. Employer contributions were 21.5% of
earnings for fiscal year 2016.

Member:

Closed - $500 per year for the first 25 years of service.

Revised - 3% of earnings that exceed $6,000 per year, plus 2% of earnings
that exceed the Social Security Wage Base for the first 24 years of service.

Not applicable.

Closed State Police Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The Closed State Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan that covers all
State police officers appointed before July 1, 1980. The Plan was closed to new entrants
beginning July 1, 1980.

Survivor Benefits:

If employee is active or is receiving a service or service-related disability
pension, the eligible survivor receives 75% of pension; if employee is
receiving a non-service related disability pension; eligible survivor
receives 50% of pension.
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Burial Benefit:
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Employer - funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

$7,000 per member.

Diamond State Port Corporation Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The Diamond State Port Corporation Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan
which covers all employees of the Diamond State Port Corporation.

Service Benefits:

Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:

1.75% of final average monthly compensation multiplied by the years of
credited service (not to exceed 30 years). For this plan, final average
monthly compensation is the monthly average of the highest consecutive
five years of compensation within the last ten years of employment.

5 years of credited service.

Age 65 with 5 years of credited service, or age (not less than 55 years)
plus credited service equals 90.

Same as service benefits. Employee must have 15 years of credited
service.

If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives 50% of
pension; if employee is active with at least 15 years of credited service,
then eligible survivor receives 50% of pension the employee would have
received at age 65.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees at the actuarially
determined rate. Employer contributions were 9.7% of earnings for fiscal
year 2016.

Member - 2% of compensation.

Not applicable.

County & Municipal Police and Firefighters’ Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

County & Municipal Police and Firefighters’ Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan that cover police officers and firefighters employed by a county or
municipality of the State which has become part of the Plan.

Service Benefits:

2.5% of final average monthly compensation multiplied by years of
credited service up to 20 years, plus 3.5% of final average monthly
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Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:
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compensation multiplied by years of service in excess of 20 years. For this
plan, final average monthly compensation is the monthly average of the
highest three consecutive years of compensation.

5 years of credited service.

Age 62 with 5 years of service; age plus credited service (but not less than
10 years) equals 75; or 20 years of credited service.

Duty - Total Disability - 75% of final average compensation plus 10% for
each dependent not to exceed 25% for all dependents.

Partial Disability - calculated the same as service benefits, subject to
minimum 50% of final average compensation.

Non-Duty - Same as service benefits.

Total Disability subject to a minimum of 50% of final average monthly
compensation plus 5% for each dependent not to exceed 20% for all
dependents.

Partial Disability subject to a minimum of 30% of final average monthly
compensation.

If employee is receiving a pension, then eligible survivor receives 50% of
pension; if employee is active, eligible survivor receives 50% of pension
the employee would have received at age 62. If the member is killed in
the line of duty, the eligible survivor receives 75% of the member’s
compensation.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees at the actuarially
determined rate. Employer contributions were 13.9% of earnings for
fiscal year 2016.

Member - 7% of compensation.

Not applicable.

County and Municipal Other Employees' Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

County and Municipal Other Employees' Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit plan that covers employees of counties or municipalities which have become part

of the Plan.

Service Benefits:

1/60th of final average monthly compensation multiplied by years of
credited service, subject to maximum limitations. For this plan, final
average monthly compensation is the monthly average of the highest five
years of compensation.
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Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:;
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5 years of credited service.

Age 62 with 5 years of credited service, age 60 with 15 years of credited
service; or after 30 years of credited service.

Same as service benefits. Employee must have 5 years of credited service.

If employee is receiving a pension, then eligible survivor receives 50% of
pension; if the employee is active, eligible survivor receives 50% of
pension the employee would have received at age 62.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees at the actuarially
determined rate. Employer contributions were 6.2% of earnings for fiscal
year 2016.

Member - 3% of earnings in excess of $6,000.

Not applicable.

Delaware Volunteer Firemen’s Fund

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The Delaware Volunteer Firemen’s Fund is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
pension plan that covers all actively participating volunteers of fire departments, ladies
auxiliaries, or ambulance organizations within the State.

Service Benefits:

Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:

Burial Benefit:

$5 multiplied by years of credited service (not to exceed 25 years) per
month.

10 years of credited service.

Age 60 with 10 years credited service.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Employer - determined by Board of Pension Trustees at the actuarially
determined rate. Employer contributions were $371.27 per member for
fiscal year 2016.

Member - $60 per member per calendar year.

Not applicable.

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2015, the following employees were covered
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by the benefit terms for each plan:

Closed
State New State State
Employees  Special Police Judiciary ~ Police

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 24,356 9 185 48 520
Inactive plan members entitled to but

not yet receiving benefits 3,374 - 12 - -
Active plan members 35,825 - 695 55 -
Total plan members 63,555 9 892 103 520

The June 30, 2015 valuation is the most recent available to record the net pension liability and for
consistency, all schedules are utilized from this valuation.

Non-DPERS Fund Descriptions and Contributions
County & Municipal Police and Firefighters” COLA Fund

During 1990, the State passed legislation which established a mechanism for funding post-
retirement increases granted by employers who participate in the County & Municipal Police and
Firefighters’ Pension Plans and also manage a non-system “closed” pension plan for former
employees. The funds are generated by a 0.25% tax on the value of certain insurance premiums
written within the State. The proceeds of the tax are directed into the COLA Fund and managed
by the Board of Pension Trustees for investment purposes. In accordance with Section 708 (c),
Title 18 of the Delaware Code, when a participating employer grants a post-retirement increase
for a closed plan outside of the DPERS County & Municipal Plans, funds are transferred from
the COLA Fund to the employer. These increases are not the responsibility of DPERS. Unused
funds revert to the State General Fund.

Post-Retirement Increase Fund (PRI)

The State passed legislation which established a mechanism for funding ad hoc post-retirement
increases granted by the General Assembly to members retired under the State Employees’ Plan,
the New State Police Plan, and the Judiciary Plans (Closed and Revised) beginning in fiscal year
1994. The mechanism allows the State to appropriate actuarially determined employer
contributions to a separate PRI fund managed by the Board. With the exception of the Closed
State Police Plan, projected benefit payments do not include the effects of projected ad hoc cost-
of-living adjustments (ad hoc COLAs) as they are not substantively automatic. The primary
considerations relevant to making this determination include the historical pattern of granting
changes and the consistency in the amounts of the changes. The actuary uses the current
actuarial assumptions, methods, and population data to calculate the estimated additional liability
resulting from granted ad hoc benefit increases. When the Legislature grants an ad hoc post-
retirement adjustment, funds are transferred from this PRI fund on a monthly basis based on a
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five-year actuarial funding schedule to the appropriate pension plan from which the additional
benefits are disbursed. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, $39.8 million was transferred to
the appropriate plans in DPERS.

As of June 30, 2016 recently granted post-retirement increases have outstanding liabilities
totaling $59.2 million, which will be funded by the State and transferred to the appropriate plans
over the next six fiscal years as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30
2017 $ 31,137
2018 10,945
2019 11,300
2020 5,834
Total $ 59,216

The Board adopts actuarially determined funding for the Post-Retirement Increase Fund.
Funding for fiscal year 2016 was 2.07% of covered payroll. Funding for fiscal year 2017 will be
1.56%.

Local Government Retirement Investment Pool (DELRIP)

In June 1996, the State established DELRIP in the custody of the Board to allow local
governments within the State the option to pool their pension assets with DPERS for investment
purposes. The DELRIP is an external investment pool that allows local governments to
potentially maximize their rate of return and reduce administrative expenses related to the
investment of funds. Participation in the pool is voluntary. There were three participating entities
in DELRIP as of June 30, 2016, which comprise the pool in its entirety: Sussex County and the
Towns of Elsmere and Newport.

DELRIP is subject to the oversight of DPERS’s Investment Committee and not subject to the
regulatory oversight of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). DPERS has not
provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the year to support the value of
shares. The fair value of the pool is determined in the same manner as the value of the Master
Trust shares. Since this pool is a portion of the total DPERS, the same accounting and investment
policies apply.

Delaware Transit Corporation Pension Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The DTC Pension Plan (DTC Plan) is a single employer defined benefit plan that covers limited
and full-time, nonunion salaried employees.

Service Benefits: 1.35% of the highest 36-month average earnings plus 1.25% of the
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Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

Contributions:
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average earnings above the Integration Amount for the calendar year in
which the participant retires multiplied by years of service, up to a
maximum of 25 years.

100% after 5 years of service

Age 55 with at least 10 years of continuous service or 25 years of credited
service at any age or upon reaching age 62.

Employee must have 5 years of credited service.
Determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable
immediately without an actuarial reduction

If employee dies while employed after completing at least 5 years of
service, the eligible survivor receives 75% of accrued benefit that would
have been payable at age 65, for a former employee who dies after
completing 5 years of service, eligible survivor receives 50% of the
accrued benefit that would have been payable at age 65.

Employer - determined by DTC Pension Board Trustees based on the
actuarially determined rate. Employer contributions were 9.6% of
earnings for fiscal year 2016.

Employee - 3% of earnings in excess of $6,000.

Delaware Transit Corporation Contributory Plan

Plan Description and Eligibility:

The DTC Contributory Plan (Contributory Plan) is a single employer defined benefit plan that
covers all full-time employees of Local 842, Amalgamated Transit Union and Local 32, Office and
Professional Employee International Union.

Service Benefits:

Vesting:

Retirement:

Disability Benefits:

Survivor Benefits:

$65 per month ($68 per month after January 1, 2016) per year of service
or refund of contributions with interest before becoming eligible or
choosing not to elect

Completion of 10 years of service

Age 65 with at least 5 years of continuous service or 25 years of credited
service at any age.

Employee must have 15 years of credited service. Equal to normal

retirement benefit during the period of disability.

If the employee was active and had competed 25 or more years of service,
the eligible survivor receives pension payments equal to the benefit the
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employee would have received if eligible to retire the day before he/she
died for 60 months.

Employer — 5% of regular hourly wages worked up to a maximum of
2,080 hours per year. Employer contributions were 4.5% of earnings for
fiscal year 2016.

Employee - 5% of regular hourly wages worked up to a maximum of
2,080 hours per year.

Employees covered by benefit terms. The following employees were covered by the benefit

terms for each plan:

DTC Contributory
(at June 30, 2015) (at December 31, 2015)

Inactive members or beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 58 163
Terminated, vested members 63 82
Active plan members 272 638
Total plan members 393 883

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the State reported the following net pension liabilities (assets) (expressed in

thousands):
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Plan Asset Liability Asset Liability
State Employees' $ - $ 576,510 $ - $ 25,195
Special Fund 81 - - -
New State Police - 24,852 - -
Judiciary 551 - - -
Closed State Police - 401,924 - -
DTC - - - 1,392
Contributory - - - 3,409
$ 632 $1,003,286 $ - $ 29,996

The net pension asset and liability were measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014 with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension
liability to June 30, 2015. The State’s proportion of the net pension liability of the State
Employees’ Plan was based on a projection of the State’s long-term share of contributions to the
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pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating organizations, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2015, the State’s proportion of the net pension liability of the State
Employees’ Plan was 90.4%, which was a decrease of 0.5% from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2014.

The State’s pension liability and related information for the single-employer plans is as follows:

S tate of Delaware - DPERS
Changes in Single Employer Plans' Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
(Expressed in thousands)

2015
New State Closed State
Special Police Judiciary Police
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ - $ 12,686 $ 2,568 $ -
Interest 14 28,395 5,147 16,173
Change in Benefit Terms - 1,154 263 -
Differences between expected and
actual exp erience 18 (3,520) (1,361) 18,518
Changes of Assumptions - - - 23,078
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions 46) (12,188) (3,985) (23,125)
Net change in total pension liability (14) 26,527 2,632 34,644
Total pension liability - beginning 200 390,044 71,968 369,934
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 186 $ 416,571 $ 74,600 $ 404,578
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ - $ 10,730 $ 2,640 $ 23,473
Contributions - nonemp loyer - 639 200 -
Contributions - member - 4,121 327 -
Net investment income 10 13,741 2,659 364
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions 46) (12,188) (3.985) (23,125)
Administrative expense (1) (113) (15) (60)
Net change in plan fiduciary net
position 37) 16,930 1,826 652
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 304 374,789 73,325 2,002
Plan fiduciary net position - ending
(b) $ 267 $ 391,719 $ 75,151 $ 2,654
State's net pension liability (asset) -
ending (a)-(b) $ (81) $ 24,852 $ (551) $ 401,924
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 144% 94% 101% 1%
Covered-employee payroll $ - $ 57,973 $ 9,988 $ -

State's net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll N/A 43% -6% N/A
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The State’s pension liability and related information for the Delaware Transit Corporation plans
is as follows:

DelDOT- Delaware Transit Corporation
Changes in DTC's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
(Expressed in thousands)

2015
DTC Contributory
Plan Plan
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 843 $ 1,976
Interest 1,612 2,925
Change in Benefit Terms - 1,473
Differences between exp ected and actual
exp erience (297) (112)
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions (629) (2,134)
Net change in total pension liability 1,529 4,128
Total pension liability - beginning 21,812 40,855
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 23,341 $ 44,983
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 1,176 $ 1,253
Contributions - member 57 1,387
Net investment income 555 (869)
Benefit pay ments, including refunds of
member contributions (629) 2,134
Administrative expense 94) 99)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,065 462)
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 20,884 42,036
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 21,949 $ 41,574
Corporation's net pension liability (asset) - ending
(a)-(b) $ 1,392 $ 3,409
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability 94% 92%
Covered-employee payroll $ 12,621 $ 27,967
State's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 11% 12%

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the State recognized pension expense of $196.2 million,
related to all plans.

At June 30, 2016, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources (expressed in thousands):
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Changes in proportionate
share of contributions
Difference between expected
and actual experience

Net difference between
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date
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Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Deferred Deferred Outflows Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
$ 11 $ 4,736 $ 170 $ 1,490
- 12,932 - 925

- 190,551 3,812 8,351

194,878 - 9,258 -
$ 194,889 $ 208,219 $ 13,240 $ 10,766

The State reported $204.1 million as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from State contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Business-Type
June 30 Activities Activities
2017 $ 85,608 $ 3,282
2018 85,608 3,282
2019 85,154 3,282
2020 (52,378) (3,359)
2021 4,216 297
Total $ 208,208 $ 6,784

Contributions. The State reported the following contributions for the DPERS Plan:

DPERS - State Employees' Plan
Schedule of Contributions

(Expressed in thousands)

Contributions 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 161,259
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 161,259
Contribution excess $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,686,806
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.6%
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Closed
State New State State
Employees' Special Police Judiciary Police
Investment Rate of Return/Discount Rate (1) 7.2% 7.2% 7.2% 7.2% 3.8% (2)
Projected Salary Increases (1) 3.5%to0 11.5% N/A 45%to0 11.5% 3.5%to 12% N/A
Cost of Living Adjustments 0% 0% 0% 0% 3%

(1) - With the exception of Closed State Police, inflation is included at 3%
(2) - Closed State Police inflation is included at 2.3%

DTC Contributory
Investment Rate of Return/Discount Rate (1) 7.5% 7%
Projected Salary Increases (1) 2.5% 4%

(1) - Inflation is included at 2%

The total pension liabilities are measured based on assumptions pertaining to interest rates,
inflation rates, and employee demographic behavior in future years. The assumptions used were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted in 2011. It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than
anticipated. The more the experience deviates the larger the impact on future financial
statements.

Mortality rates for the DPERS Plans were based on the Sex distinct RP-2000 combined Mortality
Table projected to 2015 using scale AA for males and females, as appropriate, for mortality
improvement. Mortality rates for the DTC Plan were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy
Tables with generational projection by Scale AA and the rates for the Contributory Plan were
based on the RP-2000 Blue Collar Table without any future mortality improvements.

With the exception of the Closed State Police Pension Plan, projected benefit payments do not
include the effect of projected ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments (ad hoc COLAs) as they are not
substantively automatic. The primary considerations relevant to making this determination
include the historical pattern of granting the changes and the consistency in the amounts of the
changes.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by an asset allocation percentage which is based on the
nature and mix of current and expected plan investments, and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in DPERS’s
current and expected asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, DTC’s current and expected asset
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allocation as of July 1, 2015, and Contributory’s current and expected asset allocation as of
January 1, 2016 are summarized in the following table:

DPERS

Asset Class

Target Allocation
2o

Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return %26

Domestic Equity 36.5 5.7

International Equity 16.5 5.7

Fixed Income 22.6 2.0

Alternative Investments 19.6 7.8

Cash & Equivalents 4.8 0.0
100.0

DTC

Asset Class

Target Allocation
2o

Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return 2o

Domestic Equity 49.0 52-5.6
International Equity 16.0 5.2
Fixed Income 32.5 3.0- 4.8
Alternative Investments 2.5 2.7
Cash & Equivalents 0.0

100.0

Contributory

Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real
Asset Class 2o Rate of Return %o
Equities 60.0 52-5.06
Fixed Income 36.2 3.0- 4.8
Alternative Investiments 2.8 2.7
Cash & Equivalents 1.0 0.8

100.0

Discount rate. The discount rate for all plans, except the Closed State Police Pension Plan, the
DTC Plan, and the Contributory Plan, used to measure the total pension liability was 7.2%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers
will be made at rates determined by the Board of Pension Trustees, actuarially determined. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The Closed State Police Pension Plan used a discount rate of 3.8%, which represents the 20 year
AA Municipal Bond rate since the plan is pay as you go. The discount rate used to measure the
total pension liability was 7.5% for the DTC Plan and 7% for the Contributory Plan. The asset
valuation method uses a five year averaging method. Returns on the average market value of
assets above or below the 7.5% (DTC Plan) or 7% (Contributory Plan) return are gradually
recognized over a five-year period.
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Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the State Employees’ Plan (cost
sharing) and the net pension liability of the other Plans (single employer), calculated using the
discount rate of 7.2% (3.8% for the Closed State Police Pension Plan, 7.5% for the DTC Plan,
and 7.0% for the Contributory Plan), as well as what the State’s proportionate share for the cost
sharing and the single employer Plans’ net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage-point higher than the current
discount rate (expressed in thousands):

Current

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1 % Increase
State Employees' $ 1,359,455 $ 601,705 $ (286,428)
Special Fund (74) (81) o1
New State Police 68,013 24,852 (28,182)
Judiciary 3,128 (551) (8,096)
Closed State Police 451,206 401,924 356,511
DTC 4,238 1,392 (1,012)
Contributory 8,214 3,409 (726)
Total $ 1,894,180 $ 1,032,650 $ 31,976

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued DPERS financial report. The financial report may
be obtained by writing to the State Board of Pension Trustees and Office of Pensions, McArdle
Building, Suite 1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904-2402.

Detailed information about the DTC and Contributory pension plans’ fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial reports. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
Delaware Transit Corporation, 900 Public Safety Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19901.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The State offers all its employees, who are otherwise eligible for the State’s employee benefit
plans, a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section
457(b). The Plan, available to all State of Delaware employees, permits them to defer a portion
of their salary to future years. Participation in the Plan is optional. The deferred compensation is
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

The State offers its employees of the State’s Public (Local) School Districts, the State of
Delaware Department of Education, Delaware Technical and Community College, and Delaware
State University, which is a component unit of the State, a deferred compensation plan designed
to qualify under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan permits these employees
to defer a portion of their salary to future years. Participation in the Plan is optional. On
termination of service due to death, disability, retirement, or other reasons, a participant will
receive either a lump-sum amount equal to the value of the participant’s vested interest in their
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account or periodic payments. In addition, the Plan allows for hardship distributions if certain
criteria are met.

NOTE 18 GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

The State’s Governmental Fund balances are classified according to the relative constraints that
control how amounts can be spent. Classifications include:

e Nonspendable: Balances include items that cannot be spent. This includes activity
that is not in a spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of
loans/notes receivable and interfund receivables, or property held for resale unless the
proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned) and activity that is legally or
contractually required to remain intact.

e Restricted: Balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by
constitutional provisions, enabling legislation such as the enforcement of locally
raised real estate taxes and other revenues for the Local School District Fund, external
resource providers such as creditors and grantors, or imposed by law or regulations of
other governments.

e Committed: Balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by a formal action of the State’s Legislature, the State’s highest level of
decision-making authority. This formal action is the passage of law by the
legislature, or by other parties by the State’s legislature, creating, modifying, or
rescinding an appropriation.

e Assigned: Balances include amounts that are constrained by the State’s intent, as
approved by the State’s legislature, to be used for a specific purpose, but are neither
restricted nor committed. For the General Fund, amounts constrained for the intent to
be used for specific purpose by a governing board or a body or official that has been
delegated authority by the State’s legislature to assign amounts based on budgetary
appropriations. Also, for the General Fund, the amounts assigned for Education are
due largely to the policies set by the Board of Delaware Technical and Community
College (DTCC) for tuition and fees of DTCC.

e Unassigned: Balance is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the
four categories described above. Also, any deficit fund balances within the other
governmental fund types are reported as unassigned.

The State spends restricted resources first and uses unrestricted resources for purposes for which
restricted resources are not available.

When expenditures are incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the State considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the State has provided otherwise
in its commitment or assignment actions.
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State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2016

A summary of governmental fund balances at June 30, 2016, is as follows:

Local Total
School Capital Governmental
General Federal District Projects Funds
Nonspendable
Receivables $ 26,806 $ - $ - $ - $ 26,806
[nventory 5,309 - - - 5,309
Total Nonspendable 32,115 - - - 32,115
Restricted:
Health and Children's Services 14,147 110,044 - 1,968 126,159
Judicial and Public Safety 11,938 - - 1,969 13,907
Natural Resources
and Environmental Control 161,652 171,645 - 14,908 348,205
Agriculture 138 - - - 138
Labor 10,532 - - - 10,532
Education 3,922 - 268,772 76,803 349,497
Economic Development 3,926 - - - 3,926
General Government 3,280 - - 82,120 85,400
Total Restricted 209,535 281,689 268,772 177,768 937,764
Committed B,
Health and Children's Services 11,231 - - - 11,231
Judicial and Public Safety 5,638 - - - 5,638
Natural Resources
and Environmental Control 27,559 - - - 27,559
Agriculture 9,590 - - - 9,590
Labor 7,871 - - - 7,871
Education 17,849 - - - 17,849
Economic Development 78,543 - - - 78,543
General Government 25,013 - - - 25,013
Total Committed 183,294 - - - 183,294
Assigned
Health and Children's Services 2,466 - - - 2,466
Judicial and Public Safety 8,427 - - - 8,427
Natural Resources
and Environmental Control 3,132 - - - 3,132
Agriculture 7,137 - - - 7,137
Education 52,721 - - - 52,721
General Government 9,676 - - - 9,676
Total Assigned 83,559 - - - 83,559
Unassigned 390,386 - - - 390,386
Total Fund Balance $ 898,889 $ 281,689 $ 268,772 $ 177,768 $ 1,627,118
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NOTE 19 AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS

State Lottery - Multi-State Lottery Association

The State Lottery is a member of the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL), which operates
online games on behalf of participating state lotteries. Each MUSL member sells game tickets
through its agents and makes weekly wire transfers to the MUSL in an amount equivalent to the
member’s share of the estimated grand prize liability. Each MUSL member pays lesser prizes
directly to the winners. The MUSL operates the Powerball game, the Mega Millions game and
the Hot Lotto game. Participating lotteries are required to maintain deposits with MUSL for
contingency reserves to protect MUSL from unforeseen prize liabilities. The money in this
reserve fund is refundable to MUSL members if the MUSL disbands or if a member leaves the
MUSL Board.

The amount the Lottery had on deposit with the MUSL, as of June 30, 2016 was $2.3 million.
These amounts are also reported as a liability on the Lottery’s balance sheet because they
represent the amount to be paid to the State upon separation from the MUSL if the MUSL is not
required to use a portion of the Lottery’s reserves held by the MUSL.

Complete separate financial statements for the MUSL may be obtained at the Multi-State Lottery
Association, Suite 210, and 1701 48™ Street, West Des Moines, 1A 50266-6723.

NOTE 20 COMMITMENTS

The State has entered into various contractual commitments for services and for construction of
various highway, capital and lottery projects. Commitments of the proprietary fund include
$655.2 million for DelDOT.

Encumbrances which represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or
services are included in restricted, committed, or assigned fund Dbalance as
appropriate. Encumbrances lapse at the end of the applicable appropriation, unless re-
appropriated by the Legislature. Encumbrances outstanding against continuing appropriations at
the end of fiscal year 2016 are as follows: general fund $169.3 million, federal funds $62.8
million, local school funds $20.2 million and capital project funds $170.4 million.

NOTE 21 CONTINGENCIES

Various parties have made claims against the State. For those cases in which it is reasonably
possible that a loss will be incurred and in which the amount of the potential judgment can be
reasonably estimated, the State estimates the liability to be $236.7 million. The State recognized
$1.7 and $1.3 million, respectively in governmental and business-type activities as claims and
judgments liabilities for pending litigation settlements estimated to be probable as of June 30,
2016. $500 thousand is recorded in the in the governmental funds as other liabilities reflecting
settlements paid subsequent to the end of the fiscal year. In the opinion of the Attorney General
of the State, the remaining cases are either subject to a valid defense or are not expected to result
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in an impairment of the State’s financial position. Management believes the settlement in
aggregate of claims outstanding will not result in amounts material to the financial statements of
the State.

The State receives significant financial assistance from the federal government in the form of
grants and entitlements. The right to these resources is generally conditioned upon compliance
with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including
the expenditure of the resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors. Any disallowances as a result of these audits
become a liability of the State. In June 2016, the State entered into a repayment agreement with
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) due to the disallowance of costs charged
by the State to CMS in the amount of $10.1 million. $1.7 million was repaid in June 2016 and
the remaining balance of $8.4 million is included with accounts payable. The State does not
believe there are any additional liabilities that may result from such audits for periods through
June 30, 2016 would have a material effect on its financial position or the results of operations.

Site investigation, planning and design, cleanup and site monitoring are typical pollution
remediation activities underway across the State. Several State organizations have dedicated
programs, rules and regulations that routinely deal with remediation related issues; others
become aware of pollution conditions in the fulfillment of their missions. The State has the
knowledge and expertise to estimate the remediation obligations presented herein based upon
prior experience in identifying and funding similar remediation activities. The State calculates
pollution remediation liabilities using the expected cash flow technique. Where the State cannot
reasonably estimate a pollution remediation obligation, it does not report a liability; however, the
State has not identified any of these situations.

The pollution remediation obligation estimates that appear in this report are subject to change
over time. Cost may vary due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, changes in potential
responsible parties, results of environmental studies, changes to statutes or regulations and other
factors that could result in revisions to these estimates. Prospective recoveries from responsible
parties may reduce the State’s obligation. Capital assets may be created when pollution
remediation outlays are made under specific circumstances.

At June 30, 2016, the State had a total pollution remediation liability of $35.9 million. Of this
amount, $19.2 million is for various lead remediation projects where the properties are either
owned by the State or a local government or the properties have been abandoned by the owners,
$4.2 million are for properties owned by corporations where legal agreements are in place for the
State to cover the costs, $2.4 million are for federally designated environmental hazards where
the State is working with the Environmental Protection Agency to remediate and the remaining
$10.1 million are for remediation to properties that have been acquired by the State.

The State Lottery has discharged its primary responsibility for payment of annual installments
(generally 14 to 20 years) to winners of jackpots greater than $150 thousand by purchasing
annuities from private insurance companies. The Lottery remains liable for future periodic
payments of deferred prize obligations (approximately $50 thousand at June 30, 2016) in the
event that the annuity issuers default on their obligations.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY REPORTING
BUDGETARY BASIS VS. GAAP

While GAAP requires the use of the fund structure described in Note 1(b), the State’s budget
system uses only a general fund and a special fund, each of which uses the basis of accounting
described below. Additionally, the activities of the Delaware State Housing Authority and
Delaware State University, both component units of the State, which are not substantially
supported by tax revenues, are not included in the budget data. Reconciliation of the accrual
adjustments necessary to convert budgetary basis information to GAAP basis is presented as
Required Supplementary Information.

The State Constitution requires the Governor to prepare and submit to the General Assembly a
State budget for the ensuing year. The State budgets and controls its financial activities on the
cash basis of accounting. In compliance with State law, the State records its financial
transactions in either of two major categories — the general fund or the special fund. References
to these two funds in this document include the terms “budgetary” or “budgetary basis” to
differentiate them from the GAAP funds of the same name which encompass different funding
categories. The General Assembly enacts the budget through the passage of specific line-item
appropriations by department, the legal level of budgetary control, the sum of which must not
exceed 98 percent of the estimated revenues and available unencumbered cash balance from the
prior year pursuant to the State Constitution. The Governor has the power to approve or veto
each appropriation passed by the General Assembly. The General Assembly may also enact
supplemental appropriation or special appropriation bills after it completes action on the State’s
budget.

The budgetary general fund provides for the cost of the State’s general operations and is credited
with all tax and other revenue of the State not dedicated to budgetary special funds. Certain
special funds are subject to appropriation, referred to herein as budgetary or appropriated special
funds. Unexpended appropriations at year-end are available for subsequent expenditure to the
extent that they have been encumbered at that date or legislatively extended for another year.
Budget data represents original appropriations modified by interdepartmental transfers,
supplemental, continuing, and carried-over encumbered appropriations. Subsequent
modifications to the budget require the approval of the Controller General and the Budget
Director. Additional detailed information regarding compliance with the legal level on control
can be obtained by contacting the Office of Management and Budget at (302) 739-4206.
Summary information regarding department budgets and the compliance with the legal level of
budgetary control is presented on the following pages.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in budgetary funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders)
outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities and are reported as
reservations of fund balances because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent
year.

The budget schedules in Required Supplemental Information a) reflect the adjustments made to
increase the special fund’s excess of revenues over expenditures for certain revenue sources not
previously recognized; b) eliminates the net activity of certain operations that are accounted for
within both the special fund and also in the separate accounts of certain component units or

125



agency funds that are not principally accounted for within the special fund; and c) presents the
accrual adjustments necessary to convert budgetary basis information to GAAP basis.

Statutory/Budgetary Presentation

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
presented on the following pages provides a comparison of the original and final legally adopted
budget with actual data on a budgetary basis.

The original budget and related estimated revenues represent the spending authority enacted into
law by the appropriations bill as of June 30, 2016, and do not include encumbrances and multi-
year projects budgetary carry-forwards from the prior fiscal year. GAAP requires that the final
legal budget be reflected in the “final budget” column; therefore, updated revenue estimates
available for appropriations as of the last Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council
(DEFAC) meeting in June 2016, as well as the amounts shown in the original budget, are
reported. The final legal budget also reflects encumbrances and multi-year projects budgetary
carry-forwards from the prior fiscal year.

The tables on the following page represent the Budgetary Statements of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance — General and Special Funds. Also included is a schedule showing
the budgetary fund balance designations for the General Fund. Of the $569.3 million budgetary
general fund balance at June 30, 2016, $214.7 million is reserved for the budgetary reserve
account, $181.5 million is designated as continuing and encumbered appropriations and $173.1
million is classified as undesignated fund balance. The undesignated fund balance is subjected to
Legislative review and changes.
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Statutory/Budgetary Reconciliations

Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with GAAP, a
reconciliation is required of resulting basis, perspective and entity differences in the revenues in
excess of (less than) expenditures and other financing sources (uses) between budgetary and
GAAP presentations.

The following two schedules represent the accrual adjustments necessary to convert budgetary
basis information to GAAP basis.
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Budgetary vs GAAP Reconciliation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016
(Expressed in Millions)
Budgetary Basis Revenues
General
Special
Total Budgetary Basis General and Special Fund Revenues for Fiscal Year 2015

Adjustments:

The financial reporting revenues do not include amounts that are part of the
budgetary revenues (appropriated special funds)

Non-budgetary revenues reclassified to the general and special fund

Basis of accounting differences in revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred inflows ofresources

Total GAAP Basis General and Special Fund Revenues for Fiscal Year 2016 Included

in the General Fund
Federal Fund Revenue

Local School District Fund Revenue
Capital Projects Fund Revenue

Total GAAP Basis Governmental Funds Revenue for Fiscal Year 2016
Budgetary Basis Expenditures

General

Special
Total Budgetary Basis General and Special Fund Expenditures for Fiscal Year 2015

Adjustments:

The financial reporting expenditures do not include amounts that are part of the
budgetary expenditures (appropriated special funds)

Non-budgetary expenditures reclassified to the general and special fund

Basis of accounting differences in expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Total GAAP Basis General and Special Fund Expenditures for Fiscal Year 2016
Included in the General Fund

Federal Fund Expenditures

Local School District Fund Expenditures
Capital Projects Fund Expenditures

Total GAAP Basis Governmental Funds Expenditures for Fiscal Year 2016

$  3,9445
1,393.2

(911.5)

770.6

(828.9)

2,139.8
598.6

5,337.7

4,367.9

2,738.4

7,106.3

$ 39137
947.3

(390.5)

800.3

(220.7)

2,075.5
571.3
231.9

4,861.0

5,050.1

2,878.7

7,928.8
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Required Supplementary Information
Information About Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the Modified Approach

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, the State has adopted an alternative
process for recording depreciation expense on selected infrastructure assets. Under this
alternative method, referred to as the modified approach, the State expenses certain maintenance
and preservation costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets accounted for under the
modified approach include 4,452 centerline miles and 842 bridges that the State is responsible to
maintain.

The condition of the State’s road pavement is measured using the Overall Pavement Condition
(OPC) system, which is based on the extent and severity of various pavement distresses that are
visually observed. The OPC system uses a measurement scale that is based on a condition index
ranging from 0.0 for poor pavement to 5.0 for pavement in good condition.

The condition of bridges is measured using the “Bridge Condition Rating” (BCR) which is based
on the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Coding Guide, “Recording and Coding Guide
for the Structure Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation’s Bridges.” The BCR uses a
measurement scale that is based on a condition index ranging from 0 to 9, 0 to 4 for substandard
bridges and 9 for bridges in good condition. For reporting purposes, substandard bridges are
classified as those with a rating of 4 or less. The good or better condition bridges were taken as
those with ratings of between 6 and 9. A rating of 5 is considered fair. This information is taken
from past “Bridge Inventory Status” reports.

It is the State’s policy to maintain at least 85% of its highways at a fair or better condition level
and 75% of its bridge systems at a fair or better condition level. No more than 10% of bridges
and 15% of roads should be in substandard condition. Condition assessments are determined
every year for roads and every two years for bridges.
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State of Delaware
Department of Transportation
Supplementary Information For Governments That Use the
Modified Approach for Infrastructure Assets

Structural Rating Numbers and Percentages for Bridges
Evaluation Performed for Calendar Year Ended December 31

2016%* 2015 2014
BCR
Condition
Rating Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Good 6-9 606 71.9 1,211 74.5 1,198 75.3
Fair 5 195 23.2 304 18.7 307 19.3
Poor 0-4 41 49 111 6.7 87 5.5
Totals 842 100.0 1,626 100.0 1,592 100.0
Deck Rating Numbers and Percentages for Bridges
Evaluation Performed for Calendar Year Ended December 31
2016 2015 2014
OPC
Condition Square Square Square
Rating Feet Percent Feet Percent Feet Percent
Good 6-9 5,697,809 70.9 5,979,029 74.3 5,886,694 74.9
Fair 5 1,942,870 24.1 1,696,198 21.1 1,650,327 21.0
Poor 0-4 399,080 5.0 374,113 4.6 321,581 4.1
Totals 8,039,759 100.0 8,049,340 100.0 7,858,602 100.0
Center-Line Mile Numbers and Percentages for Road Pavement
Evaluation Performed for Calendar Year Ended December 31
2015 2013 2011
OPC Center- Center- Center-
Condition Line Line Line
Rating Mile Percent Mile Percent Mile Percent
Good  3.0-5.0 3,960 88.9 4,032 90.6 3,796 86.7
Fair 2.5-3.0 310 7.0 356 8.0 400 9.1
Poor Below 2.5 118 2.8 60 1.3 182 4.2
Unrated 64 0.6 - - - -
Totals 4,452 100.0 4,448 100.0 4,378 100.0

Comparison of Estimated-to-Actual Maintenance/Preservation*
(Expressed In Thousands)
Fiscal Year ended June 30

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Estimated $ 242299 $ 241,900 $ 198,873 $ 185399 § 243,600
Actual § 281,554 $ 291,630 $ 234800 $ 233810 $ 285923

* The estimated expenditures represent annual Bond Bill authorization. The actual
expenditures represent the current year spending, which includes cumulative
authorization.

** The Department has updated its reporting of bridges to coincide with the FHWA's definition

of bridges, which has specific length requirements. Beginning in 2016, bridges that do not
meet the FHWA's definition are no longer reported in the above table.
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Required Supplementary Information — Pension

The following tables present additional information related to funding status and progress. It is
intended to help readers assess the individual plans’ funding status on a going-concern basis and
assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

State of Delaware - DPERS
State Employees' Plan

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 2015 2014 2013
Proportion of the net pension liability 90.4% 90.9% 91.2%
Proportion of the net pension liability - dollar value $ 601,705 $ 334,720 $ 988,024
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,686,806 $ 1,673,099 $ 1,712,613
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of

its covered-employee payroll 35.7% 20.0% 57.7%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability 92.1% 95.8% 87.2%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

132



State of Delaware - DPERS
Changes in Single Employer Plans' Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2015
New State Closed State
Sp ecial Police Judiciary Police
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ - $ 12,686 $ 2,568 $ -
Interest 14 28,395 5,147 16,173
Change in Benefit Terms - 1,154 263 -
Differences between expected and
actual exp erience 18 (3,520) (1,361) 18,518
Changes of Assumptions - - - 23,078
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions (46) (12,188) (3,985) (23,125)
Net change in total pension liability (14) 26,527 2,632 34,644
Total pension liability - beginning 200 390,044 71,968 369,934
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 186 $ 416,571 $ 74,600 $ 404,578
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ - $ 10,730 $ 2,640 $ 23,473
Contributions - nonemp loyer - 639 200 -
Contributions - member - 4,121 327 -
Net investment income 10 13,741 2,659 364
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions (46) (12,188) (3,985) (23,125)
Administrative expense (@)) (113) (15) (60)
Other - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net
position (37) 16,930 1,826 652
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 304 374,789 73,325 2,002
Plan fiduciary net position - ending
(b) $ 267 $ 391,719 $ 75,151 $ 2,654
State's net pension liability (asset) -
ending (a)-(b) $ (81) $ 24,852 $ (551) $ 401,924
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 144% 94% 101% 1%
Covered-employee payroll $ - $ 57,973 $ 9,988 $ -
State's net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of covered-emp loyee payroll N/A 43% -6% N/A

Notes to Schedule
Benefit Changes: None
Changes of assumptions: None

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
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State of Delaware - DPERS

Changes in Single Employer Plans' Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2014
New State Closed State
Special Police Judiciary Police
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ - $ 12,378 $ 2,542 $ 16,319
Interest 15 26,137 4,869 12,942
Change in Benefit Terms - - - -
Differences between expected and
actual experience - - - -
Changes of Assumptions - - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions (42) (10,619) (3,588) (23,301)
Net change in total pension liability (27) 27,896 3,823 5,960
Total pension liability - beginning 227 362,148 68,145 363,974
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 200 $ 390,044 $ 71,968 $ 369,934
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ - $ 10,500 $ 2,839 $ 23,064
Contributions - nonemp loyer - 525 165 -
Contributions - member - 3,862 317 -
Net investment income 48 54,635 10,783 3)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions 42) (10,619) (3,588) (23,301)
Administrative expense [@)) (82) (13) (46)
Other - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net
position 5 58,821 10,503 (286)
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 299 315,968 62,822 2,288
Plan fiduciary net position - ending
(b) $ 304 $ 374,789 $ 73,325 $ 2,002
State's net pension liability (asset) -
ending (a)-(b) $ (104) $ 15,255 $ (1,357) $ 367,932
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 152% 96% 102% 1%
Covered-employ ee payroll $ - $ 56,289 $ 10416 $ -
State's net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll N/A 27% -13% N/A

Notes to Schedule
Benefit Changes: None
Changes of assumptions: None

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
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DPERS - State Employees' Plan
Schedule of Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Contributions 2015 2014 2013
Contractually required contribution $ 161,259 $ 158956 $ 146,620
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 161,259 158,956 146,620
Contribution excess $ - $ - $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,686,806 $ 1,673,099 $1,712,613
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.6% 9.5% 8.6%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
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Notes to Schedule

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the
fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Valuation Date:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Period

Asset Valuation Method

Inflation
Projected Salary Increases (1)

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information

Special

New State
Police

Judiciary

Closed State
Police

June 30, 2013
Entry Age
Normal
Open 15-Year
Level Percent
10 years
S-year
Smoothed
Market
N/A

N/A

7.2%

June 30, 2013

Entry Age
Normal

Open 20-Year
Level Percent
of Payroll
20 years (1)
S-year
Smoothed
Market
3%
4.5% to 11.5%

7.2%

June 30,2013

Entry Age
Normal

Open 20-Year
Level Percent
of Payroll
9.64 years (1)
S-year
Smoothed
Market
3%
3.5% to 12%

7.2%

June 30, 2013
Entry Age
Normal
Open 23-Year
Level Dollar
25 years
S-year
Smoothed
Market
N/A

N/A

3.8%

In the 2011 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of general
employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.

In the 2011 acutarial valuation. mortality rates were based on the Sex
distinct RP-2000 combined Mortality Table projected to 2015 using scale
AA for Males or Females, as appropriate, for mortality improvement.

1) Excludes liabillity and amortization payments due to cost-of-living adjustments. This liability is funded

from Post-Retirement Increase Fund. Each Post Retirement Increase is funded over 5 years.
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DelDOT- Delaware Transit Corporation
Changes in DTC's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2015 2014
DTC Contributory DTC Contributory
Plan Plan Plan Plan
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 843 $ 1,976 $ 840 $ 1,766
Interest 1,612 2,925 1,483 2,675
Change in Benefit Terms - 1,473 - 1,030
Differences between expected and actual
exp erience (297) (112) - 4
Changes of Assumptions - - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions (629) (2,134) (569) (2,103)
Net change in total pension liability 1,529 4,128 1,754 3,372
Total pension liability - beginning 21,812 40,855 20,058 37,483
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 23,341 $ 44,983 $ 21,812 $ 40,855
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 1,176 $ 1,253 $ 1,158 $ 909
Contributions - member 57 1,387 30 1,263
Net investment income 555 (869) 2,443 2,606
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions (629) (2,134) (569) (2,103)
Administrative expense (94) (99) (116) (134)
Other - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,065 (462) 2,946 2,541
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 20,884 42,036 17,938 39,495
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 21,949 $ 41,574 $ 20,884 $ 42,036
Corporation's net pension liability (asset) - ending
(a)-(b) $ 1,392 $ 3,409 $ 928 $ (1,181)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability 94% 92% 96% 103%
Covered-employee payroll $ 12,621 $ 27,967 $ 12,099 $ 27,627
State's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 11% 12% 8% -4%

Notes to Schedule
Benefit Changes: None
Changes of assumptions: None

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.

However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available.
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DTC Plan

Actuarially determined contributions
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll
Contribution as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

Contributory Plan

Actuarially determined contributions
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll
Contribution as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

Actuarially determined contributions
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll
Contribution as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

DelDOT - Delaware Transit Corporation
Schedule of Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *
(Dollar amounts in thous ands)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 1,176 LIs6 $ 93 $ 97 $ 1112 $ 1034
1,176 1,158 963 997 1111 1,033
$ - (2) $ - $ - $ 1 $ 1
$ 12261 12099 S 11,041 $ 11253 $ 11464 S 11,624
10% 10% 9% 9% 10% 9%
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 857 635 $ 73 $ 715 $ 598 § 6l
1,253 908 1,250 1,080 1,074 1,082
$ (396) Q) S @) $§ (365 S (476 S (47)
$ 27,627 24788 $ 22985  § 22847 $ 22675 $ 22,072
5% 4% 5% 5% 5% 5%
2009 2008
$ 859 683
1,063 996
$ (204) (313)
$ 18689 N/A
6% N/A

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
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Notes to Schedule
Valuation data:
Actuarially determined contribution amounts are calculated as of the beginning of the fiscal year (July 1) for the year

immediately following the fiscal year.

DTC Plan Methods and Assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Frozen Entry Age

Amortization method Level Dollar, Open

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market value

Inflation 2.0 percent

Salary increases 2.5 percent, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.5 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age Rates vary by participant age and service

Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy tables with generational projection by Scale AA

Valuation data:

Actuarially determined contribution amounts are calculated as of the beginning of the plan year (January 1)

Contributory Plan Methods and Assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Frozen Entry Age

Amortization method Level Percentage of Pay

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5-year market smoothed

Inflation 2.0 percent

Salary increases 4.0 percent, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.0 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age Rates vary by participant age and service

Mortality RP-2000 Blue Collar Table without any future mortality improvements
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Required Supplementary Information — OPEB Trust

The following table presents additional information related to funding status and progress. It is
intended to help readers assess the individual plans’ funding status on a going-concern basis and
assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

OPEB Trust

The amount shown below as “actuarial accrued liability” is a measure of the difference between
the actuarial present value of future plan benefits and the actuarial present value of future normal

cost.

(Expressed in Millions)

Schedule of Funding Status and Progress

3) ©)
2) Unfunded UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial “) a % of
Accrued Accrued Funded Covered
Actuarial Valuation Actuarial Value of Liability Liabilities Ratios (5) Covered Payroll
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) @ ) Payroll 3)/ %)
7/1/2016 $ 310 $ 7,460 $ 7,150 4.16% $ 2,114 338%
7/1/2015 6,321 6,009 4.94% 2,048  293%
7/1/2014 5,946 5,656 4.90% 2,038 277%
Valuation Date July 1, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percent Open
Remaining Amortization Period 30 years
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 3.75%
Rate of Salary Increases 3.25% (Plus Merit Scale)
Ultimate Rate of Medical Inflation 4.00%

The State’s annual required contribution and the percentage of annual required contribution
contributed to the plan for the fiscal years is as follows (expressed in millions):

Annual Percentage of
Required Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Contribution ARC Contributed
2016 $ 425.6 51%
2015 404.4 56%
2014 406.7 50%
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Required Supplementary Information — DTC OPEB Trust

The following table presents additional information related to funding status and progress. It is
intended to help readers assess the individual plans’ funding status on a going-concern basis and
assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due:

Schedule of Funding Status and Progress
(Expressed in Thousands)

3) (6)
?2) Unfunded UAAL
@ Actuarial Actuarial @) as a percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Funded () of covered
Valuation Value of Liability Liabilities Ratio Covered payroll
Date Assets (AAL) 2)-1) @)/(2) Payroll 3)/(5)
7/1/2015  $ 2342 $ 113,898 § 111,556 2% § 44,603 250%
7/1/2014 2,189 104,434 102,245 2% 42,717 239%
7/1/2013 1,878 135,237 133,359 1% 38,546 346%
Valuation Date July 1, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Cost
Amortization Method Closed
Remaining Amortizatior 30 years
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions
Investment Rate of Return 4%
Rate of Salary Increases 3%

Ultimate Rate of Medical Inflation

Based on Society of Actuaries Long-Term
Medical Trend Model. The initial rate is
4.7%, increasing gradually. The ultimate
rate is 4.8% and is reached in 2051.

DTC’s annual required contribution and the percentage of annual required contribution
contributed to the plan for the fiscal years is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Annual Percentage of
Required Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Contribution ARC Contributed
2016 $ 13,865.0 13%
2015 12,868.0 11%
2014 17,371.0 7%
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State of Delaware
Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

Supplementary
Information —

Combining Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Delaware Local Delaware Local

Government Government
Retirement OPEB Total
Investment Investment Investment
Pool Trust Trust Funds
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,380 $ 256 $ 1,636
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 68 - 68
Investment Sales Pending 168 - 168
Investments, at Fair Value:
Domestic Fixed Income 4,413 5,655 10,068
Domestic Equities 10,938 5,478 16,416
Pooled Equity and Fixed Income 18,582 - 18,582
Alternative Investments 11,196 - 11,196
Foreign Fixed Income 874 - 874
Foreign Equities 2,667 2,833 5,500
Total Assets 50,286 14,222 64,508
Liabilities:
Investment Purchase Payable 42 - 42
Accrued Investment Expense 25 1 26
Total Liabilities 67 1 68
Net Position:
Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Participants $ 50,219 $ 14,221 $ 64,440
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STATE OF DELAWARE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(Expressed in Thousands)

Delaware Local Delaware Local

Government Government
Retirement OPEB Total
Investment Investment Investment
Trust Funds Trust Trust Funds
Additions:
Contributions:
Transfer of Assets from Outside the Trust $ - $ 785 $ 785
Total Contributions - 785 785
Investments:
Investment Earnings 749 312 1,061
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (1,427) (121) (1,548)
Total Investment Earnings (Loss) (678) 191 (487)
Less Investment Manager/Advisor/Custody Fees (125) (5) (130)
Net Investment Earnings (803) 186 (617)
Net Securities Lending Income 3 - 3
Total Additions (Reductions) (800) 971 171
Deductions:
Transfer of Assets Outside the Trust 504 613 1,117
Administrative Expenses 1 - 1
Total Deductions 505 613 1,118
Change in Net Position (1,305) 358 (947)
Net Position - Beginning 51,524 13,863 65,387
Net Position - Ending $ 50,219 $ 14,221 $ 64,440
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STATE OF DELAWARE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Child Support Collection
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held In Escrow

Total Liabilities

Court Fines and Restitution
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Investments
Receivables, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held In Escrow

Total Liabilities

All Other Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held In Escrow

Total Liabilities

Totals - All Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Investments
Receivables, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held In Escrow

Total Liabilities

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

(Expressed in Thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
$ 3,874 $ 280,706 $ 281,007 $ 3,573

596 4,415 4311 700
$ 4,470 $ 285,121 $ 285,318 $ 4,273
$ 4,470 $ 285,121 $ 285,318 $ 4,273
$ 4,470 $ 285,121 $ 285,318 $ 4,273

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
$ 13,713 $ 17,820 $ 19,774 $ 11,759

25,227 7,951 504 32,674

119 310 - 429

27,721 24,690 24,711 27,700

$ 66,780 $ 50,771 $ 44,989 $ 72,562
$ 66,780 $ 50,771 $ 44,989 $ 72,562
$ 66,780 $ 50,771 $ 44,989 $ 72,562

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
$ 12,691 S 40,406 $ 39,820 S 13,277

70,576 27,382 49,495 48,463

2,095 36 765 1,366

$ 85,362 $ 67,824 $ 90,080 $ 63,106
$ 85,362 $ 67,824 $ 90,080 $ 63,106
$ 85,362 $ 67,824 $ 90,080 $ 63,106

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
$ 30,278 S 338,932 $ 340,601 S 28,609

95,803 - 49,999 81,137

2,214 346 765 1,795

28,317 29,105 29,022 28,400

$ 156,612 $ 368,383 $ 420,387 $ 139,941
$ 156,612 $ 403,716 $ 420,387 $ 139,941
$ 156,612 $ 403,716 $ 420,387 $ 139,941
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Statistical Section Index

The statistical section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary information of the

primary government says about the State's overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends Information
These schedules contain trend information to assist the reader in understanding and assessing how the State's financial

position has changed over time.
Government-wide Perspective
Net Position By COMPONEGNL . ......uiit ettt ettt e ettt e e et e et e et et e et e e et et et e e e eeaeaans
Changes N Nt POSIHION ... ...t e e e e ettt e e ae
Fund Perspective
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Fund Balances, Governmental FUNAS ........ ... e e e s

Revenue Capacity Information

These schedules contain information to assist the reader in understanding and assessing the factors affecting the State's ability

to generate its own-source revenues.
Personal Income by INAUSIIY ... ..o e e e e
Personal Income Tax RAtes .........o.iiiiiiiii e e e
Personal Income Tax Filers and Liability by Income Level, Calendar Year 2013 and Ten Years Prior...................
FIanChiSe TaAXES .. .uuuenin ittt et et e e e e e et ettt e et e e e et

Debt Capacity Information

These schedules present information to assist the reader in understanding and assessing the State’s debt burden and its ability

to issue additional debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Debt By TYPE ......uouutnininiiii e e
DEbt LIMILS ..ottt e e e e et e e e e e
General Obligation Debt SUPPOIL ......... it e e e ettt e e e e
Pledged ReVENUE COVETAZE, . . ..ceuiin ettt ettt et ettt et e e e e et et e e e te e et e e e et et et e e e et e e e eae e

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to assist the reader in understanding the environment in which

the State’s financial activities take place.
Demographic and ECONOMIC StAtISTICS. ... ....uiuutitiiit ittt ettt e
Principal Employers by INAUSIIY ....c.o.onii e e et e
State EMPloyees DY FUNCHON ...ttt e e e e e e e

Operating Information

These schedules contain information to assist the reader in understanding how the financial information relates to the services

the State provides and the activities it performs.
Operating Indicators by FUNCHON .........oouiiiii e e e
Capital Asset Statistics DY FUNCHON ... ..ottt et e e e e e e ees
Capital Asset Balances by FUNCHON ..........iiititi e et

154
155

157
159

160
161
162
163

164
165
166
167

168
169
170

171
172
173

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant fiscal

year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

We have audited, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of Delaware (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to the
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
certain agencies and component units of the State of Delaware, which represent the indicated percent of
total assets and deferred outflows of resources, net position/ fund balance, and total revenues as described
in our report on the State’s financial statements and as presented in the following tables. This report does
not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance
and other matters that are reported on separately by those other auditors. The financial statements of the
Delaware Sustainable Energy Ultility, the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System, Delaware State
University and the Riverfront Development Corporation of Delaware were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and accordingly this report does not include reporting on internal control
over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with the Delaware Sustainable
Energy Utility, Delaware State University and the Riverfront Development Corporation of Delaware.

Percentage Audited by

Other Auditors
Assets and

Deferred Outflows Net Position/

of Resources Revenues Fund Balance
Governmental Activities 1% 0% 8%
Business-type Activities 98% 93% 97%
Discretely Presented Component Units 100% 100% 100%
General Fund 2% 0% 4%
Lottery Fund 100% 100% 100%
DelDOT Fund 100% 100% 100%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 95% 51% 96%

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the State's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the State's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the State's internal control.

A member of
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The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency listed at 2016-001 in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency listed as 2016-002 in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

State of Delaware's Response to Findings
The State's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The State's responses were not subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wmm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
December 22 ,2016
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State of Delaware
Schedule of Findings and Management Response
June 30, 2016

Material Weakness

Finding 2016-001 - Understatement of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Superior Court

Condition

The methodology used by the Superior Court (SC) to determine the valuation of the allowance for doubtful
accounts was not properly evaluated. The method used by SC was to determine the collection rate to date,
and apply that rate to the remaining balance of accounts receivable. This methodology does not consider
that the rate of collections will decrease as the uncollected balances age, and as a result understated the
allowance for doubtful accounts. This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

Criteria

COSO/Internal Control Framework indicated that monitoring is implemented to help ensure “that internal
control continues to operate effectively”. Monitoring involves oversight of internal controls by management or
other parties outside the process. It may also include the application of independent methodologies, such as
the allowance for doubtful accounts, by employees within a process.

Context
We tested the entire accounts receivable balance at the SC and determined that approximately $28.4 million
of the total balance of $28.5 million was unable to be substantiated as collectible.

Effect
The financial statements contain an overstatement of accounts receivable and the State passed on making
an audit adjustment.

Cause

The Superior Court's (SC) internal controls for the review and approval of the estimate of the allowance for
doubtful accounts failed to establish an allowance estimate method that was based on historical collection
rates. The SC does not have adequate internal controls in place to properly monitor the performance of the
estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts calculation.

Recommendation

We recommend that policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that internal controls over the
financial reporting process include additional layers of review in order to mitigate potential misstatements.
Monitoring of the estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts should be included as part of the internal
control procedures to ensure that the methodology is properly supported by historical collection data.

Management Response

Management concurs with this finding. Management will continue to review the individual accounts included
in the accounts receivable balance to identify any trending of the individuals associated with those accounts
and reevaluate the accounts receivable policy on a regular basis.
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Significant Deficiency

Finding 2016-002 — Accounts Payable Reporting

Condition

In the reporting of accounts payable in their GAAP Reporting Packages, the Department of Health and
Social Services, Department of Education, Capital School District, Cape Henlopen School District, Milford
School District, Red Clay School District, Polytech School District, Laurel School District, New Castle County
Vo-Tech School District, and Indian River School District, did not report expenditures related to fiscal year
2016 as accounts payable in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Criteria

COSOlInternal Control Framework defines control activities as “policies and procedures that help ensure
management’s directives are carried out.” Management review controls are defined as, “the activities of a
person, different than the preparer, through analyzing and performing oversight of activities performed, and
is an integral part of any internal control structure.”

The Division of Accounting has established control activities in the financial reporting process related to
expenditures and accounts payable in Chapter 7 of the Budget and Accounting Policy Manual and Section C
of the GAAP Reporting Package Manual.

Context
The error that was noted in our sample was extrapolated over the entire disbursement population, resulting
in a projected error in accounts payable in the amount of $15.6 million.

Effect
Accounts payable and the related expenditures are understated and the State passed on making an audit
adjustment.

Cause
The Departments’ and School Districts’ controls were not effective to ensure that all material expenditure
transactions related to 2016, but paid in 2017, were reported to the Division of Accounting through the
GAAP reporting package, population of the good or service date in FSF, or separate subsequent
communication, as required by the Budget and Accounting Policy Manual and the GAAP Reporting Package
Manual.

Recommendation

We recommend that policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that internal controls over the
financial reporting process include procedures at the Departments and School Districts to ensure that all
disbursements are recognized in the year in which the good or service was received.

Management Response

Management concurs with this finding. Management will continue to emphasize through training and
meetings with the departments and school districts, the proper reporting of disbursements to ensure the
expense is included in the fiscal year in which the good or service was received.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

We have audited, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Delaware (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2016. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited
the financial statements of certain agencies and component units of the State of Delaware, which
represent the indicated percent of total assets and deferred outflows of resources, net position/ fund
balance, and total revenues as described in our report on the State’s financial statements and as
presented in the following tables. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing
of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on
separately by those other auditors. The financial statements of the Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility,
the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System, Delaware State University and the Riverfront
Development Corporation of Delaware were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and accordingly this report does not include reporting on internal control over financial
reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with the Delaware Sustainable Energy
Utility, Delaware State University and the Riverfront Development Corporation of Delaware.

Other Auditors
Assets and

Deferred Outflows Net Position/

of Resources Revenues Fund Balance
Governmental Activities 1% 0% 8%
Business-type Activities 98% 93% 97%
Discretely Presented Component Units 100% 100% 100%
General Fund 2% 0% 4%
Lottery Fund 100% 100% 100%
DelDOT Fund 100% 100% 100%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 95% 51% 96%

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the State's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the State's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the State's internal control.

A member of
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The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency listed at 2016-001 in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency listed as 2016-002 in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

State of Delaware's Response to Findings

The State's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The State's responses were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/%KZ/MM/% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
December 22, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND
REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the State of Delaware’s (the State) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the State's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The State’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The State’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Delaware State Housing Authority,
Diamond State Port Corporation, Riverfront Development Corporation, Delaware State University,
Delaware Charter Schools and Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation, which may have
received federal awards that are not included in the State’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards
for the year ended June 30, 2016. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of these
entities because other auditors were engaged to perform audits (when required) in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the State’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the State’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the State’s compliance.

A member of
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The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Basis for Qualified Opinions

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs, the State did not comply
with the requirements regarding:

Program CFDA Number Non- Compliance Finding
Number
Temporary Assistance to 93558 Special Tests and Provisions - Child 2016-003

Needy Families Support Non-Cooperation

Reporting - CMS-64 Quarterly Statement

Medicaid Cluster 93.775, 93.777, of Expenditures for the Medical Assistance | 2016-005
93.778 Pro
gram
. , Reporting - CMS-64 Quarterly Statement
Children SPI;IOearI;r;nlnsurance 93.767 of Expenditures for the Medical Assistance | 2016-005
9 Program
; 93.044, 93.045, Reporting — SF-425 Federal Financial
A Clust -
ging Liuster 93.053 Report 2016-006
Special Education Cluster 84.027, 84.173 Level of Effort (Maintenance of Effort) 2016-008
Special Education Cluster 84.027. 84.173 Allowable Cost/Cost Princilples — Time and 2016-009
Effort Reporting
Student Financial Aid Cluster | 84-063/84.007 Special Tests — Enroliment Reporting 2016-015

84.033/84.268

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the State to comply with the
requirements applicable to that program.

Qualified Opinions
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinions paragraph,
the State complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the programs for the year ended June 30,
2016.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the State complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal
programs identified in the summary of the auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2016-004, 2016-010, 2016-011, 2016-012, 2016-
013, 2016-014, 2016-016, and 2016-017. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified
with respect to these matters.

(4)



The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

The State's responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The State's responses were not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the State is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the State's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of State's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items 2016-003, 2016-005, 2016-006, 2016-008, 2016-009, and 2016-015 to
be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2016-004, 2016-007, 2016-010, 2016-011, 2016-012, 2016-013, 2016-014, 2016-016, 2016-017,
and 2016-018 to be significant deficiencies.

The State's responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The State's responses were
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of State of Delaware as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2016, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

%ZMW L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 27, 2017
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STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care 10.025 327,848
ARRA - Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control and Animal Care 10.025 11,399
339,247
Animal Damage Control - Wildlife Services 10.028 10,000
Conservation Reserve Program 10.069 19,627
Market Protection and Promotion 10.163 -605
Specialty Crop Block Grant Program-Farm Bill 10.170 226,043 169,875
Organic Certification Cost Share Programs 10.171 6,151
Cooperative Agreements with States for Intrastate Meat and Poultry Inspection 10.475 487,570
Food Distribution 10.550 3,065,489
SNAP Cluster
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 10.551 221,363,989
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental
Nutritional Assistance Program 10.561 15,943,342
Total SNAP Cluster 237,307,331
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program 10.553 13,688,578 406,399
National School Lunch Program 10.555 36,090,429 831,037
Special Milk Program for Children 10.556 26,687 26,687
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 2,215,117 1,513,260
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 52,020,811
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants & Children 10.557 9,164,920
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 16,719,000 16,374,261
State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition 10.560 1,087,735
Food Distribution Cluster
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565 137,970 124,414
Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs) 10.568 143,176
Emergency Food Assistance Program (Food Commodities) 10.569 1,600,380
Total Food Distribution Cluster 1,881,526
Farm to School Grant Program 10.575 70,200
WIC Grants to States (WGS) 10.578 1,060,232
Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability 10.579 61,090
ARRA - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, Process and Technology
Improvement Grants 10.580 838,679
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 1,905,833 35,322
Pilot Projects to Promote Work and Increase State Accountability in SNAP 10.596 1,171,552
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664 169,260
Urban and Community Forestry Program 10.675 170,937
Forest Legacy Program 10.676 3,000
Forest Stewardship Program 10.678 116,716
Forest Health Protection 10.680 72,644
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 327,974,988 19,481,255
U.S. Department of Commerce
Delaware FY13 Disaster Relief NERRS Monitoring Assets 11.000 64,236
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 1,348,262 175,693
Chesapeake Bay Studies 11.457 30,732
Unallied Science Program 11.472 158,438
Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative Management Act 11.474 235,286
ARRA - Manufacturing Extension Partnership DEMEP NIST Grant 11.611 319,263
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 2,156,217 175,693
U.S. Department of Defense
Beach Erosion Control 12.101 115,221
State Memorandum of Agreement Program for the Reimbursement
of Technical Services 12.113 23,514
National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Projects 12.401 12,388,966
Total U.S. Department of Defense 12,527,701




STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 149,371
Fair Housing Assistance Program 14.401 186,631
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 907,712
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,243,714 0
U.S. Department of the Interior
Hurricane Disaster Relief Coastal Resiliency Grants 15.153 1,036,978 89,977
Fish and Wildlife Cluster
Sport Fish Restoration 15.605 3,189,891
Wildlife Restoration and Basic Hunter Education 15.611 4,481,720 126,025
Total Fish and Wildlife Cluster 7,671,611
Coastal Wetlands Planning, Protection and Restoration Act 15.614 3,342
Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund 15.615 2,321,501
Landowner Incentive 15.633 100,740
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 547,608 129,384
Endangered Species Conservation Recovery 15.657 17,827
Hurricane Sandy Disaster Relief Activities 15.677 220,263 156,506
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 712,700 274,427
Outdoor Recreation, Acquisition, Development and Planning 15.916 708,596
Chesapeake Bay Gateways Network 15.930 22,219
Cultural Resources Management 15.946 25119
National Park Service Conservation, Protection, Outreach, and Education 15.954 33,282
Total U.S. Department of the Interior 13,421,786 776,319
U.S. Department of Justice
Program not yet cataloged 16.000 58,798
Violence Against Women Act Court Training and Improvement Grants 16.013 39,392
Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 403,628 383,941
ARRA - Justice Systems Response to Families 16.021 69,647
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants 16.523 132,223
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States 16.540 429,255 254,536
Missing Children's Assistance 16.543 274,142
State Justice Statistics Program for Statistical Analysis Centers 16.550 62,539
National Criminal History Improvement Program 16.554 138,340
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2,010,436 1,716,885
Crime Victim Compensation 16.576 1,192,380
Drug Court Discretionary Grant 16.585 94,256
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 867,902 367,036
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners 16.593 120,304
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 168,450
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 1,590
Protecting Inmates and Safeguarding Communities 16.735 13,294
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 1,110,907 637,298
Forensic DNA Capacity Enhancement Program 16.741 353,308
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program 16.742 70,661 65,812
Edward Byrne Memorial Competitive Grant Program 16.751 99,062
Harold Rogers Prescription Drug Monitoring Program 16.754 49,301 35,370
Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative 16.812 493,204 130,771
NICS Act Record Improvement Program 16.813 54,581
John R Justice Prosecutors and Defenders Incentive Act 16.816 60,237
Juvenile Justice Reform and Reinvestment Demonstration Program 16.821 50,703 36,886
Justice Reinvestment Initiative 16.827 27,802
Total U.S. Department of Justice 8,446,342 3,628,535
U.S. Department of Labor
Labor Force Statistics 17.002 537,703
Compensation and Working Conditions 17.005 71,519

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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STATE OF DELAWARE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal

CFDA

Passed Through to

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Labor (Continued)
Employment Services Cluster
Employment Service / Wagner-Peyser Funded Activities 17.207 2,390,625
Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP) 17.801 491,418
Total Employment Services Cluster 2,882,043
Unemployment Insurance 17.225 76,336,340
ARRA - Unemployment Insurance 17.225 5,255
Total Unemployment Insurance 76,341,595
Senior Community Service Employment Program 17.235 1,816,217
Trade Adjustment Assistance 17.245 189,406
Workforce Investment Act (WIA/WIOA) Cluster
WIA Adult Program 17.258 1,922,529
WIA Youth Activities 17.259 2,084,264 860,300
WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 17.278 2,385,757
Total WIA Cluster 6,392,550
Work Opportunity Tax Credit Program 17.271 40,212
Temporary Labor Certification for Foreign Workers 17.273 79,654
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) National Emergency Grants 17.277 665,666
Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training (TAACCCT) 17.282 2,612,232
Consultation Agreements 17.504 402,112
Total U.S. Department of Labor 92,030,909
U.S. Department of Transportation
Air Transportation Centers of Excellence 20.200 1,363,196
Highway Training and Education 20.215 237,640
National Motor Carrier Safety 20.218 983,747
Performance and Registration Information Systems Management 20.231 250,000
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 191,920,272
Recreational Trails Program 20.219 1,633,171
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 193,553,443
Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 4,940,069
Federal Transit Cluster 20.507 12,418,845
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 315,386
Total Federal Transit Cluster 17,674,300
Transit Services Program Cluster
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 1,485,323
New Freedom Program 20.521 259,919
Total Transit Services Program Cluster 1,745,242
Highway Safety Cluster
ARRA - State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 1,581,284
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants | 20.601 348,981
Child Safety and Child Booster Seats Incentive Grants 20.613 6,944
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 627,116
ARRA - National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 757,334
Total Highway Safety Cluster 3,321,659
Formula Grants for Other Than 20.509 1,541,503
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 1,327,727
ARRA - Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 116,391
Total Alcohol Open Container Requirements 1,444,118
National Highway Transportation Safety Administration Discretionary Safety 20.614 16,453
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants 20.703 92,783
PHMSA Pipeline Safety Program One Call Grant 20.721 10,902
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 222,234,986
Department of the Treasury
Unassigned - Asset Forfeiture - Treasury 21.999 1,512,640
Total Department of the Treasury 1,512,640

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.




STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Employment Discrimination - Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 30.001 $ 315,191
Total Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 315,191
General Services Administration
Unassigned 39.011 193,303
Total General Service Administration 193,303
Institute of Museum and Library Services
Grants to States 45.310 1,188,356
Laura Bush 21st Century Library 45.313 40,000
Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 1,228,356
National Endowment for the Arts
Promotion of the Arts - Partnership Agreements 45.025 717,128 379,031
Total National Endowment for the Arts 717,128 379,031
Small Business Administration
State Trade and Export Promotion Pilot Grant Program 59.061 75,656
Total Small Business Administration 75,656
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Air Pollution Control Program Support 66.001 1,360,189
State Indoor Radon Grants 66.032 129,533
Surveys Studies, Investigations Demonstrations
and Special Purpose Activities Relating to the Clean Air Act 66.034 230,500
Congressionally Mandated Projects 66.202 8,270
Water Pollution Control State and Interstate Program Support 66.419 1,599,116 216,236
State Public Water System Supervision 66.432 570,800
State Underground Water Source Protection 66.433 47,029
Water Quality Management Planning 66.454 48,195
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 1,027,508 334,809
Wetland Program Development Grants 66.461 287,253 67,886
Chesapeake Bay Program 66.466 3,501,777 1,325,304
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 11,796,481
Total Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 11,796,481
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 8,756,674 56,796
Total Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 8,756,674
Beach Monitoring and Notification Program Implementation Grants 66.472 184,282 72,599
Performance Partnership Grants 66.605 372,267
Environmental Information Exchange Network Grant Program
and Related Assistance 66.608 191,463
TSCA Title IV State Lead Grants Certification of Lead
Based Paint Professionals 66.707 281,380
Hazardous Waste Management State Program Support 66.801 518,850
Hazardous Substance Response Trust Fund 66.802 457,905
Underground Storage Tank Prevention, Detection and Compliance Program 66.804 273,046
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Corrective Action Program 66.805 810,632

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal Expenditures

Passed Through to
Subrecipients

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (Continued)
Core Program Cooperative Agreements
State and Tribal Response Program Grants
Environmental Education Grants
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. Department of Energy
Program not yet cataloged
State Energy Program
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons
Total U.S. Department of Energy

U.S. Department of Education
Adult Education - State Grant Program
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Migrant Education - State Grant Program
Title | State Agency Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children

Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)
Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool)
Total Special Education Cluster

Student Financial Aid Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
Federal Work Study Program
Federal Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Student Loan
Total Student Financial Aid Cluster

TRIO Cluster
TRIO - Student Support Services
TRIO - Talent Search
TRIO - Upward Bound
Total TRIO Cluster

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States

Migrant Education Discretionary Interstate/Intrastate Coordination Program

Rehabilitation Services - Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States

Independent Living - State Grants

Rehabilitation Services - Independent Living Services

for Older Individuals Who are Blind

Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities

ARRA - Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities
Total Special Education Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities

Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities National Programs

Race to the Top Early Learning

Supported Employment Services for Individuals with the Most Significant Disabilities

Education for Homeless Children and Youth

Rehabilitation Training - State Vocational Rehabilitation

Unit In-Service Training

Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers

Special Education-State Program Improvement Grants

for Children with Disabilities

Special Education-Technical Assistance and Dissemination

to Improve Services and Results for Children with Disabilities

Advanced Placement Program

Rural Education Achievement Program

English Language Acquisition Grants

Mathematics and Science Partnerships

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

Grants for State Assessments and Related Activities

School Improvement Grants

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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66.809
66.817
66.951

81.000
81.041
81.042

84.002
84.010
84.011
84.013

84.027
84.173

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

84.042
84.044
84.047

84.048
84.144
84.126
84.169

84.177
84.181
84.181

84.184
84.412
84.187
84.196

84.265
84.287

84.323

84.326
84.330
84.358
84.365
84.366
84.367
84.369
84.377

446,788
327,895
2,005

33,229,838

2,073,630

8,000
200,008
892,944

764,846

1,100,952

764,846

1,691,740
40,432,882
147,277
338,090

30,535,905

1,244,586

31,780,491

414,027
293,866
20,677,128

10,565,602

31,950,623

47,466
310,258

1,275,487

1,633,211

4,654,305
77,538
13,374,538
207,783

288,296
254,711

1,953,440

2,208,151
231,351
17,111,563
424,428
154,912

10,650
4,398,833

540,925

80,041
78,816
218
1,486,855
366,499
10,155,578
3,498,473
1,209,208

485,700

532,657

1,311,033

366,499
175,000



STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Education (Continued)
Statewide Data Systems 84372 $ 611,226
ARRA-State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF)-Race-to-the-top
Incentive Grants, Recovery Act 84.395 3,800,708
Total U.S. Department of Education 172,945,209 2,870,889
U.S. Election Assistance Commission
Help American Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 354,015
Total U.S. Election Assistance Commission 354,015
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program not yet cataloged 93.000 311,473
Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 9,426
Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII, Chapter 3-Programs
for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation 93.041 9,443
Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII, Chapter 2-Long Term
Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals 93.042 33,871
Special Programs for the Aging-Title Ill, Part D-Disease
Prevention and Health Promotion Services 93.043 111,154
Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging-Title Ill, Part B-Grants for
Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 2,688,798
Special Programs for the Aging-Title Ill, Part C-Nutrition Services 93.045 3,500,470
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 428,770
Total Aging Cluster 6,618,038
Special Programs for the Aging-Title IV and Title Il Discretionary Projects 93.048 392,617
ARRA - Special Programs for the Aging-Title IV and Title Il Discretionary Projects 93.048 164,307
Total Special Programs for the Aging-Title 1V and Title Il Discretionary Projects 556,924
National Family Caregiver Support 93.052 983,317
Medical Enrollment Assistance Program 93.071 41,151
Lifespan Respite Care Program 93.072 86,007
Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Aligned Cooperative Agreements 93.074 5,886,327
Cooperative Agreements to Promote Adolescent Health through School-Based
HIV/STD Prevention and School-Based Surveillance 93.079 435,968 5,000
Personal Responsibility Education Program 93.092 253,865
Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for Children with
Serious Emotional Disturbances (SED) 93.104 1,153,349
Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs 93.110 188,912
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for
Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 162,728
Emergency Medical Services for Children 93.127 107,029
Cooperative Agreements to States/Territories for the Coordination and
Development of Primary Care Offices 93.130 159,532
Community Programs to Improve Minority Health Grant Program 93.137 191,845
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150 281,063 280,753
Grants for State Loan Repayment 93.165 130,152
Family Planning Services 93.217 867,469
Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities 93.236 153,173
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance 93.243 5,038,320 2,440,594
Universal Newborn Hearing Screening 93.251 250,046
Immunization Grants 93.268 12,479,682
Adult Viral Hepatitis Prevention and Control 93.270 37,345
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Investigations,
and Technical Assistance 93.283 1,880,436
National State Based Tobacco Control Program 93.305 651,703
Domestic Ebola Supplement to ELC 93.323 286,736
State Health Insurance Assistance Program 93.324 27,130
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home
Visiting Program 93.505 4,461,908

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued)
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants to States for Health Insurance Premium Review 93.511 $ 542,924
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Building Epidemiology, Laboratory, and Health
Information Systems Capacity in the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity
Infectious Disease (ELC) and Emerging Infections Program (EIP) Cooperative
Agreements; PPHF 93.521 370,480
State Planning and Establishment Grants for the Affordable Care Act (ACA)s
Exchanges 93.525 1,520,572
Prevention and Public Health Fund (ACA) 93.539 293,695
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 893,726
TANF Cluster
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 29,870,444 192,190
Total TANF Cluster 29,870,444
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 27,171,748
Refugee and Entrant Assistance-State Administered Programs 93.566 96,779
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 11,529,628 7,506,705
Community Services Block Grant 93.569 3,417,555 3,029,396
State Court Improvement Program 93.586 290,396
Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Grants 93.590 64,080
CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 7,698,649
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds of the Child Care and
Development Fund 93.596 10,656,233
Total CCDF Cluster 18,354,882
Grants to States for Access and Visitation Programs 93.597 112,998
Chafee Education and Training Vouchers Program (ETV) 93.599 54,676
Head Start 93.600 917,014 73,564
Adoption Incentive Payments 93.603 13,748
Voting Access for Individuals 93.617 -977
ACA: State Innovation Models: Funding for Model Design and Model Testing
Assistance 93.624 9,664,245
Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Grants 93.630 480,792
Children's Justice Grants to States 93.643 85,536
Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645 823,207
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 5,282,684
Adoption Assistance 93.659 1,771,426
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 4,528,015
Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants 93.669 119,301
Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered
Women's Shelters Grants to States and Indian Tribes 93.671 776,415 744,669
Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 93.674 496,222
Capacity Building Assistance to Strengthen Public Health Immunization
Infrastructure and Performance 93.733 658,615
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 29,645,374
Medicaid Cluster
State Medicaid Fraud Control Units 93.775 1,448,198
State Survey and Certification of Health Care Providers and Suppliers
(Title XVI1Il) Medicare 93.777 1,927,261
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1,301,657,589
Total Medicaid Cluster 1,305,033,048
Breast/Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program 93.752 850,202
Child Lead Poisoning Prevention Surveillance 93.753 117,441
To Prevent and Control Diabetes, Heart Disease and Obesity 93.757 782,735
Alzheimer's Disease Initiative; Specialized Supportive Services Project 93.763 389
Money Follows the Person Rebalancing Demonstration 93.791 1,748,224
Organized Approaches to Increase Colorectal Cancer Screening 93.800 449,602
Grants to States for Operation of Offices of Rural Health 93.913 132,635



STATE OF DELAWARE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal
CFDA Passed Through to
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Federal Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued)
HIV Care Formula Grants 93.917 5,429,582
HIV Prevention Activities Health Department Based 93.940 1,056,180
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)/Acquired Immunodeficiency
Virus Syndrome (AIDS) Surveillance 93.944 554,022
Assistance Program for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control 93.945 43,218
Cooperative Agreements to Support State-Based Safe
Motherhood & Infant Health Initiative Programs 93.946 170,969
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 1,303,979 660,935
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 3,652,418 2,220,069
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.758 370,724
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 1,653,542
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,517,040,632 17,153,875
Corporation for National and Community Service
State Commissions 94.003 181,217
AmeriCorps 94.006 126,073 80,713
ARRA - AmeriCorps 94.006 631,408 631,408
Total AmeriCorps 757,481
Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion Cluster
Foster Grandparent Program 94.011 303,482
Total Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion Cluster 303,482
Total Corporation for National and Community Service 1,242,180 712,121
Executive Office of the President
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Program 95.001 60,550
Total Executive Office of the President 60,550
Social Security Administration
Disability Insurance/SSI Cluster
Social Security - Disability Insurance 96.001 6,811,881
Total Disability Insurance/SSI Cluster 6,811,881
Total Social Security Administration 6,811,881
U.S. Department Homeland Security
Boating Safety Financial Assistance 97.012 990,128
Community Assistance Program State Support
Services Element (CAP-SSSE) 97.023 98,572
Public Assistance Grants 97.036 199,322
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 43,997
National Dam Safety Program 97.041 53,460 38,715
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 3,372,461
State Fire Training Systems Grants 97.043 12,669
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 436,981
Cooperating Technical Partners 97.045 310,056
Pre-Disaster Mitigation 97.047 80,300
Port Security Grant Program 97.056 166,239
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 3,536,620
Total U.S. Department Homeland Security 9,300,805 38,715
Research and Development Cluster
U.S. Department of Commerce
Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves 11.420 862,233 94,736
U.S. Department of Interior
U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Acquisition 15.808 4,020
National Sci Foundati
Education and Human Resources 47.076 111,101
ARRA-Education and Human Resources 47.076 123,592
Total Education and Human Resources 234,693
Office of International and Integrative Activities 47.079 442,766
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Food and Drug Administration Research 93.103 7,415
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State
and Community Based Programs 93.136 230,364
Drug Abuse Research Programs 93.279 -44
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations 93.779 156,195
Pharmacological Sciences 93.859 46,348
ARRA - Pharmacological Sciences 93.859 183,553
Total Pharmacological Sciences 229,901
Total Research and Development Cluster 2,167,543 94,736
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 2,428,332,522 48,149,645

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

STATE OF DELAWARE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “SEFA”) includes the
federal award activity of State of Delaware under programs of the federal government for the
year ended June 30, 2016. The information in the SEFA is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the SEFA presents operations of the State of Delaware, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of those programs administered by the Delaware State University, Riverfront Development
Corporation, and the Charter Schools.

Basis of Accounting

Expenditures reported on the SEFA are reported on the cash basis of accounting except for
the inclusion of noncash items. Therefore, some amounts presented in the SEFA may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the State of Delaware's basic
financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable
or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the SEFA represent
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years. The State of Delaware has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance and continues to use a
negotiated rate.

STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

Federally guaranteed loans issued to students of Delaware Technical and Community
College (the College) by financial institutions during the year ended June 30, 2016 totaled
$31,950,622. This amount is included on the SEFA (CFDA # 84.007, 84.033, 84.063,
84.268).

The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with
respect to federally guaranteed student loan programs, and accordingly, it is not practical to
determine the balances of loans outstanding to students and former students of College
under these programs.

REVOLVING LOAN FUNDS

The Clean Water State Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund are
revolving loan funds. Federal funded new loans provided under these programs are included
as expenditures on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. The State had the
following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2016:

Amounts
CFDA Number Outstanding
Clean Water State Revolving Fund 66.458 $ 171,644,565
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 66.468 110,044,548

$ 281,689,113

See accompanying Schedule.
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NOTE3 REVOLVING LOAN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

The amounts shown as outstanding for CFDA 66.458 and 66.468 were not funded entirely
with federal monies.

NOTE4 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUNDS

State Unemployment tax revenues and the government and non-profit contributions in lieu
of state taxes (State Ul funds) must be deposited into the Unemployment Trust Fund in the
U.S. Treasury. Use of these funds is restricted to pay benefits under the federally approved
State Unemployment Law. State Ul funds as well as federal funds are reported in the SEFA
under CFDA #17.225. The claim payments included in the SEFA at June 30, 2016 were
$76,336,339.

NOTES5 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The total direct amount expended for Research and Development was $2,167,543.

See accompanying Schedule.
(16)
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Summary of Independent Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? X  Yes

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses X Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? X  Yes

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses X Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?
X Yes

Unmodified

No

None
reported

No

No

None
reported

See Below

No

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $7,284,998

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

(18)
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Major Programs CFDA # Opinion
10.553, 10.555 .
g ’ Unmodified
Child Nutrition Cluster 10.556, 10.559
Special S_upplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, 10557 Unmodified
and Children
Sport Fish and Wildlife Restoration Programs 15.605, 15.611 Unmodified
17.258, 17.259, Unmodified
Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act 17.278
Title | 84.010 Unmodified
Special Education Cluster 84.027,84.173 Qualified
84.007, 84.033 .
y § Qualified
Student Financial Aid Cluster 84.063, 84.268
Vocational Education 84.048 Unmodified
Vocational Rehabilitation Cluster 84.126 Unmodified
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 Unmodified
93.044, 93.045 .
' ’ Qualified
Aging Cluster 93.053
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 93.558 Qualified
ACA: State In.novatio.n Models: Funding for Model Design and 93.624 Unmodified
Model Testing Assistance
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 Unmodified
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 Qualified
93.775, 93.777, .
Medicaid Cluster 93.778 Qualified

Preventative Health and Services Block Grants 93.758 Unmodified
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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Finding 2016-001 - Understatement of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Superior Court
Material Weakness

Condition

The methodology used by the Superior Court (SC) to determine the valuation of the allowance for doubtful
accounts was not properly evaluated. The method used by SC was to determine the collection rate to
date, and apply that rate to the remaining balance of accounts receivable. This methodology does not
consider that the rate of collections will decrease as the uncollected balances age, and as a result
understated the allowance for doubtful accounts. This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

Criteria

COSO/Internal Control Framework indicated that monitoring is implemented to help ensure “that internal
control continues to operate effectively”. Monitoring involves oversight of internal controls by management
or other parties outside the process. It may also include the application of independent methodologies,
such as the allowance for doubtful accounts, by employees within a process.

Context
We tested the entire accounts receivable balance at the SC and determined that approximately $28.4
million of the total balance of $28.5 million was unable to be substantiated as collectible.

Effect
The financial statements contain an overstatement of accounts receivable and the State passed on
making an audit adjustment.

Cause

The Superior Court's (SC) internal controls for the review and approval of the estimate of the allowance
for doubtful accounts failed to establish an allowance estimate method that was based on historical
collection rates. The SC does not have adequate internal controls in place to properly monitor the
performance of the estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts calculation.

Recommendation

We recommend that policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that internal controls over the
financial reporting process include additional layers of review in order to mitigate potential misstatements.
Monitoring of the estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts should be included as part of the internal
control procedures to ensure that the methodology is properly supported by historical collection data.

Management Response

Management concurs with this finding. Management will continue to review the individual accounts
included in the accounts receivable balance to identify any trending of the individuals associated with
those accounts and reevaluate the accounts receivable policy on a regular basis.

(21)



STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2016

Finding 2016-002 — Accounts Payable Reporting
Significant Deficiency

Condition

In the reporting of accounts payable in their GAAP Reporting Packages, the Department of Health and
Social Services, Department of Education, Capital School District, Cape Henlopen School District, Milford
School District, Red Clay School District, Polytech School District, Laurel School District, New Castle
County Vo-Tech School District, and Indian River School District, did not report expenditures related to
fiscal year 2016 as accounts payable in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP).

Criteria

COSO/Internal Control Framework defines control activities as “policies and procedures that help ensure
management’s directives are carried out.” Management review controls are defined as, “the activities of a
person, different than the preparer, through analyzing and performing oversight of activities performed,
and is an integral part of any internal control structure.”

The Division of Accounting has established control activities in the financial reporting process related to
expenditures and accounts payable in Chapter 7 of the Budget and Accounting Policy Manual and
Section C of the GAAP Reporting Package Manual.

Context
The error that was noted in our sample was extrapolated over the entire disbursement population,
resulting in a projected error in accounts payable in the amount of $15.6 million.

Effect
Accounts payable and the related expenditures are understated and the State passed on making an audit
adjustment.

Cause

The Departments’ and School Districts’ controls were not effective to ensure that all material expenditure
transactions related to 2016, but paid in 2017, were reported to the Division of Accounting through the
GAAP reporting package, population of the good or service date in FSF, or separate subsequent
communication, as required by the Budget and Accounting Policy Manual and the GAAP Reporting
Package Manual.

Recommendation

We recommend that policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that internal controls over the
financial reporting process include procedures at the Departments and School Districts to ensure that all
disbursements are recognized in the year in which the good or service was received.

Management Response

Management concurs with this finding. Management will continue to emphasize through training and
meetings with the departments and school districts, the proper reporting of disbursements to ensure the
expense is included in the fiscal year in which the good or service was received.
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AND FEDERAL PROGRAM
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MATRIX OF FINDINGS BY FEDERAL AGENCY

Internal Control

Federal Material Significant
Major Federal Program Agency CFDA Finding | Weakness | Deficiency Compliance
(prefix) # #

Temporary Assistance to U.S. DHHS ) X X
Needy Families (TANF) (93) 93.558 | 2016-003
Temporary Assistance to U.S. DHHS ) X X
Needy Families (TANF) (93) 93.558 | 2016-004

93.775,
Medicaid U'Sig'%';”"s 93.777, | 2016-005 X

93.778
Children’s Health U.S. DHHS 93.767 | 2016-005 X
Insurance Program (93) ’

93.044,
Aging Cluster U'Sig'%';”"s 93.045, | 2016-006 X X

93.053

93.044,
Aging Cluster U'Sigg';HS 93.045, | 2016-007 x

93.053
Special Education Cluster 84.027, X X
(IDEA) U.S. ED (84) 84173 2016-008
Special Education Cluster 84.027, X X
(IDEA) U.S. ED (84) 84173 2016-009
Voce!tional Rehabilitation U.S.ED (84) | 84.126 | 2016-010 X X
Services
Workforce Innovation and U.S. DOL 17.258, X X
Opportunities Act (17) 17.259, | 2016-011

17.278
Foster Care — Title IV-E U'Sigl?;;HS 93.658 | 2016-012 X X
Foster Care — Title IV-E U'Sigl?;';HS 93.658 | 2016-013 x X
Workforce Innovation and U.S. DOL 1;523 2016-014 X X
Opportunities Act (17) 17278

84.007,
Student Financial Aid 84.033, | 2016-015 X X
Cluster U.S.ED (84) 84.063,

84.268
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Internal Control

Federal Material Significant
Major Federal Program Agency CFDA Finding | Weakness Deficiency Compliance
(prefix) # #
84.007,
Student Financial Aid 84.033, | 2016-016 X X
Cluster U.S.ED (84) 84.063,
84.268
84.007,
Student Financial Aid 84.033, | 2016-017 X X
Cluster U.S.ED (84) 84.063,
84.268
\S/ocgtlonal Rehabilitation U.S.ED (84) | 84.126 | 2016-018 X
ervices
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Reference Number: 2016-003

Prior Year Finding: 2015-008

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)

CFDA Number: 93.558

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions — Child Support Non-Cooperation
Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance,

Material Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non-
Federal entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls
designed to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements.

Compliance: If the State agency responsible for administering the State plan approved under Title IV-D
of the Social Security Act determines that an individual is not cooperating with the State in establishing
paternity, or in establishing, modifying or enforcing a support order with respect to a child of the
individual, and reports that information to the State agency responsible for TANF, the State TANF
agency must (1) deduct an amount equal to not less than 25 percent from the TANF assistance that
would otherwise be provided to the family of the individual, and (2) may deny the family any TANF
assistance. HHS may penalize a State for up to five percent of the State Family Assistance Grant for
failure to substantially comply with this required State child support program (42 USC 608(a)(2) and
609(a)(8); 45 CFR sections 264.30 and 264.31).

Condition:

The Division of Social Services (DSS) failed to reduce or suspend TANF benefits for beneficiaries that
were non-cooperative with child support. The Division of Child Support Services (DCSS) identifies the
non-compliant beneficiary and reports the information to the Division of Social Services. DSS is
responsible for levying non-compliant sanctions until compliance is met. During our testing we noted
that DSS did not levy sanctions for non-compliant beneficiaries nor were the beneficiaries’ DSS case
files updated to identify the beneficiaries as non-compliant.

Context:

The case file was not properly updated for fifteen of the sixty beneficiaries selected for testing. TANF
program payments to eligible recipients were 69% of the total federal TANF expenditures for fiscal year
2016.

Questioned costs:
Questioned costs were determined as $23,478 which represents the total amount of overpayments
made for the fifteen files in question.
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Cause:
DSS and DCSS did not consistently follow procedures for reporting, documenting and sanctioning non-
compliant clients.

Effect:
The Division is not in compliance with federal requirements and may be penalized by the grantor.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Division review its current process for receiving accurate and timely
information from child support in order to update TANF beneficiaries’ case files and ensure the required
non-compliant penalties are assessed.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Social Services (DSS) has reviewed the individual cases identified in the audit and is
working with the Audit and Recovery Management Services (ARMS) group to recoup any related
overpayments. Additionally, sanctions were applied to any case identified by the auditors that was still
open and remained non-cooperative.

To ensure all non-cooperative cases are sanctioned promptly and correctly, DSS and the Division of
Child Support Service (DCSS) have worked together to simplify the sanctioning process. Additionally
DSS and DCSS added additional accountability and accuracy checking mechanisms to the sanction
process. The process has been centralized and is handled by the DSS Deputy Director’'s Office. A
single resource mailbox has been established to track requests. DCSS will send all requests for
sanctions to be applied or lifted to this resource mailbox. Staff from the DSS Deputy Director’s Office
will review the resource mailbox daily to apply or lift sanctions. The DSS Deputy Director’'s Office will
maintain a Sanction Activity Log for tracking all DCSS sanction requests. Monthly, DSS will send DCSS
the Sanction Activity Log for their review. Any errors or omissions discovered by DCSS will be reported
to DSS which will act on those findings to ensure correct sanction application.
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Reference Number: 2016-004

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)

CFDA Number: 93.558

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions — Penalty for Refusal to Work
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non-
Federal entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls
designed to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements.

Compliance: State agency must reduce or terminate the assistance payable to the family if an individual
in a family receiving assistance refuses to work, subject to any good cause or other exemptions
established by the State. HHS may penalize the State by an amount not less than one percent and not
more than five percent of the State Family Assistance Grant for violation of this provision (42 USC
609(a)(14); 45 CFR sections 261.14, 261.16, and 261.54). In TANF cases where the individual is not
working, benefits are to be reduced or denied to individuals who are not exempt under State rules or do
not meet State good cause criteria.

Condition:

The Division failed to reduce or suspend TANF benefits for a beneficiary who was non-compliant with
the work participation requirement. The TANF program requires beneficiaries meeting specific
requirements to participate in the work program. If the beneficiary fails to participate, their benefits are
sanctioned. If the beneficiary shows “just cause” for not participating in the program, the beneficiary
benefits are not affected. We identified one case file in which it was mandatory for the beneficiary to
participate in an employment and training program. The beneficiary failed to participate in an
employment and training program and the file did not show just cause for non-participation.

Context:

The case file was not properly updated for one of the forty beneficiaries selected for testing. TANF
program payments to eligible recipients were 69% of the total federal TANF expenditures for fiscal year
2016.

Questioned costs:
Undetermined. Due to lack of documentation, the effect could not be quantified.
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Cause:
The Division failed to consistently levy sanctions for non-compliant beneficiaries due to an oversight.

Effect:
The Division is not in compliance with federal requirements and may be penalized by the grantor.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the Division review its current process for reducing or suspending benefits for non-
working individuals and ensure the required non-compliant penalties are assessed.

Views of responsible officials:

Work Mandatory TANF clients are referred to contracted Employment and Training vendors. These
vendors transfer client cases to each other when a client's employment status or address changes.
Transfers are completed in the state’s eligibility system. Due to a vendor error, the transfer of this
particular client's case was not processed correctly. As a result, the client was discharged prior to the
transfer, and was not contacted by the new vendor to continue participation. The client did not refuse to
participate and was not non-compliant. The Division of Social Services (DSS) has reviewed the case,
and confirmed that there was not an overpayment in this case. Once this issue was identified, the client
was engaged by the new vendor and immediately began participating in the assigned employment and
training activities. The Division of Social Services met with the Department of Labor (DOL) to enhance
procedures in an effort to avoid reoccurrences of this type of error. During January 2017, DOL wrote
and distributed a new policy that clarifies the correct procedures for transferring clients. Additionally,
The Division of Social Services has developed a query to identify Work Mandatory cases that did not
complete any work activities during the previous month. This query will assist The Division of Social
Services in identifying cases that should be sanctioned or are not assigned to a vendor.
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Reference Number: 2016-005

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Medicaid and Medical Assistance

Federal Program: Medicaid and Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP)

CFDA Number: 93.775,93.777, 93.778; 93.767

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Reporting — CMS-64 Quarterly Statement of Expenditures for
the Medical Assistance Program

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non-Federal entities
receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls designed to
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance requirements,
including reporting requirements. CMS-64, Quarterly Statement of Expenditures for the Medical
Assistance Program (OMB No. 0938-0067) is required to be used in lieu of the SF-425, Federal
Financial Report (for all components of the cluster other than administrative costs of the State MFCUSs),
prepared quarterly, and submitted electronically to CMS within 30 days after the end of the quarter.

Condition:

The Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 64 Quarterly Report contained numerous errors
which were qualitatively material to the accuracy of the report. The CMS 64 is used to report Medicaid
administrative and medical claims to the Federal Government. CMS requires each line of the report to
be accurate and supported by documentation; otherwise, the costs are deemed unallowed and not
reimbursed until the error is corrected. The reports are manually completed and electronically
submitted to the grantor agency.

During the audit we noted the following:
1% Quarter report:

e Service expenditures: There were a total of thirteen adjustments. Nine of the adjustments were
identified by CMS and four were identified by the Division as part of their quality control review
after the CMS 64 was submitted to CMS. CLA identified a variance on line item 49 (Other Care
Services - CMS 64.9 Base form) in the amount of $1,386,105. This amount was not adequately
supported by documentation.

e Administrative expenditures: There was one adjustment which was retroactively applied to CMS

64 reports submitted for FY14 and FY15. The adjustment was based on CMS’ approval of the
State’s Advanced Planning Document (ADP) to upgrade the Medicaid eligibility System.
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3rd Quarter report:
e Service expenditures: There were a total of one hundred and four adjustments. Eight of the
adjustments were identified by CMS and ninety-six were identified by the Division as part of
their quality control review after the CMS 64 was submitted to CMS.

e Administrative expenditures: There were a total of eighteen adjustments. Six of the adjustments
were identified by CMS and twelve were identified by the Division as part of their quality control
review.

Context:
Two of the four quarterly CMS-64 reports were selected for testing. Both reports contained numerous
qualitative errors identified above.

Questioned costs:

No questioned costs identified, as all noted errors were corrected in subsequent reports. CMS
determines which costs are unallowed and/or requires additional documentation as part of their
quarterly review of the report.

Cause:
The Division experienced personnel change in several key positions. The Division had outdated
instruction manuals and procedures related to the compilation of the report.

Effect:
The CMS 64 Quarterly Reports were incorrect and may affect future program funding.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Division continue to work with specialized CMS 64 reporting contractors. We
further recommend that the Division enhance its procedures over preparation of the quarterly financial
report to ensure that the report reconciles to FSF and any other underlying documentation used for its
preparation. The procedures should also include a review process by an employee other than the
preparer to ensure the report is accurate as well as prevent and/or detect errors and irregularities.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Medicaid and Medical Assistance (DMMA) has been proactive in seeking to identify
process improvements surrounding the preparation of the CMS-64 report. This includes retaining a
third party contractor who specializes in federal reporting to review current operating procedures and
make recommendations for improvement. The division has also proactively invited The Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to participate in this review and provide comments and feedback.
This exercise, initiated by the state, has resulted in the prior period adjustments made to date.

The division will continue this process of improving our procedures involving the preparation of the
quarterly financial report and will continue to make prior period adjustments. The report is reconciled to
the state’s accounting system and any other underlying documentation used to prepare the report. In
conjunction with the procedural review, key staff is obtaining additional training to better identify errors.
Management will be reviewing all documentation and variance reports to ensure accuracy. As part of
the process improvement efforts, the unit is being reorganized and will have new management
oversight.
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Reference Number: 2016-006

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical
Disabilities

Federal Program: Aging Cluster

CFDA Number: 93.044, 93.045, 93.053

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Reporting — SF-425 Federal Financial Report

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance,

Material Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non- Federal
entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls designed
to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements.

Compliance: Per DHSS Administration for Community Living, the Federal Financial Report (SF-425) is
due semi-annually. Reports are due within 30 days for the periods ending March 30 and September 30.

Condition:

During our testing of the semi-annual SF-425 reports, it was noted that the Division did not maintain
documentation to support the amounts reported for total cash disbursements, federal share of
expenditures, recipient share of expenditures, or program income (earned/expended).

Context:
The two semi-annual reports submitted for FY16 were selected for testing. Documentation supporting
the reported information on both reports was not readily available.

Questioned costs:

None. The requirement is for reporting and does not involve the allowability of costs or activities. The
Division was unable to compile the general ledger support but none of the costs were deemed
unallowed.

Cause:

The Division experienced personnel change and did not have procedures in place to ensure the
reporting process was standardized. A standardized process would ensure that any new staff would be
able to duplicate the reporting process, including proper maintenance of supporting documentation.

Effect:

The accuracy of the submitted report could not be supported and may be deemed invalid or non-
compliant.
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Recommendation:
We recommend that the Division enhance its current process for preparing and retaining supporting
documentation for the semiannual SF-425 Federal Financial Reports.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical Disabilities (DSAAPD) will strengthen its
current process, procedures and policies to insure all supporting documentation is maintained and
available to auditors for review. The documentation will support fiscal transactions by being organized
and kept as recommended, and will be captured in the State accounting system as an attachment or
properly retained and organized for any future audits.
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Reference Number: 2016-007

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical
Disabilities

Federal Program: Aging Cluster

CFDA Number: 93.044, 93.045, 93.053

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non-Federal
entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls designed
to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements, including approval of invoices for allowable costs/cost principles.

Condition:

During our testing of nonpayroll expenditures, it was noted that thirteen transactions did not have
evidence of review by a person who had knowledge of the program’s allowable costs and activities.
The Division is responsible for reviewing the provider’s cost reimbursement requests prior to approval.
Documentation supporting the provider's reimbursement request should accompany the request.
Evidence of the Division’s review and approval of the reimbursement request as well as its review of
the supporting documentation was not evident.

Context:
Thirteen out of forty invoices selected for testing did not have the proper evidence of approval.

Questioned costs:
None noted. We did not identify any costs or activities that were unallowable. The Division reviews
documentation of provider’s costs as part of the on-site visit.

Cause:
The Division’s procedures did not specifically instruct staff to provide written evidence of its review and
approval of the reimbursement request.

Effect:
The Division is unable to provide evidence of internal controls over allowable costs and activities.

Recommendation:

We recommend a formal policy which instructs staff to document their review and approval of the
provider's reimbursement request and supporting documentation. Documentation of review and
approval should include reviewer’'s signature, date reviewed, and identification of the specific
supporting documentation reviewed.
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Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical Disabilities (DSAAPD) will review its formal
policy regarding the review and approval of supporting documentation received from providers.
DSAAPD will implement a review structure which will require a designated signee to verify all
supporting documentation is reviewed and checked. This documentation of review and approval will
include the reviewer's signature, date of review and identification of the specific supporting
documentation that has been reviewed.
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Reference Number: 2016-008

Prior Year Finding: 2015-014

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Department of Education

Federal Program: Special Education Cluster — Individual Disability Education Act
(IDEA)

CFDA Number: 84.027, 84.173

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Level of Effort (Maintenance of Effort)

Type of Finding: Scope Limitation in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance:

Individual Disability Education Act (IDEA), Part B funds received by an LEA cannot be used, except
under certain limited circumstances, to reduce the level of expenditures for the education of children
with disabilities made by the LEA from local funds, or a combination of State and local funds, below the
level of those expenditures for the preceding fiscal year. To meet this requirement, an LEA must
expend, in any particular fiscal year, an amount of local funds, or a combination of State and local
funds, for the education of children with disabilities that is at least equal, on either an aggregate or per
capita basis, to the amount of local funds, or a combination of State and local funds, expended for this
purpose by the LEA in the prior fiscal year. Allowances may be made for: (a) the voluntary departure,
by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education personnel; (b) a decrease
in the enroliment of children with disabilities; (c) the termination of the obligation of the agency,
consistent with this part, to provide a program of special education to a particular child with a disability
that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the State Educational Agency (SEA),
because the child has left the jurisdiction of the agency, has reached the age at which the obligation of
the agency to provide a free appropriate public education (FAPE) has terminated or no longer needs
such program of special education; (d) the termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases,
such as the acquisition of equipment and the construction of school facilities; or (e) the assumption of
costs by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR section 300.704 (20 USC 1413(a)(2);
34 CFR sections 300.203 and 300.204).

Condition:

The Department did not prepare a LEA maintenance of effort calculation for fiscal year 2016. The
Department continues to work with the U.S. Department of Education — Office of Special Education
Programs (OSEP) to develop procedures for the MOE calculation.

Context:
Prior year finding 2015-014 was not resolved for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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Questioned costs:

Unknown, as of 6/30/16, OSEP has not invoiced or notified the Department of unallowed costs related
to supplanting; and continues to assist the Department with developing procedures for the MOE
calculation.

Cause:
The State is currently working with OSEP to develop a procedure for the MOE calculation. Until this
process is completed and implemented, the State is not compliant with the federal requirement.

Effect:
The Department is not in compliance with Special Education MOE requirements and is subject to
supplanting federal funds.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department continue its efforts to develop and implement procedures for the
MOE calculation. Once the procedures are approved by OSEP, we recommend immediate
implementation as well as training for the Districts on the new procedures. Depending on OSEP’s
recommendations/suggestions, review of prior years’ MOE calculations may be required.

Views of responsible officials:

Delaware continues to work on implementing the OSEP approved template and creating new
procedures for LEA MOE. DOE has worked extensively with Center for IDEA Fiscal Reporting (CIFR)
and OSEP to develop the tools that meet MOE requirements. Currently DOE is working on establishing
the methodology to extract the data from First State Financials and the LEA approval steps.
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Reference Number: 2016-009

Prior Year Finding: 2015-015

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Department of Education

School District: Appoquinimink, Indian River, Red Clay

Federal Program: Special Education Cluster — Individual Disability Education Act
(IDEA)

CFDA Number: 84.027, 84.173

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles — Time and Effort Reporting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance,

Material Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance:

2 CFR 200.430 (i) Standards for Documentation of Personnel Expenses states that: Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed.
These records must:(i) Be supported by a system of internal control which provides reasonable
assurance that the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated;(ii) Be incorporated into the
official records of the non-Federal entity;(iii) Reasonably reflect the total activity for which the employee
is compensated by the non-Federal entity, not exceeding 100% of compensated activities (for IHE, this
per the IHE's definition of IBS);(iv) Encompass both federally assisted and all other activities
compensated by the non-Federal entity on an integrated basis, but may include the use of subsidiary
records as defined in the non-Federal entity's written policy;(v) Comply with the established accounting
policies and practices of the non-Federal entity (See paragraph (h)(1)(ii)) above for treatment of
incidental work for IHEs.); and(vi) [Reserved](vii) Support the distribution of the employee's salary or
wages among specific activities or cost objectives if the employee works on more than one Federal
award; a Federal award and non-Federal award; an indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity; two
or more indirect activities which are allocated using different allocation bases; or an unallowable activity
and a direct or indirect cost activity.(viii) Budget estimates (i.e., estimates determined before the
services are performed) alone do not qualify as support for charges to Federal awards, but may be
used for interim accounting purposes, provided that:(A) The system for establishing the estimates
produces reasonable approximations of the activity actually performed;(B) Significant changes in the
corresponding work activity (as defined by the non-Federal entity's written policies) are identified and
entered into the records in a timely manner. Short term (such as one or two months) fluctuation
between workload categories need not be considered as long as the distribution of salaries and wages
is reasonable over the longer term; and(C) The non-Federal entity's system of internal controls includes
processes to review after-the-fact interim charges made to a Federal award based on budget
estimates. All necessary adjustment must be made such that the final amount charged to the Federal
award is accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.
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Condition:

Time and effort certifications were not documented in accordance with federal requirements.
Appoquinimink, Indian River, and Red Clay School Districts did not consistently maintain proper effort
reporting for employees funded by federal programs.

For Appoquinimink, an employee’s time and effort was certified as 49%; however, actual time and
effort charged to the grant was 56%. This resulted in an overcharge of the grant for $215.

For Indian River, an employee’s time and effort was certified as 20%; however, actual time and effort
charged to the grant was 18%. This resulted in an undercharge of the grant for $126.

For Red Clay, the time and effort certifications for two employee pay periods selected for testing were
not provided. The employees’ salaries charged to the grant for the periods tested totaled $10,208.

Context:

Four out of sixty time and effort certifications were not documented in accordance with federal
requirements. One error was noted for Appoquinimink, one error was noted for Indian River, and two
errors were noted for Red Clay.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards identifies the program expenditures in total, not by
District or State-level costs. The total sample represented payroll transactions from all 19 Districts. The
Districts are responsible for disseminating, reviewing and approving time and effort certifications for all
employee’s whose salary (whole or part) is supported by federal funds. Payroll costs for Special
Education were 66 percent of the total federal program expenditures for fiscal year 2016.

Questioned costs:

Total questioned costs in the amount of $10,297 were determined. This represents the Appoquinimink
overcharge of $215, the Indian River undercharge of $126, and Red Clay’s unsupported charges of
$10,208.

Cause:

The Districts have not enhanced their internal controls over the time and effort process to ensure that
errors were prevented and/or detected; as well as documentation is maintained in accordance with the
federal retention policy.

Effect:
The Department internal controls are ineffective for detecting the errors and missing certifications. The
Department did not establish effective internal controls over allowable costs and activities.

Recommendation:

School Districts should not seek federal reimbursement unless they can substantiate that the time and
effort was dedicated to the federal program. The School Districts should evaluate their internal controls
to determine what allowed this to occur and take timely corrective action to avoid such instances in the
future.
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Views of responsible officials:
Indian River: All Federal salaries will be reviewed by the grant secretary and the Director of Business to

make sure the correct percentage of time worked is being charged to the grant through payroll.

Red Clay: Upon completion of the time and effort reporting, the Manager of Federal Programs and
Supervisor of Accounting will complete a semi-annual internal review of all federally funded employees
to reconcile grand funded positions, payroll expenditures and time and effort reporting. Documentation
will be maintained by the Manager of Federal Programs.

Appoquinimink: Please see Appoquinimink’s proposed Time and Effort procedure attached to the end
of the audit report.
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Reference Number: 2016-010

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Department of Labor

State Division Name: Division of Vocational Rehabilitation

Federal Program: Vocational Rehabilitation Services

CFDA Number: 84.126

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016
Compliance

Requirement: Earmarking

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: States must reserve at least 15 percent of their VR allotment under Section 110(a) of the
Act for the provision of pre-employment transition services to students with disabilities who are eligible,
or potentially eligible, for VR services. State VR agencies are required to collaborate with local
educational agencies to provide, or arrange for the provision of, pre-employment transition services to
students with disabilities. If reserved funds remain after the provision of the required activities, States
may use these funds for activities designed to improve the transition of students with disabilities from
school to post-school activities, including employment (Sections 110(d) and 113(a) and (c) of the Act
(29 USC 730(d) and 733(a) and (c))).

Condition:

The Department failed to spend the required 15% reservation for Pre-Employment Transition Services
(PETS). The Department reserved $1,618,781 for PETS and spent only $751,592 of the reservation
during FY16 on PETS related activities.

Context:
None.

Questioned costs:
Undetermined. None of the costs were unallowed. The grantor may request remittance of the unspent
funds.

Cause:
The Department’s internal controls did not detect the expenditure shortfall.

Effect:
The Department is not in compliance with federal requirements and may be penalized by the grantor.
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Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department staff and management responsible for monitoring earmarking
activities ensure that grant funds are being used in accordance with federal requirements. If the
Department will not meet the required threshold, the Department should notify the grantor and request
a waiver or additional time to spend the funds.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) plans to meet the 15% requirement by expanding the
services in the Pre-Employment Transition Program (Pre-ETS) and monitoring expenditures on a
monthly basis to track progress. A monthly Pre-ETS financial report will be provided to the Director by
the Senior Fiscal Administrative Officer so adjustments to the program can be implemented in a timely
manner. In addition, DVR has identified 12 employees who are now charging a portion of their time to
the Pre-ETS program. We have notified the federal agency that we did not meet the 15% requirement
in FY 2016, they have not informed us of what action they will take.
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Reference Number: 2016-011

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

State Department Name: Department of Labor

State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016
Compliance

Requirement: Subrecipient Monitoring

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: Per 2 CFR section 200.331 — Requirements for Pass Through Entities, the pass through
entity (PTE) should ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward
and includes certain data elements at the time of the subaward; and, if any of these data elements
change, include the changes in subsequent award modification. When some of this information is not
available, the PTE must provide the best information available to describe the Federal Award and
subaward. The data elements must include CFDA number and name and the PTE must identify the
dollar amount made available under each Federal award and the CFDA number at time of
disbursement.

Condition:

During our testing, we noted that the grant agreements for two subrecipients did not contain the
required award identification information. The Department did not identify federal award numbers,
catalog of federal domestic assistance numbers (CFDA) or the award amounts related to the CFDA
numbers in the cluster.

Context:
Two out of two subrecipient grant awards selected for testing did not have the required award
identification information.

Questioned costs:
None noted. The requirement does not affect allowable costs.

Cause:

The Department did not update the subrecipient grant awards to include all of the required information
in accordance with Uniform Guidance. Lack of internal controls around subaward agreement
procedures could be the cause of this finding.
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Effect:
If award identification information is not provided, the subrecipient may not be aware of all guidelines of

the awarded program.

Recommendation:
We recommend the Department review the subaward requirements under Uniform Guidance and

incorporate the requirements into their current subaward agreement process.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Employment and Training will review the sub-award requirements under the Uniform
Guidance and incorporate the requirements noted in the recommendation into our sub-award
agreements.
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Reference Number: 2016-012

Prior Year Finding: 2015-023

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Department of Services for Children, Youth, and Their Families
Federal Program: Foster Care — Title IV-E

CFDA Number: 93.658

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles — Cost Allocation Plan

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 CFR 95.509 states the following
regarding cost allocation plan amendments and certifications:

a) The State shall promptly amend the cost allocation plan and submit the amended plan to the
Director of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Cost Allocation Services (CAS),
if any of the following events occur:

(1) The procedures shown in the existing cost allocation plan become outdated because of
organizational changes, changes in Federal law or regulations, or significant changes in
program levels, affecting the validity of the approved cost allocation procedures.

(2) A material defect is discovered in the cost allocation plan by the Director, CAS or the
State.

(3) The State plan for public assistance programs is amended so as to affect the allocation
of costs.

(4) Other changes occur which make the allocation basis or procedures in the approval cost
allocation plan invalid.

b) If a State has not submitted a plan or plan amendment during a given State fiscal year, an
annual statement shall be submitted to the Director, DCA certifying that it's approved cost
allocation plan is not outdated. This statement shall be submitted within 60 days after the end of
that fiscal year.

Condition:

During FY 16, the Department was operating under an expired cost allocation plan which was effective
from October 1998 through September 1999. A new cost allocation plan was submitted to the
Administration for Children and Families (ACF) on March 22, 2016; however, was not affective until
July 1, 2016.

Context:
Prior year finding 2015-023 was not resolved for the year ended June 30, 2016.

(46)



STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Questioned costs:
Undetermined. ACF has not disallowed any portion of the Department’s billed administration costs.

Cause:
The Department continues to work with ACF on a new cost allocation plan while utilizing the last
approved plan to allocate costs.

Effect:
The Department was operating under an outdated cost allocation plan and did not obtain approval for a
new plan until after the fiscal year.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the Department continue to utilize its newly affective cost allocation plan and
ensure that all future cost allocation plans are promptly developed and approved.

Views of responsible officials:

Negotiations with the US DHHS Division of Cost Allocation (DCA) New York, NY, as well as the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and the Administration for Children and Families
(ACF), Region lll Offices, Philadelphia, PA, were completed March 2016 and the new Cost Allocation
Plan was implemented effective July 1, 2016. DSCYF will review at least annually whether or not the
CAP needs to be updated/amended as per the requirements of 45 CFR 95.509.
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Reference Number: 2016-013

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Department of Services for Children, Youth, and Their Families
Federal Program: Foster Care — Title IV-E

CFDA Number: 93.658

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles — Time and Effort Reporting
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance:

2 CFR 200.430 (i) Standards for Documentation of Personnel Expenses states that: Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed.
These records must:(i) Be supported by a system of internal control which provides reasonable
assurance that the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated;(ii) Be incorporated into the
official records of the non-Federal entity;(iii) Reasonably reflect the total activity for which the employee
is compensated by the non-Federal entity, not exceeding 100% of compensated activities (for IHE, this
per the IHE's definition of IBS);(iv) Encompass both federally assisted and all other activities
compensated by the non-Federal entity on an integrated basis, but may include the use of subsidiary
records as defined in the non-Federal entity's written policy;(v) Comply with the established accounting
policies and practices of the non-Federal entity (See paragraph (h)(1)(ii) above for treatment of
incidental work for IHEs.); and(vi) [Reserved](vii) Support the distribution of the employee's salary or
wages among specific activities or cost objectives if the employee works on more than one Federal
award; a Federal award and non-Federal award; an indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity; two
or more indirect activities which are allocated using different allocation bases; or an unallowable activity
and a direct or indirect cost activity.(viii) Budget estimates (i.e., estimates determined before the
services are performed) alone do not qualify as support for charges to Federal awards, but may be
used for interim accounting purposes, provided that:(A) The system for establishing the estimates
produces reasonable approximations of the activity actually performed;(B) Significant changes in the
corresponding work activity (as defined by the non-Federal entity's written policies) are identified and
entered into the records in a timely manner. Short term (such as one or two months) fluctuation
between workload categories need not be considered as long as the distribution of salaries and wages
is reasonable over the longer term; and(C) The non-Federal entity's system of internal controls includes
processes to review after-the-fact interim charges made to a Federal award based on budget
estimates. All necessary adjustment must be made such that the final amount charged to the Federal
award is accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.
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Condition:

Time and effort certifications were not documented in accordance with federal requirements. An
employee was certified as working 40% of their time to the Foster Care IV-E program; however, the
actual time charged to the grant was 50%. The Department’s internal control procedures failed to
prevent and/or detect and correct the error.

Context:
The time and effort certification for one of forty payroll transactions selected was incorrect.

Questioned costs:
Questioned costs of $247 reflect the overcharged amount to the federal grant.

Cause:
The Department did not consistently perform current time and effort procedures.

Effect:
The Department increases the risk of charging unallowed costs to the program.

Recommendation:

The Department should not seek federal reimbursement unless they can substantiate that the time and
effort was dedicated to the federal program. The Department should evaluate their internal controls to
determine what allowed this to occur and take timely corrective action to avoid such instances in the
future.

Views of responsible officials:

The Time and Effort statement has been revised to ensure accuracy and to eliminate inconsistencies
between PHRST payroll and the Time and Effort statements. If DSCYF Payroll staff have questions
regarding the Time and Effort statements upon receipt they will refer those questions to the DSCYF
Client Eligibility Supervisor for clarification. Time and Effort statements and PHRST payroll records will
be reviewed monthly by DSCYF Payroll staff and payroll records will be corrected to match the Time
and Effort statements.
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Reference Number: 2016-014

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

State Department Name: Department of Labor

State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016
Compliance

Requirement: Eligibility

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: A person is eligible to receive services under Youth Activities if they are an out-of-school
youth or an in-school youth (Section 129(a)(1), WIOA,128 Stat. 1504). Under WIOA, an “out-of-school
youth” is an individual who is:
(1) Not attending any school (as defined under State law);
(2) Not younger than 16 or older than age 24 at time of enrollment. (Because age eligibility is
based on age at enroliment, participants may continue to receive services beyond the age of 24
once they are enrolled in the program); and
(3) One or more of the following barriers to entry into the workforce:
(a) A school dropout; (b) A youth who is within the age of compulsory school attendance,
but has not attended school for at least the most recent complete school year calendar
quarter (school year calendar quarter is based on how a local school district defines its
school year quarters);(c) A recipient of a secondary school diploma or its recognized
equivalent who is a low-income individual and is either basic skills deficient or an English
language learner; (d) An individual who is subject to the juvenile or adult justice system;
(e) A homeless individual, a runaway, an individual who is in foster care or has aged out
of the foster care system, a child eligible for assistance under Section 477 of the Social
Security Act, or an individual who is in an out-of-home placement; (f) An individual who
is pregnant or parenting; (g) An individual with a disability; (h) A low-income individual
who requires additional assistance to enter or complete an educational program or to
secure or hold employment. (Sections 3(46) and 129(a)(1)(B),WIOA, 128 Stat. 1437 and
1504).

Condition: For one youth participant file selected for testing, the Department did not provide sufficient
documentation to support the low-income requirement. WIA requires youth participants to prove that
they require additional financial assistance in order to be eligible for the program. Documentation to
support the participant’s low-income barrier was insufficient. The Department received and accepted
one paystub as documentation of income for the entire year for the participant.
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Context: One of the sixty eligibility samples selected for testing did not contain sufficient
documentation.

Questioned costs: Undetermined, based on lack of information, we were unable to determine if
unallowed costs were incurred.

Cause: The Department did not consistently perform the procedures for documenting youth eligibility.
Supervisory review of the file failed to identify the error and provide instructions for resolution.

Effect: The Department is unable to support eligibility for youth’s participating in the program; the
grantor could assess questioned costs due to the non-compliance.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department review its current process for determining
eligibility for WIA participant case files and ensure that sufficient documentation is obtained and
approved prior to eligibility determination.

Views of responsible officials:

The Division of Employment and Training agrees to review its current process for determining eligibility
for WIOA Youth participant cases, and make any changes needed to ensure that sufficient
documentation is obtained and approved prior to eligibility determination. This revised procedure will be
reviewed at a meeting with the youth contractors to allow questions and ensure this is understood.
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Reference Number: 2016-015

Prior Year Finding: 2015-019

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Delaware Technical Community College

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests — Enroliment Reporting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance,

Material Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: Federal regulation requires the enrollment status for each student be reported accurately
to National Student Loan Data Systems (NSLDS). In addition, regulations require that an institution
make necessary corrections and return the records within 10 calendar days for any roster files that do
not pass the NSLDS enrollment reporting edits.

Condition:
National Student Loan Data Systems (NSLDS) rosters returned yielded error reports that were not
corrected and resubmitted within the required 10 day time period.

This issue occurred at the majority of colleges and universities in the U.S. during 2016, attributable to a
processing error within the National Student Clearinghouse and the NSLDS websites. The U.S.
Department of Education is aware of this processing error and institutions around the country utilizing
the National Student Clearinghouse are also facing this same issue and have the same finding.

Context:
This condition occurred for all monthly submissions to NSLDS during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016.

Questioned costs:
No questioned costs identified, the reporting errors did not affect program costs.

Cause:

Delaware Technical Community College (the College) utilizes the National Student Clearinghouse
(NSC), a third party service provider, to submit student information to the NSLDS. NSC had software
conversion problems that presented the monitoring and correcting of submission errors. However, it is
possible for the College to create an Enroliment Reporting Summary Report after reporting student
status changes on NSLDS, which would have detected these types of errors.

(52)



STATE OF DELAWARE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Effect:
Student enroliment status may not be correctly or timely reported to the NSLDS.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the College institute a process to ensure that the enrollment status of students
who withdraw or graduate are accurately reported to the NSLDS within the required time period. The
system should include monitoring the NSC third party servicer to ensure it has corrected the failed
software programming.

Views of responsible officials:

Error Resolution Reports were incorrect and corrective action was extended due to factors including
Academic Year 2015-2016 initial effects experienced beginning in July 2015 when the College’s Multi-
Campus structure merged into a One-College and One-OPEID code structure. Academic Year 2014-
2015 initial effects experienced from the July 2013 150% rule for new student borrowers with
Subsidized Stafford Loans continued to be an issue in conjunction with the One-College merger.

While some issues were immediately resolved by increased familiarity with the new reporting
requirements and new NSC database requirements (i.e. Enroliment Reporting Programming & Testing
Guide), the College also initiated the following. There are no questioned costs identified, the reporting
errors did not affect program costs.

o Testing and implementation of the above mentioned Enroliment Reporting Summary Report in
2016 to help identify and correct errors in a timely manner consistent with the 10-calendar day
window; and

e Continued consultation with representatives from the NSLDS, the College’s third-party service
provider NSC, and the College’s third-party student database vendor.
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Reference Number: 2016-016

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Delaware Technical Community College

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests — Disbursements to or on Behalf of Students
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities to
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: If a loan period is one payment period, the school must make at least two disbursements
during that payment period. The school may not make the second disbursement until the calendar
midpoint between the first and last scheduled days of class of the loan period.

Condition:

Delaware Technical Community College (the College) did not ensure that loans greater than $1,000
were paid in two disbursements for students that only attended one semester as required when the
College’s cohort default rate is greater than 15% in any one of the three most recent years.

Context:
This condition occurred for 3 out of 15 students tested who received a direct loan disbursement.

Questioned costs:
There are no questioned costs as disbursements were made in the correct amount, but were not paid
in the required timeframe.

Cause:
The College’s second loan disbursement date was not past the 50% of the semester mark for one
semester loans.

Effect:
The College is not in compliance with Federal regulations regarding timing of certain payments of
Direct loans.

Recommendation:

We recommend the College evaluate its direct loan procedures to ensure that disbursements greater
than $1,000 are paid in two disbursements, the second of which should not be made until at least
halfway through the semester, when a loan is disbursed in one semester.
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Views of responsible officials:

The College has always scheduled one semester loans with two separate disbursement dates. The
second disbursement date was not past the 50% point of the semester. The college has corrected the
second disbursement date to be past the 50% point of the semester for one semester loans for future

disbursements. There are no questioned costs as disbursements were made in the correct amount but
were not paid in the required timeframe.
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Reference Number: 2016-017

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Delaware Technical Community College

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268

Award Period: July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests — Return of Title IV Funds

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance,

Noncompliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
(the Uniform Guidance), went into effect on December 26, 2014. This requires non-Federal entities
establish and maintain effective internal controls over Federal awards so that they provide reasonable
assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing Federal awards in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards per 2 CFR section 200.303(a).

Compliance: In accordance with 34 CFR 668.22(a)(1), when a recipient of Title IV grant or loan
assistance withdraws from an institution during a payment period or period of enrollment in which the
recipient began attendance, the institution must determine the amount of Title IV grant or loan
assistance that the student earned as of the student’s withdrawal date.

Condition:
Delaware Technical Community College (the College) utilized the incorrect percentage of ‘total days
completed’ in the ‘Aid Earned’ portion of the Return of Title IV (R2T4) calculation.

Context:
This condition occurred for 1 of 40 R2T4 calculations selected for testing.

Questioned costs:
Total aid to be returned to the program was underpaid by $777.

Cause:

The Financial Aid Office concurs that the incorrect percentage of ‘total days completed’ was transferred
to ‘Aid Earned’ calculation in the Department of Education R2T4 software. The financial aid office did
not review the recalculation to ensure the accuracy of the calculated ‘Aid Earned’. The college did
enter the total days’ completed’ correctly. Therefore, it appears to have been a software error.

Effect:

The students’ return of funds was not calculated correctly resulting in an incorrect post-withdrawal
disbursement.
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Recommendation:

We recommend the College review the R2T4 requirements and implement procedures to ensure the
correct amount of days are used throughout the calculation and the R2T4 calculations are accurately
completed and reviewed.

Views of responsible officials:

As a result of the above mentioned error and to prevent future errors in automatic calculations, the
college is reviewing all R2T4 recalculations to ensure the accuracy of recalculated aid. In addition, to
ensure the accuracy of all records for the 1516 academic year, the financial aid office reviewed all
campus recalculations and did not find other discrepancies. The total of $776.74 will be repaid against
the 1516 academic year.
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Reference Number: 2016-018

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division for the Visually Impaired

Federal Program: Vocational Rehabilitation Services

CFDA Number: 84.126

Award Period: October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016
Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles — Time and Effort Reporting
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement:

Control: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 CFR Part 92 requires that non- Federal
entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., management) establish and maintain internal controls designed
to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements, including approval and reconciliation of payroll charges for allowable costs/cost
principles.

Condition:

The Division charges employees’ time to the federal program based on fixed budgeted amounts. The
fixed budgeted amounts are based on the approved annual program budget. As part of the Division’s
time and effort procedures, the budgeted payroll allocated to the program should be compared to the
employees’ actual time and effort; with adjustments to the grant made as needed. For FY16, one
employee’s time was overcharged to the federal program and one employee’s time was undercharged.
The Division’s time and effort reconciliation procedures did not identify and correct the errors. The total
undercharge for the year was in the amount of $2,956 and the overcharge was in the amount of $1,597.
The Division did not obtain approval from the grantor for the overcharge.

Context:
The condition affected eight of forty payroll transactions selected for testing.

Questioned costs:
Undetermined as the grant was not collectively overcharged for the two employees selected for testing.

Cause:

The Division’s time and effort reconciliation procedures did not identify and correct the error. Current
time and effort procedures did not identify the process for reconciling and adjusting budget to actual
costs.

Effect:
The Division increases the risk of charging unallowed costs to the program.
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Recommendation:

The Division should evaluate their procedures regarding time and effort reconciliations. The procedures
should include (at least) quarterly reconciliations between budgeted and actual costs charged to the
program. If actual costs will exceed the budget, the Division should request a waiver or approval from
the grantor.

Views of responsible officials:

DHSS has reviewed and verified that the overall grant was not over-charged but in order to be
compliant with Uniform Guidance, we will continue to update and strengthen our internal controls and
procedures with the intent to provide reasonable assurance that the salary and wage charges are
accurate, allowable and properly allocated. If it is found that actual costs exceed the budget, we will
make the necessary adjustments and/or request a waiver or approval from the grantor in order to
remain compliant. Time and effort reporting documentation for all staff outside of the Division for the
Visually Impaired (grant owner) will be submitted to and approved by the Division for the Visually
Impaired (grant owner) no less than quarterly.
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Finding 2015-001 - Prior Period Adjustment Resulting from the Understatement of Liability-
Division of Unemployment Insurance.

Material Weakness

Condition:

The Division of Unemployment Insurance (Ul) recorded entries in fiscal year 2014 that resulted in the
understatement of accrued liabilities. This resulted in a prior period audit adjustment to increase the
accrued liability, and a respective charge to decrease net position by $6.2 million.

Current year status:
Through work performed during fiscal year 2016, prior year material weakness appears to be mitigated.

Finding 2015-002 - Overstatement of Grants Receivable - Division of Accounting, Department of
Finance:

Material Weakness

Condition:

In the process of compiling the GAAP Reporting Packages, a spreadsheet error was made by Division
of Accounting, Department of Finance resulting in the overstatement of grants receivable. This required
an audit adjustment to decrease grants receivable and the related revenue amount by $6.6 million.

Current year status:
Through work performed during fiscal year 2016, prior year material weakness appears to be mitigated.

Finding 2015-003 - Understatement of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Department of
Corrections

Material Weakness

Condition:

The Department of Corrections' (DOC) failed to properly perform a valuation of the collectability of all
accounts receivable at year end, resulting in an understatement of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
This error resulted in an audit adjustment to increase the allowance for doubtful accounts in the
amount of $10.1 million.

Current year status:
Through work performed during fiscal year 2016, prior year material weakness appears to be mitigated.
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Finding 2015-004 - Understatement of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Superior Courts
Material Weakness

Condition:

The methodology used by the Superior Court (SC) to determine the valuation of the allowance for
doubtful accounts was not properly evaluated. The method used by SC was to determine the collection
rate to date, and apply that rate to the remaining balance of accounts receivable. This methodology
does not consider that the rate of collections will decrease as the uncollected balances age, and as a
result understated the allowance for doubtful accounts. This error resulted in an audit adjustment to
increase the allowance for doubtful accounts in the amounts of $25.6 million.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-001.

Reason for finding’s recurrence:

Superior Court has been working to convert its receivable records from a DOS based system to a more
modern tracking system developed by DELJIS (Delaware Justice Information Systems). However due
to the significant number of older records due to individuals sentenced to lengthy incarceration periods,
manual reviews of these records are required which has delayed the complete implementation. The
DOS system does not produce detail financial reports by individuals resulting in estimates based on
collectability from prior years on the total outstanding receivable. With the implementation of the new
system expected to be in place by April 1, 2017, collectability will be able to be based on an individual's
record.

Finding 2015-005 - Overstatement of Accounts Receivable- Department of Insurance

Material Weakness

Condition:

The Department of Insurance incorrectly reported the accounts receivable balance on the GAAP

reporting package at June 30, 2015, resulting in an overstatement of accounts receivable balance. This
error required an audit adjustment to decrease accounts receivable in the amount of $5.3 million.

Current year status:
Through work performed during fiscal year 2016, prior year material weakness appears to be mitigated.
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Finding 2015-006 - Understatement of Unemployment Insurance Accounts Receivable - Division
of Unemployment Insurance

Material Weakness

Condition:

In computing the allowance for doubtful accounts, the Division of Unemployment Insurance (Ul)
incorrectly reserved 58% of the accounts receivable balance, instead of 42% which represents the
historical rate of accounts deemed uncollectable. This resulted in an audit adjustment to reduce the
allowance for doubtful accounts on accounts receivable by $3.3 million.

Current year status:
Through work performed during fiscal year 2016, prior year material weakness appears to be mitigated.
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Reference Number: 2015-007

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: Department of Health and Human Services
State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services
State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Child Care and Development Cluster

CFDA Number: 93.575, 93.596

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity - Time and Effort Certification
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance
Condition:

An employee’s time and effort certification was not approved within a timely manner. The time and
effort certification for pay period ending 5/16/2015 was not approved until 2/8/2016.

The supervisor certification alert, per the automated certification system, was disabled; the department
did not have an internal control to detect the missing certification until inquiry by the auditors.

Current year status:
Through prior year finding follow up procedures performed, it was determined that corrective action was
implemented. No similar findings were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-008

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Management Services

Federal Program: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)
CFDA Number: 93.558

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions — Child Support Non-Cooperation
Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control and Compliance
Condition:

The Department failed to reduce or suspend TANF benefits for beneficiaries that were non-cooperative
with child support as described in the compliance requirement above. The TANF benefits were not
reduced or suspended as a result of the non-compliance. The Department’s case files failed to identify
the beneficiary as non-compliant, hence there was no documentation to alert the case worker to take
the appropriate action.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-003.
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Reason for finding’s recurrence:
The DHSS PY finding 2015-008 wasn’t brought to the attention of the Division of Social Services until
February of FY16. The corrective action was not fully in place until June 30, 2016.

Reference Number:
Prior Year Finding:
Federal Agency:

State Department Name:
State Division Name:
Federal Program:

CFDA Number:
Compliance
Requirement:
Type of Finding:

Condition:

Time and effort certifications tested were not documented in accordance with the Department’s or
federal requirements. The Department requires quarterly time and effort certification for employees who

2015-009

No

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Department of Health and Social Services

Division of Public Health (DPH)

Special Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)

10.557

Allowable Cost and Activity - Time and Effort Certification
Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance

work solely on a single federal award or cost objective.

e One certification was incomplete. The employee did not initial as to time spent on the program

and the form was not signed by a supervisor.

e One certification contained an incorrect certification period. The error was not identified as part
of the supervisory review process. The certification period was listed as10/1/2014-12/31/2014

instead of 7/1/2014-9/30/2014.

e One certification was not provided for the period being tested. We requested the 4™ quarter
time and effort certification which covers pay periods ending 10/1/2014-12/31/2014. We were

notified that the certification was not available.

Current year status:

During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings

were noted during the current year audit.
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Reference Number: 2015-010

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Public Health (DPH)

Federal Program: Special Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)

CFDA Number: 10.557

Compliance

Requirement: Eligibility

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance

Condition:

The income documentation for child support income did not meet the income documentation
requirements identified above. The client provided a telephone screen shot of two ACH transactions.
The ACH transactions were not identifiable as to the type of income, bank or client's name.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-011

Prior Year Finding: 2014-029

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Medicaid and Medical Assistance

Federal Program: State Planning and Establishment Grants for the Affordable
Care Act (ACA) Exchanges

CFDA Number: 93.525

Compliance

Requirement: Reporting - Financial

Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control

Condition:

Management failed to detect and correct errors before submitting monthly Budget Supplemental reports
to the awarding agency. The July and December 2014 reports did not agree with the expenditure data
reported in First State Financial (FSF), the State’s financial system.

The submitted July 2014 report contained program costs of $3,626,373 compared to FSF expenditures
of $2,694,245. This resulted in a variance of $932,128.

The submitted December 2014 report contained program costs of $3,869,917 compared to FSF
expenditures of $5,802,379. This resulted in a variance of $1,932,462.
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Current year status:
Through prior year finding follow up procedures performed, it was determined that corrective action was
implemented. No similar findings were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-012

Prior Year Finding: 2014-037

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Special Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)

CFDA Number: 10.557

Compliance

Requirement: Reporting- SSAE 16

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control

Condition:

Effective April 2013, the Special Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program for Women, Infants, and
Children (WIC) Program replaced its old data system used for processing WIC information with a new
system called WIC on the Web (WoW). The WoW System is used to track participant eligibility as well
as information on vouchers issued (reporting), redeemed (reporting), cancelled (reporting), and
reissued (reporting). The WoW is hosted by a third party service provider. The Department did not
obtain a SSAE 16 SOC I, Type 2 report for the period under audit.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-013

Prior Year Finding: 2014-054

Federal Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

State Department Name: Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control
State Division Name: Division of Water Resources, Financial Assistance Branch
Federal Program: Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
CFDA Number: 66.468

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity - Time and Effort reporting

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance

Condition:

The time and effort certification was not in accordance with federal requirements. The certification
identified the employee’s time at 50% when the employee worked 100% on the program. Upon
identification of the error, the department prepared a revised time and effort certification.
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Current year status:
Through prior year finding follow up procedures performed, it was determined that corrective action was
implemented. No similar findings were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-014

Prior Year finding: 2014-012

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: Department of Education

School Districts: All

Federal Program: Special Education Cluster - Individual Disability Education Act

(IDEA)

CFDA Number: 84.027/84.173

Compliance

Requirement: Level of Effort (Maintenance of Effort)

Type of Finding: Scope Limitation - Control and Compliance
Condition:

The Department of Education did not prepare a SEA and/or LEA maintenance of effort calculation
for fiscal year 2015. The Department continues to work with the U.S. Department of Education —
Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) to develop procedures for the MOE calculation.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-008.

Reason for finding’s recurrence:
DOE continued to work with US DOE and CIFR during 2016 to determine a compliant
methodology and develop policies and procedures for LEA MOE. DOE intends to implement the
new changes by April 1, 2017.

Reference Number: 2015-015

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name:  Department of Education

School District: Appoquinimink, Christina, Red Clay

Federal Program: Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Special Education
Cluster, Title Il

CFDA Number: 84.010, 84.027/84.173, 84.367

Compliance

Requirement: Allowability (Time and Effort reporting)

Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control and Compliance

Prior Year finding: 2014-009

Condition:

Time and Effort Certification were not documented in accordance with federal requirements. Hence,
Appoquinimink, Christiana, and Red Clay School Districts did not consistently maintain proper effort
reporting for employees funded by federal programs.
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Appoquinimink:
Title I:
o An employee’s time and effort was certified as 47%; actual time and effort charged to the grant
was 30%. This resulted in an undercharge of the grant for $339. Supervisory review of the
estimated to actual certified time did not identify the difference.

Special Education:

o An employee’s time and effort was certified as 80%; actual time and effort charged to the grant
was 50%. This resulted in an undercharge of the grant for $571.85. Supervisory review of the
estimated to actual certified time did not identify the difference.

Christina:
Title 1I:
e The time and effort certification for 3 employees was not provided for testing. The employees’
salaries charge to the grant for the period tested was $8,175.23.
Special Education:
e The time and effort certification for 3 employees was not provided for testing. The employees’
salaries charge to the grant for the period tested was $3,140.73.

Red Clay:
Title 1l
e An employee’s time and effort was certified as 50%; actual time and effort charged to the grant
was 60%. This resulted in an overcharged of the grant for $476.16. Supervisory review of the
estimated to actual certified time did not identify the difference.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-009.

Reason for finding’s recurrence:

DOE continues to provide technical assistance through monitoring visits and guidance accessible on a
DOE website. DOE will ensure that LEAs that have repeat Time and Effort findings be automatically
scheduled for monitoring of their general fiscal protocols through DOE’s Performance Management
workgroup.
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Reference Number: 2015-016

Prior year finding: 2014-043

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

State Department Name: Department of Labor

State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278

Compliance

Requirement: Eligibility

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance
Condition:

The client’s case file did not contain documentation of the interview, evaluation or assessment of
training services, skills and qualifications was incomplete. The client’s application was not signed by the
client or case manager. Furthermore, supervisory review of the case file was not evident.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-017

Prior year finding: 2014-042

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

State Department Name:  Department of Labor

State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity (time and effort)
Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control and Compliance
Condition:

Time and effort certifications were not documented in accordance with federal requirements.

1. The certification for two employees did not identify the federal program in which the employees
worked.

2. The certification provided for two employees was the signed contractual agreement. The
agreement identified the federal program and approved budgeted salary. However, certification
of the employee’s actual time and effort for the program was not provided.

3. Two employees’ time was not approved to be charged to the program.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.
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Reference Number: 2015-018

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation

State Department Name: Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT)

Federal Program: Federal Transit Cluster

CFDA Number: 20.500/20.507

Compliance Special Tests - Wage Rate Requirements (formerly Davis
Requirement: Bacon)

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance

Condition:

The Department did not provide documentation to support their review and monitoring of the
contractor’s compliance with the wage rate requirements.

Current year status:
Through prior year finding follow up procedures performed, it was determined that corrective action was
implemented. No similar findings were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-019

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department: Delaware Technical Community College
Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.063/84.007/84.033/84.268

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests - Enrollment Reporting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control and Compliance
Condition:

NSLDS rosters returned error reports that were not corrected and resubmitted within the required 10
days. This condition occurred for all twelve monthly submissions to NSLDS during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-015.

Reason for finding’s recurrence:

The National Student Clearinghouse (NSC) has not corrected the software issue that has resulted in
error records remaining uncorrected. The College increases efforts to manage this issue through
continued consultation with representatives from the NSLDS, the College’s third-party service provider
NSC, and the College’s third-party student database vendor.
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Reference Number: 2015-020

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department: Delaware Technical Community College

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.063/84.007/84.033/84.268

Compliance Special Tests and Provisions- Escheatment of Title IV Funds
Requirement:

Type of Finding: Material Weakness - Control and Compliance

Condition:

The College is not ensuring that Title IV funds disbursed by check directly to students or parents are
returned to the Secretary, lender, or guaranty Department within 240 days if the check is not cashed.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-021

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department: Delaware Technical Community College

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.063/84.007/84.033/84.268

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions - Enrollment Reporting
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance
Prior Year Finding: No

Condition:

The College incorrectly reported the enroliment status of students receiving loan funds to the NSLDS.
The two students were reported as half-time but transcripts indicated the students as three-quarter
time.

Current year status:

During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.
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Reference Number: 2015-022

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department: Delaware Technical Community College
Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.063/84.007/84.033/84.268

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests — Return of Title IV Funds

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Control and Compliance
Condition:

Our review of sixty Federal Aid students who withdrew from the College, revealed two students for
which Title IV funds were not returned to the grantor within 45-days from the date of determination. The
funds were returned between 64-240 days.

Current year status:
During this year’s testing, it was determined that corrective action was implemented. No similar findings
were noted during the current year audit.

Reference Number: 2015-023

Prior Year Finding: 2014-048

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Department of Services for Children, Youth, and Their Families
Federal Program: Foster Care — Title IV-E

CFDA Number: 93.658

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity - Cost Allocation Plan
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Compliance

Condition:

The Department is operating under an expired cost allocation plan and has not promptly obtained
approval for a new plan as required by 45 CFR 95.509 (a)(1). The plan currently used by the
Department was effective from October 1998 through September 1999.

Current year status:
Repeat finding, see current year finding 2016-012.

Reason for finding’s recurrence:

ACF did not approve a start date for the new CAP until July 1, 2016. The delay was so that DMSS
would have sufficient time to implement the new Random Moment Time Sample Survey in the Family
and Children’s Tracking System (FACTS is DSCYF’s Statewide Automated Child Welfare Information
System — SACWIS); so that there would be sufficient time for Division of Family Services employees to
receive training concerning the new Survey; and to permit the CAP’s new financial claiming schedules
to implemented with a clean start at the beginning of the next full reporting quarter — which also
conveniently was the beginning of the next State Fiscal Year.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-003

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name:  Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)

CFDA Number: 93.558

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions — Child Support Non-Cooperation

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department review its current process for receiving accurate and
timely information from child support in order to update TANF beneficiaries’ case files and ensure the required
non-compliant penalties are assessed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Social Services (DSS) has reviewed the individual
cases identified in the audit and is working with the Audit and Recovery Management Services (ARMS) group
to recoup any related overpayments. Additionally, sanctions were applied to any case identified by the auditors
that was still open and remained non-cooperative.

To ensure all non-cooperative cases are sanctioned promptly and correctly, DSS and the Division of Child
Support Service (DCSS) have worked together to simplify the sanctioning process. Additionally DSS and
DCSS added additional accountability and accuracy checking mechanisms to the sanction process. The
process has been centralized and is handled by the DSS Deputy Director’'s Office. A single resource mailbox
has been established to track requests. DCSS will send all requests for sanctions to be applied or lifted to this
resource mailbox. Staff from the DSS Deputy Director’s Office will review the resource mailbox daily to apply or
lift sanctions. The DSS Deputy Director's Office will maintain a Sanction Activity Log for tracking all DCSS
sanction requests. Monthly, DSS will send DCSS the Sanction Activity Log for their review. Any errors or
omissions discovered by DCSS will be reported to DSS which will act on those findings to ensure correct
sanction application.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Thomas Hall

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: February 15, 2017

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-004

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name:  Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Social Services

Federal Program: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)

CFDA Number: 93.558

Compliance

Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions — Penalty for Refusal to Work

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department review its current process for reducing or suspending
benefits for non-working individuals and ensure the required non-compliant penalties are assessed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding, although
the client did not refuse to participate and was not non-compliant. The non-compliance was not the client’s
fault and therefore, DSS would not have sanctioned the client.

Action taken in response to finding: Work Mandatory TANF clients are referred to contracted Employment
and Training vendors. These vendors transfer client cases to each other when a client's employment status or
address changes. Transfers are completed in the state’s eligibility system. Due to a vendor error, the transfer
of this particular client’s case was not processed correctly. As a result, the client was discharged prior to the
transfer, and was not contacted by the new vendor to continue participation. The client did not refuse to
participate and was not non-compliant. The Division of Social Services (DSS) has reviewed the case, and
confirmed that there was not an overpayment in this case. Once this issue was identified, the client was
engaged by the new vendor and immediately began participating in the assigned employment and training
activities. The Division of Social Services met with the Department of Labor (DOL) to enhance procedures in
an effort to avoid reoccurrences of this type of error. During January 2017, DOL wrote and distributed a new
policy that clarifies the correct procedures for transferring clients. Additionally, The Division of Social Services
has developed a query to identify Work Mandatory cases that did not complete any work activities during the
previous month. This query will assist The Division of Social Services in identifying cases that should be
sanctioned or are not assigned to a vendor.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Thomas Hall

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: February 1, 2017

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-005

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Medicaid and Medical Assistance

Federal Program: Medicaid and Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP)
CFDA Number: 93.775, 93.777, 93.778; 93.767

Compliance Requirement:
Reporting — CMS-64 Quarterly Statement of Expenditures for the
Medical Assistance Program

Recommendation: We recommend that the Division continue to work with specialized CMS-64 reporting
contractors. We further recommend that the Division enhance its procedures over preparation of the quarterly
financial report to ensure that the report reconciles to FSF and any other underlying documentation used for its
preparation. The procedures should also include a review process by an employee other than the preparer to
ensure the report is accurate as well as prevent and/or detect errors and irregularities.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Medicaid and Medical Assistance (DMMA) has been
proactive in seeking to identify process improvements surrounding the preparation of the CMS-64 report. This
includes retaining a third party contractor who specializes in federal reporting to review current operating
procedures and make recommendations for improvement. The division has also proactively invited The
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to participate in this review and provide comments and
feedback. This exercise, initiated by the state, has resulted in the prior period adjustments made to date.

The division will continue this process of improving our procedures involving the preparation of the quarterly
financial report and will continue to make prior period adjustments. The report is reconciled to the state’s
accounting system and any other underlying documentation used to prepare the report. In conjunction with the
procedural review, key staff is obtaining additional training to better identify errors. Management will be
reviewing all documentation and variance reports to ensure accuracy. As part of the process improvement
efforts, the unit is being reorganized and will have new management oversight.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Alexis Bryan-Dorsey

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: October 1, 2017

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-006

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name:  Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical
Disabilities

Federal Program: Aging Cluster

CFDA Number: 93.044, 93.045, 93.053

Compliance

Requirement: Reporting — SF-425 Federal Financial Report

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department enhance its current process for preparing and
retaining supporting documentation for the semiannual SF-425 Federal Financial Reports.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical Disabilities
(DSAAPD) will strengthen its current process, procedures and policies to insure all supporting documentation
is maintained and available to auditors for review. The documentation will support fiscal transactions by being
organized and kept as recommended, and will be captured in the State accounting system as an attachment or
properly retained and organized for any future audits.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: John Cannon

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: June 30, 2017

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-007

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State Department Name:  Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical
Disabilities

Federal Program: Aging Cluster

CFDA Number: 93.044, 93.045, 93.053

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Costs / Cost Principles

Recommendation: We recommend a formal policy which instructs staff to document their review and approval
of the provider's reimbursement request and supporting documentation. Documentation of review and
approval should include reviewer’s signature, date reviewed, and identification of the specific supporting
documentation reviewed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Services for Aging and Adults with Physical Disabilities
(DSAAPD) will review its formal policy regarding the review and approval of supporting documentation
received from providers. DSAAPD will implement a review structure which will require a designated signee to
verify all supporting documentation is reviewed and checked. This documentation of review and approval will
include the reviewer’s signature, date of review and identification of the specific supporting documentation that
has been reviewed.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: John Cannon

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: June 30, 2017

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION oo o
A Townsend B‘“ldmg Secretary of Education
— 401 Federal Street Suite 2 Voice: (302) 735-4000
Dover, Delaware 19901-3639 FAX: (302) 739-4654
DOE WEBSITE: http://www.doe.k12.de.us

Reference Number: 2016-008

State Department Name: Department of Education

Federal Program: Special Education Cluster — Individual Disability Education Act
(IDEA)

CFDA Number: 84.027/84.173

Compliance

Requirement: Level of Effort (Maintenance of Effort)

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department continue its efforts to develop and
implement procedures for the MOE calculation. Once the procedures are approved by OSEP,
we recommend immediate implementation as well as training for the Districts on the new
procedures. Depending on OSEP’s recommendations/suggestions, review of prior years’ MOE
calculations may be required.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: Delaware continues to work on implementing the OSEP approved
template and creating new procedures for LEA MOE. DOE has worked extensively with Center for IDEA
Fiscal Reporting (CIFR) and OSEP to develop the tools that meet MOE requirements. Currently DOE is
working on establishing the methodology to extract the data from First State Financials and the LEA
approval steps.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Cathy Wolfe

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: March 31, 2017

THE DELAWARE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER. IT DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX, SEXUAL
ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY, MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, AGE, GENETIC INFORMATION, OR VETERAN’S STATUS IN EMPLOYMENT, OR ITS PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES.



r DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

o Susan S. Bunting, Ed.D.
A Townsend B‘“ldmg Secretary of Education
— 401 Federal Street Suite 2 Voice: (302) 735-4000
Dover, Delaware 19901-3639 FAX: (302) 739-4654

DOE WEBSITE: http://www.doe.k12.de.us

Reference Number: 2016-009

State Department Name: Department of Education

School District: Appoquinimink, Indian River, Red Clay

Federal Program: Special Education Cluster — Individual Disability Education Act
(IDEA)

CFDA Number: 84.027/84.173

Compliance

Requirement: Allowability (Time and Effort Reporting)

Recommendation: School Districts should not seek federal reimbursement unless they can
substantiate that the time and effort was dedicated to the federal program. The School Districts
should evaluate their internal controls to determine what allowed this to occur and take timely
corrective action to avoid such instances in the future.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Red Clay: Due to a transition in staff, the district was unable to locate the time and effort
reporting files for two employees, though the payroll transactions matched the
indicated grant allocations.

Action taken in response to finding:

Indian River: All Federal salaries will be reviewed by the grant secretary and the Director of
Business to make sure the correct percentage of time worked is being charged to
the grant through payroll.

Red Clay: Upon completion of the time and effort reporting, the Manager of Federal Programs
and Supervisor of Accounting will complete a semi-annual internal review of all
federally funded employee to reconcile grand funded positions, payroll expenditures
and time and effort reporting. Documentation will be maintained by the Manager of
Federal Programs.

Appoquinimink: Please see Appoquinimink’s proposed Time and Effort procedure.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action:

Indian River: Jeannette Steele, Director of Business.

Red Clay: Michael Simmonds, Manager of Federal Programs and Deborah
Roberts, Supervisor of Accounting

Appoquinimink: Chuck Longfellow, Business Manager

THE DELAWARE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER. IT DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX, SEXUAL
ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY, MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, AGE, GENETIC INFORMATION, OR VETERAN’S STATUS IN EMPLOYMENT, OR ITS PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES.



Planned completion date for corrective action plan:
Indian River: Current year salaries have been reviewed for accuracy as of this date.

The annual date for reviewing grant salaries will be the first pay period
of the new contract year.

Red Clay: Completed March 1, 2017 with on-going review.
Appoquinimink: May 1, 2017



DVR®

Linking Ability & Business

DELAWARE DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION WILMINGTON OFFICE
Reference Number: 2016-010
State Department Name: Department of Labor
State Division Name: Division of Vocational Rehabilitation
Federal Program: Vocational Rehabilitation Services
CFDA Number: 84.126
Compliance
Requirement: Earmarking

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department staff and management responsible for monitoring
earmarking activities ensure that grant funds are being used in accordance with federal requirements. If the
Department will not meet the required threshold, the Department should notify the grantor and request a waiver or
additional time to spend the funds.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) plans to meet the
15% requirement by expanding the services in the Pre-Employment Transition Program (Pre-ETS) and
monitoring expenditures on a monthly basis to track progress. A monthly Pre-ETS financial report will be
provided to the Director by the Senior Fiscal Administrative Officer so adjustments to the program can be
implemented in a timely manner. In addition, DVR has identified 12 employees who are now charging a
portion of their time to the Pre-ETS program. We have notified the federal agency that we did not meet the
15% requirement in FY 2016, they have not informed us of what action they will take.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Andrea Guest, Todd Chappelle

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: 8/30/2017

Department of Labor, DVR ¢ 4425 North Market Street  Wilmington, DE 19802
Phone (302) 761-8275 Voice/TTY ¢ Fax (302) 761-6633



STATE OF DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
DI1VISION OF EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING

STACEY LAING 4425 NORTH MARKET STREET, THIRD FLOOR TELEPHONE: (302) 761-8129
DIRECTOR WILMINGTON, DE 19802 FAX: (302) 761-6617
Reference Number: 2016-011
State Department Name:  Department of Labor
State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278
Compliance
Requirement: Sub-recipient Monitoring

Recommendation: We recommend the Department review the sub-award requirements under
Uniform Guidance and incorporate the requirements into the current sub-award agreement
process.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Employment and Training will review the
sub-award requirements under the Uniform Guidance and incorporate the requirements noted in
the recommendation into our sub-award agreements.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Diane Brooks

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: 06/30/17

Mission Statement:
“To provide services enabling employers and job seekers to make
informed employment and training choices leading to employment.”



State of Delaware

The Department of Services
for Children, Youth and
Their Families

Division of Management Services — Fiscal Services e

Reference Number: 2016-012

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Department of Services for Children, Youth, and Their Families
Federal Program: Foster Care — Title IV-E

CFDA Number: 93.658

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity — Cost Allocation Plan

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department continue to utilize its newly effective
cost allocation plan and ensure that all future cost allocation plans are promptly developed
and approved.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: Negotiations with the US DHHS Division of Cost Allocation
(DCA) New York, NY, as well as the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and the
Administration for Children and Families (ACF), Region lll Offices, Philadelphia, PA, were completed
March 2016 and the new Cost Allocation Plan was implemented effective July 1, 2016. DSCYF will
review at least annually whether or not the CAP needs to be updated/amended as per the
requirements of 45 CFR 95.5009.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Christine L. Kraft, DSCYF
Controller; Leslie Boyd, DSCYF Cost Recovery Administrator

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: Annual review within 60 days of the end
of each state fiscal year.

Delaware Youth and Family Center
1825 Faulkland Road <= Wilmington, Delaware 19805 « (Fax) 633-5113



State of Delaware

The Department of Services
for Children, Youth and
Their Families

Division of Management Services — Fiscal Services

Reference Number: 2016-013

State Department Name: Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Department of Services for Children, Youth, and Their Families
Federal Program: Foster Care — Title IV-E

CFDA Number: 93.658

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity — Time and Effort Reporting

Recommendation: The Department should not seek federal reimbursement unless they can
substantiate that the time and effort was dedicated to the federal program. The Department
should evaluate their internal controls to determine what allowed this to occur and take timely
corrective action to avoid such instances in the future.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Time and Effort statement has been revised to
ensure accuracy and to eliminate inconsistencies between PHRST payroll and the Time and
Effort statements. If DSCYF Payroll staff have questions regarding the Time and Effort
statements upon receipt they will refer those questions to the DSCYF Client Eligibility
Supervisor for clarification. Time and Effort statements and PHRST payroll records will be
reviewed monthly by DSCYF Payroll staff and payroll records will be corrected to match the
Time and Effort statements.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Leslie Boyd, DSCYF
Cost Recovery Administrator; Christine L. Kraft, DSCYF Controller

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: Process initiated March 1, 2017.

Delaware Youth and Family Center
1825 Faulkland Road = Wilmington, Delaware 19805 « (Fax) 633-5113



STATE OF DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
DI1VISION OF EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING

STACEY LAING 4425 NORTH MARKET STREET, THIRD FLOOR TELEPHONE: (302) 761-8129
DIRECTOR WILMINGTON, DE 19802 FAX: (302) 761-6617
Reference Number: 2016-014
State Department Name: Department of Labor
State Division Name: Division of Employment and Training
Federal Program: Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act
CFDA Number: 17.258, 17.259, 17.278
Compliance
Requirement: Eligibility

Recommendation: We recommend that the Department review its current process for
determining eligibility for WIA participant case files and ensure that sufficient documentation is
obtained and approved prior to eligibility determination.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The Division of Employment and Training agrees to
review its current process for determining eligibility for WIOA Youth participant cases, and make
any changes needed to ensure that sufficient documentation is obtained and approved prior to
eligibility determination. This revised procedure will be reviewed at a meeting with the youth
contractors to allow questions and ensure this is understood.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Eileen Michelinie

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: 06/30/17

Mission Statement:
“To provide services enabling employers and job seekers to make
informed employment and training choices leading to employment.”



DEI_AWARE

TECHNICAL 0 ® COMMUNITY

COLLEGE

Reference Number: 2016-015

Prior Year Finding: 2015-019

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: N/A

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007/84.033/84.063/84.268

Compliance Requirement:  Special Tests — Enrollment Reporting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness — Control and Compliance

Recommendation: We recommend that the College institute a process to ensure that the enroliment
status of students who withdraw or graduate are accurately reported to the NSLDS within the required
time period. The system should include monitoring the NSC third party servicer to ensure it has
corrected the failed software programming.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: Error Resolution Reports were incorrect and corrective action was
extended due to factors including Academic Year 2015-2016 initial effects experienced beginning in July
2015 when the College’s Multi-Campus structure merged into a One-College and One-OPEID code
structure. Academic Year 2014-2015 initial effects experienced from the July 2013 150% rule for new
student borrowers with Subsidized Stafford Loans continued to be an issue in conjunction with the One-
College merger.

While some issues were immediately resolved by increased familiarity with the new reporting
requirements and new NSC database requirements (i.e. Enrollment Reporting Programming & Testing
Guide), the College also initiated the following. There are no questioned costs identified, the reporting
errors did not affect program costs.

e Testing and implementation of the above mentioned Enroliment Reporting Summary Report
in 2016 to help identify and correct errors in a timely manner consistent with the 10-calendar
day window; and

e Continued consultation with representatives from the NSLDS, the College’s third-party service
provider NSC, and the College’s third-party student database vendor.
Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Nauleen Perry

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: May 2, 2016

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

P.O. Box 897, Dover, DE 19903 | 302.857.1673 (t) 302.857.1649 (f) | www.dtcc.edu

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Institution



DEI_AWARE

TECHNICAL 0 ® COMMUNITY

COLLEGE

Reference Number: 2016-016

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: N/A

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007/84.033/84.063/84.268

Compliance Requirement: Special Tests — Disbursements to or on Behalf of Students
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency — Control and Compliance

Recommendation: We recommend the College evaluate its direct loan procedures to ensure that
disbursements greater than $1,000 are paid in two disbursements, the second of which should not be
made until at least halfway through the semester, when a loan is disbursed in one semester.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The College has always scheduled one semester loans with two
separate dishursement dates. The second disbursement date was not past the 50% point of the
semester. The college has corrected the second disbursement date to be past the 50% point of the
semester for one semester loans for future disbursements. There are no questioned costs as
disbursements were made in the correct amount but were not paid in the required timeframe.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Jennifer Grunden

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: March 2017

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

P.O. Box 897, Dover, DE 19903 | 302.857.1673 (t) 302.857.1649 (f) | www.dtcc.edu

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Institution



DEI_AWARE

TECHNICAL 0 ® COMMUNITY

COLLEGE

Reference Number: 2016-017

Prior Year Finding: No

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name: N/A

Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007/84.033/84.063/84.268

Compliance Requirement: Special Tests — Return of Title IV Funds

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency — Control and Compliance

Recommendation: We recommend the College review the R2T4 requirements and implement
procedures to ensure the correct amount of days are used throughout the calculation and the R2T4
calculations are accurately completed and reviewed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: As a result of the above mentioned error and to prevent future
errors in automatic calculations, the college is reviewing all R2T4 recalculations to ensure the accuracy
of recalculated aid. In addition, to ensure the accuracy of all records for the 1516 academic year, the
financial aid office reviewed all campus recalculations and did not find other discrepancies. The total of
$776.74 will be repaid against the 1516 academic year.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Veronica Oney

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: March 2017

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

P.O. Box 897, Dover, DE 19903 | 302.857.1673 (t) 302.857.1649 (f) | www.dtcc.edu

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Institution



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES "DMS - Serving Those Who Serve Delaware"

Division of Management Services

Reference Number: 2016-018

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education

State Department Name:  Department of Health and Social Services

State Division Name: Division for the Visually Impaired

Federal Program: Vocational Rehabilitation Services

CFDA Number: 84.126

Compliance

Requirement: Allowable Cost and Activity — Time and Effort Reporting

Recommendation: The Division should evaluate their procedures regarding time and effort reconciliations.
The procedures should include (at least) quarterly reconciliations between budgeted and actual costs charged
to the program. If actual costs will exceed the budget, the Division should request a waiver or approval from
the grantor.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: DHSS has reviewed and verified that the overall grant was not over-
charged but in order to be compliant with Uniform Guidance, we will continue to update and strengthen our
internal controls and procedures with the intent to provide reasonable assurance that the salary and wage
charges are accurate, allowable and properly allocated. If it is found that actual costs exceed the budget, we
will make the necessary adjustments and/or request a waiver or approval from the grantor in order to remain
compliant. Time and effort reporting documentation for all staff outside of the Division for the Visually Impaired
(grant owner) will be submitted to and approved by the Division for the Visually Impaired (grant owner) no less
than quarterly.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Dava Newnam & Kim Rachiele

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: February 1, 2016

1901 N. DUPONT HIGHWAY ~ NEW CASTLE ~ DELAWARE ~ 19720



